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AddLife in brief

The foundation of AddLife's business is the constant endeavour
toimprove people's Hves by belng a leading, value creating player
in Life Science.

AddLife is a leading independent distributor to the European Life
Science market. The business focuses on selected niches in labo-
ratory analysis and medical technology. Sales occurin about 25
countries, primarily in the Nordic region, Central Europe and
Eastern Europe. its customers are primarity hospitals and labo-
ratories, as well as the food and pharmaceutical industries.

The 43 subsidiaries have strong brands in their product portfolio.
The Group is the market leader in the Nordic region in several of
its niche areas and also operates in Central and Eastern Europe,
the Baltic region, the Benelux countries, Italy and China.




A leading player in the
Life Sciences
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The year In figures
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Financial outcome

Net sales rose by 6 percent
to SEK 2,482 million (2,333).

EBITA amounted to SEK 245
million (234), representing
an EBITA margin of 2.9
percent (10.0).

Profit after tax rose by 7

percent and amounted to
SEK 129 millton (120).

LABTECH BUSINESS AREA

MEDTECH BUSINESS AREA
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Eamings per share totalled
SEK 5.36 (4.95).

Cash flow from operating
activities amounted to SEK
177 million (208) and the
equity ratio was 35 percent
{40).

Return on working capital
{P/WC) amounted to 62
percent (63).

58%

of net sales

42%

of net sales

At the end of 2018 the
Board of Directors decided
to raise about SEK 500
million through a rights issue
to continue expansion and
to acquire more interesting
companies for the Group,
with the aim of achieving the
long-term goal of annuat
profit growth of 15 percent.
The issue was fully sub-
scribed.
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Expansion on new markets

by G percent as a result of the acquisitions carried out during

¥ Ever since AddLife was listed three years ago, our aim has
been to build a strong position in the Nordic countries in our
selected segments in Labtech and Medtech. We have focused
on developing our business through organic growth and by
expanding through acquisitions. In 2018 AddLife took an
important step toward expansion and growth. Through our
largest acquisition to dare, Austrian Biomedica, we opened the
door to Europe. The four other acquisiions completed during
the year furcher strengchened the company within the prior-
itized niche arcas. Together, the five acquisitions for the year
are expected to add annual sales of about SEK 750 mullion.

Acquisitions created growth during the year
AddLife connnually develops 1ts business by growing both

organically and through acquisitions, Sales in 2018 increased

the year. However, the Group's organic growth during the year
did not materialize because a couple of our current companies
did not guite meet expectations. Profic growth (EBITA)
increased during the year by 5 percent to SEK 245 million,
corresponding to an EBITA margin on a par with the previous
year

Our long-term objecaive 15 to generate EBITA growth of 15
percent per year. The average during our three first years on the
stock exchange is 24 percent. We continue to report good prof-
itability with a return on working capital, measured as P/YWC,

of 62 percent, substantially higher than our goal of 45 percent.



Expansion in Europe through our largest acquisition
to date

In late December, AddLife completed the acquisition of
Biomedica, which is our largest to date and an important encry
point for us into the European market. Biomedica delivers
preducts and services within laboratory technology and
medical technology primarily to publicly funded healtheare
services. The company has a similar business model as Add Life,
where the market offering and organisation create synergies
that open opportunies to jointly develop the business. We
gain access to markets in Central and Eastern Furope with a
population chat is more than four times dhe sive of the Nordic
region. The Bromed:ca acquisition creates favourable condi-
tions for long term profitable growth in completely new

geographic markets.

Continued focus on profitable niches

AddLife continually searches for companies that complement
our existing businesses and over the course of the year we
completed four additienal acquisitions within atractive and
profitable niches. The Finmish company Vaino Korpinen,
which develops accessible bathroom solutions primarily
intended for medical facilines and nursing homes, was
acquired and added to the Medtech business arca. Three
smaller acquisittons were also completed, all of which were
integrated into current operations in both Medrech and
Labtech: Food Diagnostics, Ossano Scandinavia and Laboren.

In December we also signed an agreement with Wellspect
HealchCare to acquire its business in the surgery and respira-
tory medicine product areas, with annual sales of about SEK
170 mullion. The deal will increase our share of proprietary
products in Medtech and will be integrated into the subsidiar-
ies Mediplast and Biomedica. The acquisition 1s expected to be
completed in April 2019.

To dare, we have completed acquisitions using bath
in-house generated cash flow and loan financing. In February
2019 we raised about SEK 500 million through a new share
issue to strengthen the balance sheet and to facilitate future
rransactions. The issuance was oversubscribed by 68 percent,

indicating investor confidence in our long-term strategy.

Healthcare sector in canstant change

Global, national and regional health challenges place large
demands on health services today. With medical advances,
people with chronic diseases, for example, can live longer. At
the same time, we see a growing and aging population that
needs increased healthcare and home care.

In order for saciety to meer tes future obligarions, healch
services must work more efficiently, preventively and in greacer
collabotation with both the business community and
academia. AddLife can make a difference and contribute to

both paticnt and social benefit by offering new treatment
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options, proactive diagnostics, technical aids and digital solu-
twons for both inscitutional care and care at home.

Already today, various imitiatives are underway in the
Nordic region to move carc and therapy from hospitals to
homes. All of the Nordic countries are also focusing on Life
Science 1n various ways o strengthen the competitiveness of

their respective countries in Life Science research.

Successful business model

AddLife is an arcractive and responsible owner of niche compa-
nies. In our decentralised and entrepreneur-driven model, each
subsidiary ts responsible for 1ts own business acuvities within
the context of the requirements for growth, profitability and
sustainable development set by the Group. The model creates
leverage by enabling us to benefir from AddLife's combined
resources, networks and industrial expertise, along with the
flexibility, commiunent and business acumen of a small
company. Our business school AddLife Academy plays a key
role in our ¢fforts to promote our corporate culture and to
inspire people to grow within the Group. Since its inception
three years ago, more than 1,100 employees have participated

in various training programs.

Our employees are the key to long-term sustainable
business practices
For us, sustainabiliry is in[egraf o our daily work. Wichin
Addl.ife, sustamability efforts are a priority — not because we
are forced 1o do so, but because we feel a responsibility to our
customers, employees and society at large. Being a supplier of
services and products to health services and financed by public
funds carries obligations. It places demands on our organisa-
tion and our corporate culture, where our Code of Conduct
guides us m our daily work.

In order to continue to succeed, we need talented, dedi-
cated employees with drive and the right attitude. And that is
just what we have today, and I would like to thank all of you

for doing your best, every single day!

KRISTINA WILLGARD
President and CEQ



Small-scale business - large-scale wise
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AddLife combines the strength of a large enterprise with the
dedicarion and business skills of an entrepreneur. The Parent
Company is an active owner with a focus on each subsidiary 1o
promote growth and improve profitabilicy. The subsidiaries are
responsible for their own business acuvities within the conrext
of the requirements thar cthe Group sets for growth, profitabil-
iry and sustainable development.

An entity that works

We combine che advanrages of the subsidiaries, such as flexibil-
ity, a peisonal approach and efficiency wich AddLife’s aggregare
resources, networks and industrial expertise. In chis way the
Group can optimise long-term growth and prohtability. Our
decentrahsed corporate structure also enrails less dcpcndcncc

on individual customers and suppliers.

The subsidiaries are responsible for their own
business dealings

The AddLife Group consists of the Parent Company, AddLife
AB, and 43 operating subsidiaries. The Parent Company
contributes by providing financial stabiliry, resourees and tools
designed to make it easier and more cfficient for our subsidiar-
ics to run their businesses. Examples include the business
school — AddLife Academy — that all of our employees attend.

Labtech and Medrech are our two business areas. Within
them, the subsidiaries combine their entreprencurial business
acumen with individual accountability. Qur decentralised
Organisatinn :lnd Enlreprencurial CUIIUI’L’ arc kt‘y Compc(itivc
advantages for the AddLife Group. Each subsidiary has its own
CEO who is fully responsible for their business within the stip-
ulated frameworks and requirements which the Parent
Company places on the eperauon.

The basic requirements of the Parent Company are thar
subsidiaries must achieve growth, demonstrate profitability
and pursue sustainable development. The Parent Company
governs the subsidiaries by actively working on the Board of
Directors to ensure that they achieve the Group's inancial

targets regarding proftt growth and profitabilicy.

Independent distributor with many collaborative
efforts

AddLife’s subsidiarices collaborate with several strategic suppli-
ers. Qur aim is 1o establish close collaboration with leading
global supplicrs within our niche areas in all countries.

Owver the years we have developed long-term relationships
and partnerships that have enabled us to achieve leading
market positions in certain market niches. As an independent
participant and distributor, we can offer customised solutions
thar can be a combinanion of products from several of
AddLife’s more than 1,400 suppliers.

Market leader in selected niches

Overall, AddLife has caprured a small market share of the large
and relacively fragmented Nordic Life Science market. We are
active in several ateractive niches in various product segments
and have established stable and growing sales in these areas.
We are currently the market leader 1n several specific niches in
biomedical research and laboratory analysis, diagnostics such
as blood gas analysis, and medical technology, such as ear, nose

and throat.

Customers can be found in our operating subsidiaries
AddLife does not have any customer relacionships of fes own,
since all customer conracts and business relarionships with
customers take place in our 43 operatng subsidiaries. Our
customers, which can be found in both the private and public
sectors, are primarily hospirals, laboratories within the health-
care system, research, colleges, universities and the feod and
pharmaceutical industries. The absolute majority can be found
in the public sector, where sales take place through public

Procurement.



AddLife’'s own DNA
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~, FINANCIAL TARGETS
* Earnings growth 15%
» Profitability 45% ; STRATINY
» Dividend policy 30-50% i . .
+ Market-teading positions
= Qperational mobility
+ Growth through acquisitions

Smatl-scale business - large-scale wise
AddLife combines the strength \.
of a large enterprise with the

dedication and business skills of
an entrepreneur.

ERFLOVEES

« Skilled
« Dedicated
Decentralised business skills « Entrepreneurs
S
The subsidiaries are }
responsible for their
own business dealings. Bacic requirements
« Growth
« Profitability

e ' Corpvalues .= Sustainable deveiopment
I‘ . « Simplicity e ToT oTTmTe
. s Engagement

= Accountability
# Innovation

P igaiers
AddLife provides added value to customers in
health care, laboratories and research by offering
high-quality, cost-effective solutions and products,
as well as advisory services to both the private and
public sectors in the Nordic region.



Strategy for sustainable growth
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Market-leading positions

Being a market leader in selected niches is important for AddLife to achieve stable profit
growth and sustainable profitability. To achieve this goal, our subsidiaries will:

+ Create value and build positions in selected niches

+ Be expert suppliers and advisors
+ Build sales on close relationships with customers, manufacturers and suppliers

. Operational mobility

Operational mobility is an agile approach to work in which AddLife improves conditions for
business and profitability growth.

+ Our subsidiaries should be flexible and aglle so that they can seize new business opportunities
» Addlife develops the business through active ownership and board work

y - Acquisitions

Acquisitions are important for AddLife to achieve its financial targets for long-term profit
growth,

* We continuously search for new Life Science companies with the conditions to take leading
niche positions

* We have a successful acquisition process for integration and development

+ We acquire companies in order to maintain and further develop them in the long term







Strengths and competitive advantages
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Leading independent
player

with long-term reilationships with
many different suppliers who offer
pan-Nordic solutions.

Attractive and "o Decentralised. | Talented employees
transparent business o7 businessskills - B with expertise and dedication, who
and contractual model with a high LU Swhere the subsidiaries ba : always focus on the customer.
proportion of recurring revenue. considerable freedom and combine
trepreneurist hu» Aess practices..

 Experience from : Clear focus
. _a_cquisition_s on profit growth and cash flow
generation permeates the Parent
Company's model for financial
zovernance of the subsidiaries.

o withan estaﬁiished processfor .
- identifying and completing success- -
: " ful acquisitions, :
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Long-term financial targets

FINANCIAL TARGETS ACHIEVEMENT OF OBJECTIVES 2018 HISTORIC TARGET FULFILMENT
. %
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Financing through
high profitability

Kristina Willgard,
P/WC*

President and CEO of AddLife
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Attractive market with stable growth
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¥ The European Life Science market reached about SEK 1,155
billion in 2016, according to the industry organisation
Medlech Europe. This means Europe ranks second with 29
percent of the global marker, behind the US, which accounts
for 43 percent, The annual growth rate is about 2-4 percent
and is expecred to remain ar that level over the next few years.

‘The Nordic region accounted fo1 91 percent of AddLife’s
net sales in 2018. The acquisition of Biomedica in December
expands AddLife’s main market geographically wich Central
and Eastern Europe, where the most important markets are
Austna, Crzech Republic, Poland, Hungary, Slovakia and
Switzerland.

Addlife’s markets

The Life Science market in Europe is large and complex, with
many market segments. AddLife focuses on selecied niches in
two of the scgments:

« Laboratory technology, with products and services in diag-
nostics, as well as in biomedical research and laboratory
analysis.

* Medical technology, with products and services in medical

wchnology and home care.

Market providers

‘The European Life Science market is fragmented. Of Furope’s
27,000 medical technology companies, 95 percent are small
and medivm-sized enterprises, the majoriey with fewer than 50
employees. Large international players usually sell products
under their own brands and monitor the entire chain from
manufacturing to distribution through global sales offices, The
small companies also usually sell their own products and focus
on 4 specific product, geographic area, or a segment.

The market also has independent distributors who, like
AddLife, offer products from both large international compa-
nies and smaller companies without their own sales channels.
For savings and efficiency-related reasons, health services are
increasingly demanding comprehensive solutions. This trend
benefits operators with a broad offering, compared with opera-

tors who are hmited to their own product range

The public procurement process

Comman o all AddLife markers is thaz health care is largely
financed by public funding. "This mcans that the majority of
transactions are carried out through public procurement
procedures. The regulations governing this process are
commeon for countries within the EU and EES.
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The agreements are usually framework agreements governing
the products covered, quality, price, delivery time, penalties,
etc. In the Nordic Life Science marker, the term of agreement
is usually from two plus two years up to four plus two years. In
Central and Eastern Europe, the framework agreements are
usually shorter, often one to three years, though with large

variations from one country to anocher.

Proximity to customers increasingly important

The majority of the products in AddLife’s market segment have
a large knowledge content. Consequently, services such as
advice, training, technical service, support and assistance when
choosing equipment are necessary, preferably in the local
language. A strong local presence with an easily accessible
service nrganisanon has thcrefnrc bccmnc an jﬂCfCﬂSngly
important competitive advantage.

Cotlaboration with customers continues throughout the
entire product life cycle, from product sales to the provision of
consumablcs, Ongoing maintcnance ﬂﬂd SUPPO([, Which hc[ps
to create long-term customer relationships and low customer

Turitover.

Entry barriers

There are a number of entry barriers in AddLife’s markers,
which benefits previously established parricipants. Operating
in the Life Science market requires adequate size and expertse
to meet the high standards for product safety, compliance and
monitoring. In Europe, medical device products are regulated
by EU directives and regulations. Before the product can be
marketed in Europe it must be CE-certified, which provides
access to the enrire EES market.

In 2017, two new EU regulations were introduced chat will
now gradually come into force, with regulatory tightening and
reclassification of products within medical devices and in vitro
dlagnostics. For some products, this may require renewed test-
ing for CE certification, which may be a challenge for small
operators with limited resources and cause larger global players

to opt out of smaller local markets.

Growing and aging population

Continued populatien growth, combined with longer life
expectancy, means that there will be more of us and thar the
proportion of older people will increase. Looking at Europe as
a whole, the population is estimated to inercase by just over
three percent by 2040. In the Nerdic countries, population
growth is expected to reach 15 percent by 2040, Meanwhile,



the proportion of people 1in Europe over the age of 65 is
increasing, and the age group is expected to reach 27 percentin
2040, compared wich the current 19.5 percent of the popula-
tion. Many indicators suggest that an increased life expectancy
also means that many people will stay healthy longer. Mean-
while, however, the proportion of patients with who are chron-
ically ill and/or have muluple diagnoses is increasing. All
factors considered, a larger and older population 15 expected to
increase the need for health care and social services.

One effect of the increased need for elderly care is that the
home care segment will grow as healthcare providers try to
streamline health care and keep costs down. Home care can
encompass arcas such as medical care, diagnostics and trear-
menc in the hone, as well as various assistive devices, housing
adaprarion and monitoring. For the patient, home care
provides the opportunity to live at home longer, which is

expected to provide a higher quality of life.

POPULATION GROWTH IN THE EURQPEAN COUNTRIES {(EU 28)
BY AGE CATEGORY, 2017-2040
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Digitalisation enables new applications and business
opportunities
In AddLife’s markets there is a clear digitalisation trend with,
for example, connected patient monitoring, connected labora-
tory instruments, web-based analysis services and development
of new digital measurcment methods chat are replacing manual
methods. Digitalisation also provides new ways to gather,
spread and analysc daca, driven by developments in informa-
tion and communication technology, as well as availability of
smart phones, tablets and laprops. ‘This means thac patients can
also be provided with the opportunity to personally play a role
in thetr own treatment, thereby gaining a better understanding
of their condition and how they can effectively creat it.
Digitalisation also affects procedures for purchasing and
implementing services. Product information wikl be available
and it will be possible to place orders online Purchase-related
service and related services such as training, user supportand
product maintenance will therefore become increasingly
important. The ¢Health market is expected 1o increase globally
by about 15 percent annually The trend 1s slowed by factors

such as high costs for implementation and maincenance of
eHealth solutions, a shortage of IT expertise, licensing issues
and inadequate compensation systems.

Technological development

Rapid technological developments, with lower production
costs and increased standardisation within mature product
segments, have resulted in increased competinion, pressure on
prices and the establishment of new players. At the same time,
the healthcare system is subject to heavy cost pressures due to
rising healthcare costs for an aging population and must focus
on three arcas: clinical outcomes, efficiency enhancements and
cOoSt savings.

These changing needs increase the demands on market
pardicipants to be adaptable and keep up with the rapid techno-
logical developments. It is important to be on the leading edge
of technology and find che range of niche products and services
that meet the needs of the future,

Growing application area for diagnostics

The diagnostics market is growing in several areas because of
technological developments that have made testing methodol-
ogy both less expensive and casier to use.

One example is the individual teses thac identify a certain
genetic marker re determine what medicine will be most effee-
tive for a cancer patient. Another example 1s the growing need
for rapid analyses to address 1ssues relared to mncreasingly wide-
spread bacrerial resistance. Yet another example is advanced
DNA analysis, where the trend is moving towards routine
large-scale use ro analyse and predict various types of cancer.

In clinical chemisery, prices for standardised tests ar cencral
laboratories are subjected to strong pressures. Meanwhile, a
decentralisation trend is shifting towards point-of-care analy-
ses, which are often carried out on a hospital ward or acan
outpatient care facility. This decentralisacion is expected to
continue within an array of niches, especially where the need

for rapid test results is crucial.

Consolidation and centralised procurement

One trend that is specific to the Nordic region is extensive
consolidation and strucrural reforms at the county council and
regional level that has been underway 1n recent years. Central-
ised purchasing and new approaches to total health cconomic
aspects in general have increased ar hospirals.

The trend is clear: public procurement procedures are
becoming larger in scope, often with longer terms of contract.
‘This could pose a threar for small players, but at the same time
new epportunities are emerging in which large suppliers can
collaborate with subcontracrors to cover all of the customer’s
needs. In the past, tenders were mainly evaluated based on
price. Today, there is instead a trend towards evaluation models
where sustainability, quality of service, support and after-

market services are becoming increasingly important.
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Market facts about the Nordic
region in brief
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@ Sweden

Sweden demaonstrates stable growth and the market situation
is favourable in both health services and research. Certain
major investments in highly specialised health services have
had a favourable impact on AddLife, Sweden’s aim to become
a leader in Life Science research will continue to have a
favourable impact on the industry in the long term.

Finland

The extensive ongoing health services reform in Finland,
which entails centralisation with the goal of being able to
offer equal care throughout the country, has been accompa-
nied by some uncertainty and a cautious approach to invest-
ments in certain segments of health services. The trend in the
Finnish market for research and diagnostic laboratories has
been favourable during the year.

Denmark

The Danish market is stable, but possibly somewhat weaker
in certain segments, in part because of savings demands in
the pharmaceutical sector. There is long-term underlying
growth, including investments in new hospitals, as well as
large private research-focused operations.

@ Norway

The Norwegian market is characterised by growth and the
Norwegian government continues to invest in research,
diagnostics and new hospitals. There is an explicit political
goal that more elderly individuals shall be able to live at
home longer, which increases demand in the home care
sector for various assistive devices for institutions and
senior housing facilities.

Rest of the warld

Businesses outside the Nordic region that mainly seil our
own products, including advanced instruments, have
performed well during the year. The trend in the Nether-
lands, China and the US in particular has been digitalisation
favourable.




Acquisitions in 2018 - from Nordic
to European market coverage
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Ossano Scandinavia

During the first quarter Ossano Scandinavia was acquired and
added to the Medtech business area. The company is a niche
supplier in orthapaedics, offering instruments and consum-
ables primarily for back and hip surgery. After the takeover, the
business was integrated in Mediplast.

Food Diagnostics

In March, Food Scandinavia was acquired and added ro the
Labtech business area. ‘The acquisition entails an entry into the
field of food diagnostics. After the takeover, the business was

integrared into the diagnostics company Triolab in Sweden.

Korpinen

I the chird quarter Vainé Korpinen Oy was acquired as parrt
of the Medtech business area. The company develops and
designs accessible bathroom solutions, primarily for health care
and nursing homes for both private and public environments.
The acquisition complements other companies in home care,
with mare shared business opporrunities in all Nordic countries.

sy A A P R SR YY) g -
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Laboren

In the last quarter, Laboren was acquired and added to che
Labtech business area. The business complements the existing
product offering in laboratory cquipment. After che takeover,
the business was integrated into Holm & Halby in Denmark.

Agreement for additional acquisition

In December, AddLife took an additional step 1n us interna-
tional expansion strategy by signing a contract with Wellspect
Healthcare to acquire their operations in the surgery and
respiratory medicine producr areas. The acquisition includes
market-leading niche products with associared rights and
Customer agrcc‘mcnts aon SCVEI.'H.] gcograph 1C mﬂrkCtS Elgh[
markets in Europe and Australia account for more than 90
percent of sales, which amount to abouc EUR +7 million. The
acquisition will be complered in April 2019 and the business
will be integrated 1nto Mediplast and Biomedica.

MET SALES, MNUMBER OF
ACGUISITIONS TiME SEKM EMBPBLOYEES BUSINESS AREA
Qssano Scandinavia AB, February, 2018 Medtech - .
Sverige 20 5 () OSSANG
Food Diagnostics FDAB AB,  March, 2018 Labtech
Sverige 10 3 P roop piacnosTIcs
Viiné Korpinen Oy, Juby, 2018 Medtech
Finland 80 15 KORPINEN
Laboren ApS, December 2018 Labtech »
Denmark 10 2 V Laboren
Biomedica December, 2018 Medtech/Labteh
Medzinprodukte GmbH, 635 280 CLOVME L A
Austria SEOME L
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Biomedica

In Decemmer 2078 Bomrmed Lo was agaired. vy ich s AddUites largest Lquisinon o date 70
commie Gl Sinilarities benween Acdlife ond Blomed ¢z are signihizant and the Briomedica

acaus nons g good At n Addlife’s e ronoralsanon sirar
strovesmc for Ade Life, whaa s ' sddine to s focas on s e
e Furgpran marks 1s, osnocdahy 5T, {rech

Feoubl o, Ponnd, Hungary, Siovaa ana Sve tzerlard

ma <t ostabil'snes a strong e

Background

Through the Biomedica acquisition, AddLife is expanding its
geographic domestic market from covering a population of
abourt 32 million (Nordic countries and the Baltic region) to
about 164 mithon people, thereby creating good prospects for
long-term organic and acquisition-driven growrh. Meanwhile,
through AddLife, Biomedica will gain good prospects to
continue ta develop within the framework of the exisung

corporate structure and brands as a separate company within

AddLife.

About Biomedica
Biomedica was founded in 1978 in Austria and like AddLife, it
is primarily active 1n laborarory technology and medical tech-
nology. Biomedica has a similar business model. scructure and
markert offering as AddLife and has grown both organicafiy and
through acquisitions since it was founded. Biomedica's offering
largely consists of providing products and services to publicly
funded health care chrough public procurement locally and in
the various countries in which the company is active

Of Biomedica's 13 geographic markets, six {6) countries
account for more than 80 percent of sales: Austria, Czech
Republic, Peland, Hungary, Slovakia and Switzerland. Other
markets within Biomedica can be found in Eastern Europe.
Biomedica’s geographic scope has been an approach to attract
supphiers by being able to offer a larger geagraphir distribucion
network and population base

Biomedica has abour 280 employees and its headquarters
are located in Vienna, Auscria, where its common business,
markeung and logistics and inventory management functions
are located. Biomedica has a decentralised organisation run by
its own subsidianies in 13 geographic markets with 2 CEO who

reports directly ta management.

Offering and areas of operation

Biomedica’s offering is largely equivalent to AddLife’s offering.
Of Biomedica’s sales in 2017/2018, Labtech accounted for
about 60 percent 3), while Medrech accounted for abour 40
percent 4), though the breakdown varies among different
markets. In Labrech, Biomedica offers in vitro diagnostics, as

well as diagnostics for veterinarians and the food industry,

N B T T
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laboratory instruments and research reagents. Biomedica also
has a small proportion of proprietary production of immuno-
chemical tests within Labtech. In Medtech, Biomedica offers
medical equipment in several product segments, including
surgery and urology. The company also offers clinical 1T and
other products in the Life Sciences.

Suppliers and customers

Biomedica has several large and small suppliers in Labrech and
Medtech. Like AddLife, Biomedica has developed long-term
relationships with several strategic suppliers of equipment and
mazerials for the Cencral and East European healthcare
market, offering extensive expertise about their products.
Biomedica and AddLife have many supplicrs in common, espe-
cially in Labtech. The majority of Biomedica's customers are in
publicly funded health care, but the proportion varies depend-
ing on geographic market. In publicly funded health care
contracts are awarded following public procurement or
through public price agreements in the local markets. ‘These

customer contracts are generally somewhart shorter than in the

Nordic region, with a term of about one {1) to three (3) years.
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Dedicated employees on a high academic level paired with solid
technical expertise and tevei of service.

High-quality products, training programs, seminars and advisory
services.

Long-term collaboration with leading brands in respective
product segments. Most supplier contracts provide exclusive
distribution rights on AddLife's markets.

Strong service organisation with local support and high level of
service.
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¥ Labtech’s offering mainly targets everything for diagnostics
and research laboratories in the Nardic region. The products,
which are used ro diagnose diseases or to conducr research,
include instruments and equipment, as well as consumables
and reagents for the installed equipment.

Laboratory technology is a knowledge-intensive area and
customers are therefore offered services such as supporr, main-
tenance, advice and training ro ensure efficient use of the
L'qulpn‘lcnt.

[n 2018 public procurement procedures accounted for about
85 percent of net sales. Proprietary brands account for about 10
percent of sales, while distribution of products from leading
manufacturers accouns for abour 90 percent. Sales outside the
Nordic region include sales wo the Baltic region and global sales
of proprictary products from Biolin Scienufic and LabRobor,

respectively.

Facts about Labtoch

ADDLIFE IN FIGURES

Net sales: SEK 1,451 MILLION
EBITA: SEK 165 MILILION
Employees: 357

Share of net sales: 58%

LABTECH'S PRODUCT SEGMENTS

« Haematotogy « Advanced

= Pathology instruments

» POC {point-of-care » Microbiology
diagnostics) » Malecular biology

» Clinical chemistry
« immunology

= Celi brology
« Analysis instruments
» Consumables

- L,
S U

LN

Ms @ S0 vIEns
SR

25 g e de

fy WiTh clusterers 210 suople:
Market trend in 2018

Sales growth in Labtech was somewhat slower in 2018
compared with previous years and was 4 percent. Several of the
companies focused on working with their margins and earn-
ings. EBITA rose by 10 percent to SEK 165 million (151),
which corresponds with a margin of 11.4 percent (10.8).

The trend for the diagnostics companices was favoyrable.
Growth in Finland was particularly strong, thereby strength-
ening AddLife’s position 1n char marker. During the year inici-
atives in molecular biology and microbiology continued and
growth in the vererinary diagnosrics segment was robust. Addi-
tional progress was made in the attractive and growing area of
food diagnestics duning the year through the acquisinion of
Food Diagnosiics. All of the Nordic countrics are continuing

to FOCLIS on srrcng[hcning Llfe Science research.

NET SALES BY COUNTRY

& Sweden
# Finiand
@ Denmark
. Norway

@ Other
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The sales rrend for our own advanced instruments ourside the
Nordic countries has bcen encnuraging, especia]]y n Ch]na,
and our new distributor in che US has had a SLTON STATE OVCT
the first six months. The diagnosrics company that was
founded in the Baltic region in late 2017 is off 1o 1 solid start
and is now an established business with 1ts own sales organisa-
tion in all of the Baluc coantries.

Strong niche positions
Labtech has strong market positions in the Nordic region in
several selected niches in point-of-care diagnostic analysis,
molecular diagnostics and genetic research. “These niches
include reagents and equipment for coagulation and blood gas
analysis, as well as reagents for biomedical research {gene
modification in the laboratery environment).

The Jaboratory industry is innovation-intensive. New prod-

ucts are developed all the time and the trend is moving towards

suppliers, which is a factor for success

the Company’s own local sales organisation and strong service

organisation creates close relavonships with customers and

. . . - . T i"—‘;"}" ] Irey
an increasing proportion of point-of-care solutions, where E a1 o d R
Labrtech’s companies are strong. In Labrech’s niche markets, {,\}{ covelornments ot ar
. i K LA LY toa LD JHL
growth 1s mainly driven by technological development creating , ‘
new applications in helds such as molecular biclogy and micro- Carty soage.
biclogy, as well as new application -G i .
> zy, : s ne pp ¢ for Next-Generation Peter Simonsbacka,
Sequencing (NGS). The freedom of working as a distributor business area manager, Labtech
enables Labtech to react quickly and to find the products that
are on the absolure leading edge of developments at an early
stage.
Demand for health care and social services is expected 1o
continue to nse, The trend towards conducting testing and
analyses increasingly at point-of-care continues. Working wich
Our subsidiaries:
> BERGMAN | 2 conkn | wHolmya Haliy H mmuna -
L4 - x IR
7 LABORA Bilin Scientific R -+ T diagnostic oy | LabRobot ~TRIOLAB>
BergmanlLabora Biolin Scientific BioNordika Group Hoim & Halby Immuno LabRobot Triolab Group
Oftfers laboratory Offers anakyses Offers laboratory Qffers analysis Diagnostic Offers equipment Offers diagnostic
instruments and instruments and equipment and instruments, Offers instruments for micrebiologicat instruments and
products for maintenance reagents for cell laboratory and reagentsin analysesin Food reagentsinthe
micrascopy, as well SErvices in and molecular equipment and molecular Micrabiology segments blood

as maintenance
services to
research, industry,
colleges and
universities in
Sweden
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advanced matenals
development and
surface science to
industry and
academia all over
the world.

bialogy, as well as
mimunology far
academic research
and the pharma-
ceutical industry in
the Nordic region
and Estonia.

maintenance
sServices to
research, industry
and universities in
Denmark

diagnastics,
micrabiology,
pathology, genetics
and cell biology, as
well as laboratory
micrascopes and
micrascopes far
surgery. Customers
primarily in Findand.

primarily in Europe
and North America

gases, clrnical
chemistry,
microbiology and
maolecular biology,
immunology,
patholegy,
haematalogy, POC,
veterinary
Customers are
public and private
health services, as
well as the
pharmaceutical
industry in the
Nordic region and
the Baltic region




Market-le

.Add Life's whsidia'ry rr_in#ab is, _the o
market-leading distributor of, among
ather things, blood gas analysisinstry- -
ments in Sweden, Norway and szand. '
“ . Weoffer Radiometer’s ecmipmem, :

" including all necessary service. Radlo-

meter, whichi$.a Danish company, hasits

own d‘ssmbutmn channei m{}enmadc.

Elocd ga:s aﬂai_vst_s. provides information
such-as the pH of the Blood, which-
reflects the acidity. Analysesalso show
carbon dibxide levels, a measure of the

“effectivengss.of bireathing, which

. reflects how éfficiently the patient is

- ventilating: Both measdrements canbe

- crugial, since they affect all organs inthe

body. Blood gas stafus must be obtained

.lmmedxately for apatientina E:fe-
threatening situstion to ensure that the.
patient receives the right treatment.

- with the patient and is cu
_everywhere in hospitals: duripg ehild-
birth to check the status of the taby, on’

" neonatal wards, surgrcai wards Inténsive -
care units, pulmonary medicme dmu.s. )

. central ia boratories, etc.

Since the Tnage assessmeént system Wwas

implemented in emer; gency carein. 2005

~ta identify h:?.h—nsk patoeﬁts ang

 corectty pkior_itis'e t.hém. theuseof

blood gas analysis has increased from

- about 5,000 tests per emergency

departinent and frear to as highas-

78,000 per year Today, blood gas,
. analysis isdone for essentially every |
patientwho comes to the emergency
- room to obtain a comp!ete pic ture of the

pat!ent 5w i?- :

: Tnoiab has 3bo it 400 msm:ments at
] ‘Siwedish hospithls from Yetad i inthe ;
-~ south to Kiruna i the north forwhsch we

perform regular maintenance, and"

o providé with actessories and consurma-
~blessuchas reagents sensoré.and

sampling lems. The trend towards
incredsed speciafisation in health
services has resuft d inthe addmon of

anatysis ~ their instrumentsare the niost
: usef-fnendiy and offer the best features g

on the market. An fpréssive 18-19 .
parameters cartbe measured from a..
single blood sample: electrolytes, bio:
su gar, lactate haemoglobm and creat

. There are 12 peopie . :
bicod gas aﬂalysa at Trm!ab Sweden. and

- rustomers have fui! service contract:

whfie oth&r have semce once ayea

by eguiarivarrééginé' highty appreci
;1 training programmes and user meeting
“with: lectures and opportumt;es to.
exchange expeneﬂces. ; :

. The use of biood gas anaiyszs has
Increased ever sincé I'began at Triolatiin

1999 in the past; the instruments were

o xnstaf}ed inthe: 'ritral Iaheratofy
o Instrumentsare |

-how available on

‘the wards, whs_

has made abuge

- differeride for~ o
‘Both health care -

and patients.
Bload gas

'anafysss isone of

" Lonal Halmqv:st

“Sales Mariager, Blood:
(_S_ases Triolap
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Medlech's strengls

Employees with a high level of knowledge where the majority
have medical training and user perspectives developed in contact
with the customers.

Attractive pan-Nordic offering that provides both global and
smaller suppliers/manufacturers with a distribution partner for
the entire Nordic region.

Specialists in public procurement with well developed procedures
for this purpose.

Broad range of high-quality products from leading manufacturers
and, in some cases, also niche products for the respective market
segments.

High flexibility and the ability to find customised solutions that
simplify daily life for healthcare personnel and users.




Medtech

Te Mectech busingss aror orfers iveoical Cevice product: to haspizzls cod fo tone carel The orond
afferinz s o foctn {or fuocess snce teng ers for hosaieals are becoming mcreasinrgy In ge.

» The Medtech companies offer medical devices to health
services, as well as products within home care. The customers
are primarily publicly funded health care and social services in
the Nordic regton. The bustness area also has some exports of
proprictary products to Europe, mainly to Germany and the
Benelux countries.

‘The broad product offering ranges from basic disposable
items in dressings, such as compresses, w advanced products
fol’ [hOf&CiC surgery, Such as hf:al't VHIVCS. Medtec}l 3150 Oﬁcrs
services such as training of users and special programs in
surgery and electrosurgery. The home care segment offers prod-
ucts that make enable users to remain living at home longer.

In 2018 about 90 percent of ne sales took place chrough
public procurement procedures. Proprietary brands account for
about 30 percent of the products, while distribution of prod-

ucts from leading manufacturers accounts for about 70

Facts about Medtech
ADDLIFE IN FIGURES

Net sales: SEK 1,031 MILLION
EBITA: SEK 94 MILLLION
Employees: 237

Share of net sales: 42%

MEDTECH'S PRODUCT SEGMENTS

+ Ear, nose and throat
+ intensive care

» Intervention

+ Neurosurgery

« Ostomies

» Surgery

» Surgical equipment

« Thoracic surgery
« Wound care

« Enteral nutrition
+ Urology

« Sterile goods

« Home care

percent. The proprietary products are manufactured mainly by
production partners in Asia, bur some proprietary production
takes place in assembly and production facilities in Denmark,
Finland, Sweden, Norway and lealy.

Market trend in 2018
Growth during the year was 10 percent, driven by the acquusi-
tions carried out during the year. Organically, sales decreased
by 1 percent. The business situation was generally stable, with
robust activity within health services and home care. Sales to
healch services were strong in Norway and the Benelux coun-
tries, and stable in Sweden, bur weaker in Finland and
Denmark during the year.

Home care continues o show good growth, with fall

prevention as the most positive arca in 2018.

NET SALES BY COUNTRY

B Sweden
@ Finland
# Denmark
& Norway

. QOther
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Two acquisitions during che year contnibured positively to sales
growth. The acquisition of Vaind Korpinen Oy is a good fit in
the Group’s strategy for continued expansion in home care.
Korpinen is the leading supplicr of accessible bathroom solu-
ttons in Finland. The range of products in advanced surgery
was also complemented with the acquisition of Ossano Scandi-
navia AB, a nichc company in erthopacdics. The company has
been integrated into Mediplast.

Strong in niches and in home care

Several of Medtech’s subsidiaries have a strong posirion n
certain consumables used 1n large volumes by health services.
One example ts disposable products for the ear, nosc and throat
segment.

The rapid technological developments in this industry and
the increasingly large procurement procedures require both
flexibility and speed. The ability to optimise che product pore-
folio to what customers and users demand 1s ensured by prod-
uct and sales managers with medical training.

Home care is a growing product segment in the Nordic
region. All Nordic markets have initiatives to shift care and
therapy from the hospital to the home. Medtech has made
several acquisitions in home care since 2016 and is now a
well-established operator offering a range that includes accessi-
blc bathroom solutions, technical aids for children and young
people with special needs, and products to prevent falls and
provide stairway assistance.

With a growing and aging population throughout the
Nordic region, the need for assistive devices in home settings is
significant and is only expected to grow. Demand in home care
15 expected to continue to grow over the nexe few years, which
makes it an interesting segment wich furure potential. Medtech
currently offers home care products in three countries in the

Nordic region. Norway, Sweden and Finland.

Our subsidiaries:
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Lars-Erik Rydell,

business area manager, Medtech

ot clemand.

HEPRC

Hepro

Offers assistive devices for
accessibility and home care
praducts, such as producis
faor fali prevention and
accessible bathroom
solutions, as wel! as welfare
technology for public
sector and private care
providers in Norway
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) krabot’

Krabat

Offers technical aids for
children and young people
with special needs to the
public sector in Europe

KORPINEN

Korpinen

Offers products including
accessible bathroom
solutions for hospitals,
nursing homes, public
spaces and home care in
Finland, Norway, Japan,
Austraha and Russia

Mediplast

Offers medical device
products and consumables
within the segments
surgery, thoracic medicine,
neurology, intervention,
wound care, anaesthesia,
intensive care, ear. nose
and throat, urology,
gastrostomy, ostomies, and
sterile goods Customers
can be found in public and
private health care, mainty
in the Nordic countnes and
the Benelux countries

N SVANCARE'

Svan Care

Offers bathroom products
for peapie with speaial
needs to county council
and municipal home care in
Sweden.



‘Most of us take the ability to goto the

taitet independently for granted. But for.-

people who are elderly, disabled, or: -
have dementia, as well as othercare .-
pients with special needsitisnotso

: E&ﬁ;oyeés at Vding Korpiﬁen.wbrk &o Rt
ensurethat everyone has the same 7
) or}por‘mmt 5. The company isthe

‘ties, hospitals, senior housmg, pubhc-
‘toilets and private homes. Examples of
‘custoriers are private operators and
pebilic agencies that rury care homes an

" the construction sectar, in connection

with both housing adaptation andin new -

“onstruction. Viine Korpinen offers.
" planning assistance and complate |7

drawings. Careful thought is givento the -
placement of and distance betweenthe. -
- toilet, shower, sink, grab bars and razi‘ BS

:to:provide space for awalkerand -

wheelchair, increase safety and misimise
- the ﬁsk of falls. Cq{ours ?a&:i!_itate spatial o
perception and m:a'ke it sasier tousethe

been tohospitals, pursing homes and -

assistad fiving facilities: Since Addlif

housi?vg and péoﬁle wi

weli as adapted toflets.on the No_rweg n T

s We !1ave an extr meiv rewardmg

coiiaboratson 2] th& ome cat
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Kristina Willgard, President and CEO of AddLife
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b When prepartng the sustainability report, guidance was taken
from the practices and guidelines that ensure compliance with
legal requirements. This 1s AddLife’s sccond sustainability report
and no significant changes have occurred regarding the applica-
tion of reporting principles or the scope of the report. No specific
sustainability reporting standard has been applied in full. The
purpose of the sustatnability reporr is to provide an overarching
description of AddLife’s business from the perspective of susraina-
bility and to inform about the sustainability aspects thar are nec-
essary to understand the company’s development, position, and

performance, as well as the consequences of its operations.

Part of business value

For AddLife, sustainability is a natural component of business
value; sustainability ensures the Group’s long-term earnings
capacity, growth and competitiveness. Today many customers
demand a genuine commicment to sustzinability, [n particular,
public procurement processes often require participants to be
advanced i the area of sustainabilicy.

Business is conducted in accordance with guidelines for long-
term and healchy devclopment, based on the view that growth,
profitabiliey and sustainable development arc all interdependent.
In addition to financial requirements, goals and guidelines, busi-
ness 1s also conducted with high standards regarding ethics and
integricy. The business is based on close long-term relationships
with customers, suppliers and ocher business partners, and
AddLife emphasises the importance of acting professionally,
honestly and ethically. Sustainability is covered by the Group's
core value Responsibility: in AddLife's corporate culture, iwis a
given to act ethically in business, respect the environment and
accept social responsibility.

Examples of sustainability-related activities carried out in
2018 include:

* AddLife carried out its first supplicr assessment

* Strengehened focus on Code of Conduce and discrimination
within AddLife Academy

* Implementation of whistleblower function

* Leadership training and expanded course selection ar AddLife

Academy

” Biomedica, which was acquired en December 2018, 15 notincluded in the sustain-
abilny report.
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Sustainability governance
- Responsible market participant
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Business modet

AddLife combines the strength of a large company with the
dedication and business skills of a small enterprise in a decen-
tralised, entrepreneur-drven organisation. Each subsidiary is
responsible for its own business acuvities within the contexr of
the requirements for growth, profitability and sustainable
development sct by the Group. A requirement for the decen-
tralised structure to work is that the subsidiaries must conduct
business in accordance with the AddLife Code of Conducr,

which provides guidance in several areas related to sustainability.

Code of Conduct

AddLife supports the UN Global Compact (www.globalcom-
pact.org), the [LO Core Conventions (www.ilo.org), and the
OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises (www.oecd.
org). AddLife’s Code of Conduct is based on these principles

and is the foundaton of the Group’s sustainability efforts.

Along with the core values Simplicity, Accounrabilfty. Engage- CODE OF CONDUCT

ment and Innavauon, the Code of Conduct is the foundation

for how Addlafe’s Cmplo}/’ﬂﬁﬁ should behave 1n their daily work. Governance and division of responsibilities within the field of
The Code of Conduct applies to all AddLife subsidiaries and all sustainability follow AddLife's corporate governance principles:
employees.

AddLife aims to ensure that 100 percent of its employces
are aware of the AddLife Code of Conduct. Suppore ts pro-
vided 1n part through the AddLife Academy business school.
In 2018 the course Vision and corporate philosophy, which is
obligatory for all employees, was expanded with a block 1o
address the Code of Conduct and discrimination issues, We
also formulated a brochure based on the Code of Conducrt that
was distributed to all employees. In 2019 the Code of Conduct
will be added as an clement in morc courses at AddLifc
Academy, including through integration into an advanced
level of the Sales T course.

OQUTLOOK FOR 2019

Option to report anonymously In 2019 the focus en the Code of Conduct will continue,
including through integranion into an advanced level of

Tn 2018 a whistleblower funcrion was implemented to provide
the Sales 1 course at AddLife Academy.

cmplnyces le'ld OthCl' s(akeho]ders Wi[h [}‘IC oppormnity to rCPOff
As always in conjunction with acquisitions, all new empioy-
ees will complete the Vision and corporate philosophy
course at AddLife Academy

inappropriate conditions that may be in conflict with the Group’s
Code of Conducr. Information can be submitted completely
anonymously using a form on the AddLife website. Tn 2018 no

reports were submitted chrough the whistleblower funcron.

28 PR .



Business model

Small-scale business - large-scale wise

AddLife’s organisation is decentralised and entrepre-

neur-driven. Each subsidiary is responsible for its own

business acriviries wirhin the contexr of the requirements

for growth, profitability and sustainable development set

by the Greup At the same time they have arress o

AddLifc’s collective resoutces, nceworks and indusiry

expertise through the Parent Company and by exchang-

ing experiences with other companies in the Group. The

Parent Company ensures financial stablity, while provid-

ing toels and resources designed o help the subadiancs

o run thelr businesse s s ld\;ly anl rrll,iLlllly, The

Parent Company also runs the business school — AddLife

Academy — that all employees attend and which has an

important unifying function. The combination of the

strength of 2 large enterprise with the commitment and

business skills of the entrepreneur 1s an important factor

for success for the AddLife Group. e safeguards the oper-

ational mobility required to quickly understand and

embrace the rapid technological developments and

changes in the Life Science marker.

Code of Conduct

WORKING CONDITIONS
AddL fe strives to be arespected
and attractive empioyer that
provides for the persanal develop-
ment of its eniployees

WORKPLACE HEALTH
AND SAFETY

We strive to continuously improve
health and safety in the workplace
and to provide our employees with
a safe work environment

SALARIES AND WORK
Our employees’ terms of employ-
ment should at least meet the
minimum reguirements of navonal
legislanon or comply with
standards that are relevant where
we conduct business

GENDEREQUALITY

We strive to ensure that AddLife
employees are given equal
opportumnes for development,

traimng, compensaticn job content
and terms of employment - regard-
fess of pender

DISCRIMINATION

We strive to achieve a nan-discrim-
inatory corporate culture based on
responsibility and respect

FORCED LABOUR

We do not accept forced labour,
mnvoiuntary or uncompensated
labour of any kind.

CHILD LABOUR

Guidehines for our entire cperation
The UN Conventon on the Rights
of the Child - the ILG Convention
Concermng the Minimum Age for
Adrnission to Employment - the
Convenhan on the Prohabition and
Immediate Action for the Ehmina-
tion of the Warst Forms of Child
Labour

Complete version of the AddLife Code of Conduct

www.add.life

persanal appraace

Combimning the attnnutes
of a small company.

thevd bty

"Run a small-
scale business
on alarge
11
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DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS
Under no circumstances may any
employee be subjected tn corporal
pumshment or other forms of
physicat, sexval or psychological
punmishment, harassment or
coercion

FREEDOM OF
ASSOCIATION AND THE
RIGHT TO COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING

Our employees shall be free to
excrcise their legal nighttobe a
member of, organise or work for
organisations that represent therr
interests as employees,

PGLITICAL
INVOLVEMENT

We maintan neutrality towards
polihcal parties and candidates

. with the advan-
tages of alorge

company

reapurces

networks

COMIMUNITY RELATIONS
Each subsidiary in the Group works
to have a posibve social impact on
the communinies in which they
operate

ENVIRONMNMENTAL
POLICY

Qur envirenmental pohcy
expresses our desire to contnbute
to sustainable development and a
better environment through active
efforts to continuously reduce the
Group's environmentat impact

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We do not accept corruphion,
bribery or unfair ann-compettive
actions

COMMUNICATION

We mamtain an open atttude in
discussions with people affected by
the Group's aperations
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Stakeholder dialogues

Acdlife's pysstanport sne stakeroicers ot n
The rest imoao tant stakeho'oors zre customers, orp

Material issues

In 2017 AddLife conducred, with the assistance of external
consultants, stakcholder dialogues with subsequent materi-
ality analysis. Representatives of customers, suppliers and
owners were interviewed about AddLife’s sustamability
efforts and were asked to prioritise the most important sus-
rainability aspects. Selected employees were engaged in a
dialogue and a workshop was held for Group Management.
The purpose of the study was 1o develop the company’s sus-
tainabilicy efforts and to crearc a basis for sustainability
reporting.

An analysis of stakeholder expectations and require-
ments, combined with the iniportance of the areas for the
business, including the actual ability ro have an influence,
showed chat the aspects below are most important for
AddLite. These aspects and the sustainability targets linked
1o them are common for the enture Group. In addition wo
these aspects, the individual subsidiaries can also set and
implement their own targets.

No need for a new materiality analysis was identified
for 2018.
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The stakeholder dialogue 1s ongoing and AddLife strives to

ensure that it is transparent with a long-term approach. Based

on the dialogue, the most important issues are analysed asa

basis for ehe mareriality analysis.

* The ongoing dialogue with customers is conducted through
meerings, daily contact, support, training, advisory services,
procurement specifications, seminars, trade fairs and cus-

tomer qucstionnalres.

The dialogue wich suppliers and partners takes place through

procurement processes, supplier assessments and meetings.

The dialogue with employees takes place through daily con-
tact in projects and collaborative initiatives, staﬁmccllngs,
manager meetngs and internal training, as well as on a more
structured basis through performance appraisals and
employee surveys.

* The shareholders ultimately decide on the governance of
AddLifes through the Annual General Meeting. Individual
shareholders also have the opportunity to ask questions to the
Board and management at the AGM. Shareholders also
receive information through the website, annual report,

ncerim FEPOILS, tNVESIOr mectings and analyst meetings.




AREA ASPECT HOW WE WORK

¥ Environment » Product lifecycle management Page 34

¥ Social conditions ¥ Product safety Pages 28, 34
¥ Production and supply chain management

¥ Personnel » Work environment {health, safety and well-being) Pages 28, 32
* Discriminanon and harassment

# Human rights ¥ Work with the Code of Conduct Page 28

¥ Anti-corruption ¥ Anti-corruption and bribery Pages 28. 2%

¥ Work with the Code of Conduct

External networks

AddLife belongs ta many different types of networks to learn from, contribute to and
influence developments in Life Science. The industry organisations in the Nordic

countries have a number of subgroups in fields such as wound care, ICU. Surgery and
Sterile goods, in which AddLife's subsidiaries are involved and pursue specificissues.

AddLife and/or its subsidiaries are members of the following arganisations and

networks:

Swedish Lahtech
industry association in
laboratory technology

Swedish Medtech
industry association In
medical technalogy

Sweden Bio
industry organisation for
the life science industry

Dialab

indusiry association 1n
laboratory technology in
Denmark

Medikoindustrin
industry association in
medical technology in
Denmark

Melanor

industry association in
laboratory and medical
technofogy in Norway

Sailab

MedTech Finland, industry
association in laboratory
and medical technology

ESMA
European Sales &
Marketing Association

ESDREMA

The European Surgical
Dressings Manufacturers’
Assoclation
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The most involved

employees in the industry

Adol fefelds e Jew bal ousiness s arealec
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» AddLife’s decentralised orgamisauon with independent,
entrepreneur-driven subsidiaries encails a large responsibilicy
for the employees. Their dedication and expertise create the
necessary conditions for AddLife to be able to achieve its strare-
gic and business goals. The equipment 1s often technically
advanced and che services are knowledge-intensive, at the same
time that good relationships with customers and suppliers are a

facror for success.

Corporate culture and business skills
AddLife’s own business school is central to the development of
the employees and thus for the development of the entire
Group. AddLife Academy is open 1o all cmployces; 1100 par-
ticipants have attended courses since its inception in 2016,

‘The course Vision and Corporate Philosophy is given to all
new employees and in conjunction with acquisitcions to provide
a solid foundation in the corporate culure, which AddLife

views as a key 1o success The business school also arranges
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Addiife’s Code of Canduct along with the corporate culture
form the basis for how AddLlife employees should act in their
daily work The corporate culture is surmmarised by the core
values

courses in sales, business skills, and public procurement proce-
dures, as well as customised courses in marketing, service and
finance. The 2017 employee survey identified a need to broaden
the sclection of courses and ro clanify paths for internal career
advancement. In 2018 a new leadership training program was
added chat is open to all cmployees with personnel responsibul-
ity. A new sales course for service technicians was also added,

as well as leadership training for service personnel.



. ama biomedical anawst and

worked firstata E:_sborston;f_m 4
-roupie of years, Then Fhad the

T opportunity tostart asan appinc:mon. '

specialist at Leica Biosystems,a
. world-leading provider of work flow

' salutions and automation in patholo-

thea focis on cancer d&agms» ;

through a cftstﬂbutor in Sweden my
- olleagues and { were part of the
: change anfj moveti to Triolab.

E Atﬁrst itwasa bifseary, Tna!ab was .

new in pathology and completely -

- unknown: That meant1had the -
aﬁportumty to-bepart of bmid:rzg
something up, and that Wwasfun and
challenging. The deal has made good
progress; today this is Triolab’s
second largest supplier.

" I've received. {'va attended several

courses at AddLife Academy: Vision

-and corporate philosaphy and.

Effective sales one and twe, The

- miost important safes techniques T've

learned are how to work with needs .

analysis and asking Speri questlons i
In many cases. customers need :

some‘rhmg ather thanwhat they
tiink: 1've also benefitted greatly

-, trom having worked in a‘lab, 1 éan see

the bottlenetks and what canBe.

“nproved. § consider myseff to b_e a
. consultant who gives recommenda-
. tiohs and sells sglutions, rather than-

products

I've also attended a leadership

training course at AddLlfe Academy.
Meeting other leadersat AddLife and -

sharing experiences was extreémely .

¥ dlfferent peopie‘ empioyees
] coileagues and customers

" ences; Btk
_and durmg the

The most rmrzortant core vawes for
me are accountability and engage-.
- ment. | feei that I contnhute and

" rewarding. We workedwith con-

E feele agemeﬂt.

cepts fike motivational steps, a

Workplace health and safety

Health, safety, well-heing and the work environment are high
prionties at AddLife. The Group's workplaces should offer a safe
and healthy work environment where employees enjoy coming to
work and experience a high degree of well-being. Preventon ni-
uatives protect the employees from betng expaosed 1o occupa-
tional health hazards. AddLife scrives to achieve an inclusive
corporate culture that results in job sansfaction, low sickness
absence, good relationships and low staff rurnover,

The employees shall be given equal opportunity for devel-
opment, education, compensation, work content and employ-
ment conditions, regardless of gender, age, ethnic or national
afhliation, religion, sexual orientation, disability or other dis-
rincrive characterisrics. An even gcnder diseribution is a major
consideration when hiring new employees. Employee surveys
are used 10 ensure that any discriminartion is made visible so

that measures can be implemented.

Systematic assessment

Since 2017 an annual employee survey is conducted to follow
up on cagagement and employee satisfaction. The survey is
designed to identify areas for improvement at the Group level,
in the subsidiaries and in work groups. A review is carried our
at each company to prioritise activities by workplace.

The survey also follows up the employee index as an impor-
tant sustainability goal that measures the health, safety,
well-being and the work environment. All employees are
informed of the outcome of the survey and the activities in
which it results. In the 2018 employee survey the employee

index remains high with excremely satisfied employees.

QUTLOOKFOR 2019

During the year the employee survey will be conducted
for the third time to ensure continuity and follow-up of
Addlife’s strengths and weaknesses as a responsible
employer
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Responsible and sustainable
producer and distributor
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» AddLife has about 1,400 suppliers all over the world and
places high demands on them regarding sustainable production
on all levels: inancial, soc1al and environmental. Because of its
posiuon as a disrriburor, the company mainly has an indirect
impact on suppliers regarding mauters such as choice of mateni-
alS, raw ma(crlﬂls, packaging and traﬂspﬂrt me[hod. CD“SC'
quently, AddLife aims to closely cooperate with the suppliers to
achieve long-term and positive changes. The goal is for all sup-
pliers to live up to AddLife’s Code of Conduct. Moreover,

Environmental
policy

Our environmental policy expresses the Group’s desire to help
achieve sustainable development and to improve the environ-
ment We proactively work to continuousky reduce the direct
and indirect environmental impact of the Group. A cyclical
approach and conservahon of natural resources are important
cornerstones for our business.

Al important decisions incorporate the environmental
perspective, with the aim of creating long-term value for the
Group's customers. employees, shareholders and for society as
awhole, Our environmental efforts shall also be conducted
within the framework of our business concept and be an
integral part of the operational work. Ultimately, this includes
taking into account the entire Jife cycle of the goods and
services we offer, Through the high level of expertise among
our employees and by constantly increasing our knowledge of
environmental impact, we can have a totaf picture of environ-
mental issues. Environmental measures should be taken to the
extent that they are technically possible, economically feasible
and environmentally justified.

Supphiers are encouraged to act in line with our enviranmental
policy. Supphers must also be aware of and comply with
requiremnents under national legislation, regulations and
industry standards. At a minimum, suppliers must engage in
safe handiing of hazardous waste and substances.
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AddLife requtres suppliers to respect fundamental human
rights and 1o treat employees in accordance with the [LO
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Righes at Work.
Customers primarily include hospitals and laboratories within
health care, research, colleges and universiuies, as well as the
food and pharmaceutical industries. The majority of customers
are wn the public sector, where sales take place through public
procurement and sustainabilicy is often a criteria. Conse-
quently, alf participants in the Life Science market are forced 1o
work actively and deliberately with sustainabilicy issues.

Supplier evaluation

In 2018, a supplier evaluation was conducted to analyse sus-
tainability risks in AddLife’s supplier chain. AddLife also
reserves the right to conduct unannounced inspections to
follow up on each supplier and manufacturer wo ensure compli-

ance with the Code of Conduct.

New EU regulations

High product safety wich requirements for compliance is fun-
damental in Life Science. Two new EU reguladions with regu-
latory rightening came into force i 2017 and apply in parallel
with earlier legislation during a transuion period thar extends
to 2020 for medical technology (MDR) and 2022 for labora-
tory technology {IVDR). One significant change is that medi-
cal device legislation now no longer applies solely to
manufacturers, but also to other stakeholders, including dis-
tributors. AddLife’s subsidianes are preparing for and actively
following the ongoing gradual implementacion of the

regulations.

OUTLOOKFOR 2019

Work with supplier evaluations will continue. During the
year a review will be carried out to ensure that all subsidi-
aries have processes and procedures for checking new
suppliers



Value chain
@

SUPPLIER
{PRODUCT OFFERING)

v

HEALTH CARE, HOSPITALS,
LABORATORIES

o >
I

DISTRIBUTOR

{5ALES ORGANISATION)

N

s ":'ceo MEDIPLAST

_ Medxplast has hrgh standaa'ds regard-
U ingsustainability and measures to

improve the environment are viewed

" asinvestments. Environmental

_initiatives continue throughout the

" fife eyéle of the products: from raw

*_materials. production and fransporta-

tion: to customer use and waste

‘management, This applies bothfor :
Cin-house preductivrrand products
“from other wppilers

‘It is a'given forusanda paSSfDﬂ when _
working inLife Scienge, it'¢a bit fike a

calling, we've already chosen a job

where we can make @ difference and

improve people's ives,” savs Johan

. Bongstorp, CEO of Mediplast.

'The:cr_.}mpatw engages in contiaual
dialogue with the regional administra-

tors and the hospitals about' what'
sustainability requirements could

‘potentially have a major ;mpact.
" Gollaboration between industries and :

" eustomers is important to drive’
deve lepments in a certain dsrecnon

One areain wh;ch Medspiast Ba

. wiorld feader is PVC-free consuma-

*“biés.The products are free-of carcino- '_ :

' ~genic¢ and endocrine-disrypting

‘substances.a reqmrement m most of.

. i Europe

' The company has dedicated consider-
able effort to its own fogistics chainto -

reduce carbon emissions: According
to a target set in 2016, 75 percent of

.-production in taly would be shipped
by rail, with the option to choose orily.

envirorimentally certified road’
transport services. This targethas,
gradually been increased and in 2018,

- W0 percent of all transports from
s Italy Were by fa:!

Fackagmg isalsg sy area of focus. The: '

steriie packaging of the productsis.

‘made of special paper and special . -
-, plastic, which are then placed in gaperf :

packaging made 6f anbldsched.

cellufose, Packaging f¢ shsppmg

purposes consists of corrtigated:
board with a certain proportion of

- recycled material and the degrée of

ﬁltmg In the packagmg is cptimssed

A new_icg:st;c.s centrein Malmq Co
opened in the fall of 2017, By gather-
ing the products ina single location
the total number of fransports has -

been reduced and some fransports
between different logistics centres .

haue been ehmmated

‘_Th;s.c!ear exam_ple shows how -

(CUSTOMER FOCUS)

- Bangs’corp n 2619 we'
ta wnri{ thh our !og;sncs cham

g by air. Since m nitoring
< began in 2044, the number.of trips -

within the Nordic regionhas declined ;- /.
and: some frips have been repiaced by o

" environmental standpoint by

_' - 30 percent annually by switching !
i ervironmendally classified carg s
accord’mg o the Swecinsh Tn anspn

but the:r range and pricing must”
improve first. Charging posts have .
already been ordered and will be
instailed cutside the ofﬁce th:s
'summer N .

“business benefit and environmental 1 :
benefit go hand in hand.” says Johan
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Material sustainability-related
risks and risk management

Operational sustainability risks

If AddLife’s sustainability efforts are inadequate, there is a risk of negative impact. These risks can be avoided through preventive measures.
Below 15 a description of identified risks based on prioritised sustainability aspects and how they are managed

RISK AREA

RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL
IMBPACT

MANAGEMENT

Work environment
- health, safety and
well-being

Risk that employees are injured in an
accident at work in the production
environment, or that injury arises due to
the psychosocial work environment

Clear occupational health and safety procedures carried out for
preventive purposes Regular evaluation of risks to allow protective
measures to be taken to minimise them Employee surveys conduct-
ed annually. A whistieblower function has been set up.

Discrimination and
harassment

Risk of offensive treatiment, employees or
supphers who do not comply willi currersd
laws related to equal treatment, work
groups that do not work. Risk of damaging
relatienships internally in the company as
well as with customers and supphers.

Discrimination, harassment. abuse and threats are not permitted A
well-established corporate culture with a shared value system s a
preventive measure that serves as a compass for all empiovees A
common Code of Conduct is supported through courses at AddLife
Academy. Suppliers are required to follow the ILO Dediaranon on
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work,

Product safety

Product risk mainly consists of incarrect
results from an instrument, or incorrect
handhing of a product, which could resultin
injury to patients or staff.

Systems for monitorng products ensure reporhng to customers
suppliers and authorities, which in turn entail correcuve measures
Relevant product information to prevent risks from reaching the
customer through a system of Field Safety Notices (FSN) and Field
Safety Corrective Actions {(FSCA)

Product lifecycle
management

Customers set requirements for material
choices, transport methods and packaging
If the products do not meet customer
requirements when a tender s followed
up, there is a risk of josing the contract

The subsidiaries have pracedures in their production regarding
informed choices of raw materials, packaging and transport meth-
ods Similar requirements are placed on suppliers’ products.
AddLite's subsidiaries have recycling procedures.Through support
and maintenance of instruments, AddLife helps to ensure their life
span. Contaminated products and instruments are destroyed by the
customer,

Production and
supply chain
management

Risk that products that are not CE or IVD
approved come out on the market, or that
a supplier does not comply with AddLife’s
Code of Conduct.

Supplier evaluations are carried out before a new supplier is
approved These evaluations ensure that the supplier follows
AddLife's Code of Conduct or has its own equivalent Suppher
evaluations are carried out on an ongoing basis to ensure sustain-
abie production

Worlk with the Code
of Conduct

Risk that employees and suppliers do not
comply with AddLife’s Code of Conduct,
ncluding sustainability working conditions.
human rights and anti-carruption.

Efforts to ensure that the business is characterised by respons:ble
behavicur towards employees, customers, owners, suppliers,
authorities and the community are constantly underway. The Code
of Canduct is supported daldy internally in relationships and
leadership, through employee appraisals, etc The Code of Conduct
15 also supported through courses at AddLife Academy AddlLife
partners are required to follow internationally recognised principles
for anti-corruption, the work environment, sustainability and
human rights Compliance with the Code of Conduct is evaluated in
ongoing contractual relanonships.

Anti-corruption and
bribery
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Risk of occurrence of corruption and
bribery, people with inappropriate or
criminal behaviour aimed at achieving
financial or personal gain

AddLife has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption, as is clearly
stated in the Code of Conduct and which 1s communicated to and
followed by alt employees in the Group. Employees learn about the
corporate philosophy and business skills through AddLife Academy.
A corporate culture 1s thereby created in which all employees have a
comrmon approach with high ethucal and moral standards. The
whistleblower function that has been established can be used by
both by employees and externally through the company's website.



Goals and outcomes 2018

AREA

ASPECT

GOAL

GUTCOME 2018

QUTCOME 2017

Social conditions

Product safety

Number of notices (FSN and FSCA] from
suppliers that entailed corrective actions for
products

Production and supply chain management
Percentage of new suppliers who completed
supplier evaluation

100%

32

61%

38

61%

Personnel

Work environment (health, safety and
well-being)

Employee index from employee survey
[maximum score s 5 0)

Discrimination and harassment
Number of employees who experienced
discrimination at work over the past year

4.30

3.94

12

4.02

15

Human rights

Work with the Code of Conduct
Percentage of employvees who are aware of
AddLife's Code of Conduct

100%

82%

77%

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption and bribery
Total percentage and nature of confirmed
incidents of corrupbon
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Four reasons to own AddLife

Attractive non-cyclical emerging market

The laboratory and medical technology market is relatively insensitive to economic fluctuations It s character-
ised by stable growth, mainly driven by population growth with an aging population, which increases the demand
for AddLife’s products for both health services and research. Historically, annual market growth where we
operate has been 2-4 percent.

Cash flow finances growth

Addtife grows with profitability and our subsidianes have a strong cash-generating abulity. which alfows for
direct yield and financial muscle for acquisitions and investments.

Clear strategy to create additional growth

Addiife has substantial experience of acquisifions, with an established process for identifying candidates and for
completing successful acquisitions. The aim is for the acquired companies to continue to develop based on thewr
own strengths and supported by a financially strong owner with a solid understanding of the market The
acquisitions are an integrated aspect for contributing to proft growth according to the Company’s financial
targets

Strong market position and long contract terms

Adduife's subsidiaries have strong sales orgamisations with high technelogical knowledge and good long-term
customer relationships. Our broad product portfolio creates advantages of scale and value for the Group.

Share price for AddLife
260

240
220
200
180
1460
140
120
100

Addlife

Stockholm
Stack
Exchange
Index
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The share

AddLife was listed on Nasdaq Stockhalm, Nordic Mid Cap List, on
16 March 2016. AddLife’s market capitalisation on 31 December
2018 was SEK 4,677 million {4,025).

Market performance of the share and turnover

AddLife increased in value 16 percent during the financial year.
The OMX Stockholm index on the Stockhelm Stock Exchange
changed 8 percent in the corresponding period The highest price
paid during the year was SEK 217.97 and was quoted on 10 July
2018. The lowese was SEK 148.01 on 4 April 2018, The final price
paid before the end of the financial year was SEK 194.20. During
the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2018, 4.0
million (3.8) shares were traded with an aggregate value of approx-
imacely SEK 737.8 mullion (629.4). Broken down by trading day,
an average of 16,016 (15,144) AddLife shares were traded atan
average value of abour SEK 2.9 million (2.5).

Share capital

On 31 December 2018 share capital in AddLife AB amounted to
SEK 51,125,197 There were a total of 25,097,814 shares in the
Company, including 1,011,766 Class A shares and 24,086,048
Class B shares. The nominal value of each share was SEK 2,037.
Each Class A share carries ten votes and each Class B share carries
one vote. All shares give the same righc to dividends. Only the
Class B share is listed on Nasdaq Stockholm.

Key indicators per share
Datain key indicators per sharervelate to 32 months.

Dividend policy

The Board of Dircctors of AddLife have the goal of proposing a
dividend corresponding to 30-50 percent of profit after tax. When
determining dividends, the Company’s Board considers invest-

ment needs and other facrors thar it deems relevant.

Rightsissue

In February 2019, AddLife AB completed a rights issue which
provided approximately MSEK 501 before deduction for issuc
costs. The issue was oversubscribed by 68 percent. As a result of
the rights issue, AddLife’s share capital has increased with SEK
7,184,142 to SEK 58,309,340. The total nuinber of shares will
increase by 144,538 A shares and 3,382,221 B sharcs, to a toral of
28,624,573 shares, of which 1,156,304 as class A shares and
27,468,269 as class B shares.

Larnings per share, SEK

Equity per share, SEK

P/E ratio

Highest price paid during the financial year, SEK

Lowest price paid during the financial year, SEK

Last price paid, SEK

Market capitalisation, SEKm

Average number of shares autstanding after repurchases, 000s
Number of shares outstanding at year-end, 000s

Number of shareholders at year-end

Share class Number of shares
Class A shares, 10 votes per share 1.011,766
ClassBshares 1votepershare 24,086,048
Total number of shares befare repurchases 25,097,814
Of which repurchased Class Bshares 468,450
Total number of shares after repurchases 24,629,364
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2018 2017

536 495

37.80 3095

362 344

217.97 19550

148.01 12900

194.20 170 5G

4,677 4,025

24,138 24 347

24,629 24172

3,849 4,043

Percentage

Number of votes o mm;mfmcapital o of votes
10,117.660 40 296
24,086,048 %0 704
T 3az03708 0000 100.0 100.0
19 14



Largest shareholders in AddLife 31 Dec. 2018 Percentage
Number of Number of S
Shareholder Class A shares Class Bshares of capital of votes
RoosGruppen AB 4469.923 2,552,494 1228 2150
Tom Hedclius 451,800 5,062 186 1341
SEB Fonder 0 2,301,167 9.35 4682
Swedbank Fonder 0 1,805 986 7.34 536
Verdipapirfond Odin Svenge 6] 1414 564 575 419
State Street Bank & Trust Company O 1 160,060 471 344
Lanneho Fander 0 1,100,000 447 326
J P Morgan Chase & Co 0 1,059,109 4.30 314
State Street Bank & Trust Company Boston ¢ 766,425 311 227
Livforsakringshotaget Skandia 0 696 205 283 206
Sandrew AB 0 400,000 244 178
HSBC TRINKHAUS AND BURKHARDT AG 0 581,507 236 172
Per Save 18750 367892 157 145
NTC FIDELITY FUNDS NORTHERN TRUST 0 412,422 168 122
Skandiafonder O 4vZe7 166 121
Total 15 largest shareholders i 940,473 15,231,590 65.71 73.03

Size classes

% of share Number of % of
Number of shares capital shareholders shareholders
1-500 14 2,968 770
501-1000 1.1 369 9.6
1.001~5 000 29 339 88
5,001-10.000 18 b4 16
10,0071 -15.000 05 11 03
15,001 -100.000 101 62 16
100,001 - 822 42 1.1
Number of Percent of
Holdings by category 2018 shareholders share capital
Swedish shareholders 3,593 5828
Foreign sharcholders - 262 0 A172
'—R';'tai S e T 3,855 - 100.00
Legal persons 424 8228
Natural persons e B4G2 1772
Total o T h 3,855 100.00
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Quarterly data

Business areas

Net sales by business area 2018 2017

Quarterly data, SEKm Y Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Qi
Labtech 110 325 364 352 415 299 336 343
Medtech 275 253 258 245 253 218 236 233
Parentcompanyand Group ems e e e ot + A e e <o s e e o e
The AddLife Group 685 578 622 597 668 517 572 576
EBITA by business area 2018 2017

Quarterly data, SEKm T 77@4a @3 @2 Q1 a4 a3 Q2 a1
Labtech 52 33 41 39 52 25 39 35
Medtech 29 19 25 21 29 22 21 21
Parent company and Group items -7 -1 -3 -3 -2 -3 -3 -2
EBITA 74 51 63 57 79 44 57 54
Depreciation/Amortisation intangible

assets -19 -20 -20 -18 -9 -18 -17 -14
Operating profit 55 31 43 39 &0 26 40 40
Pnancewncomeandeosts 2 2. -1 S S DR SO
Profit after financial items 53 29 42 34 57 25 38 37
Net sales by business area 12 months ending

31Dec.18 31Dec.17 Change%

Labtech 1,452 1,393 4

Medtech 1,031 940 10
Parent company and Group tems - - e e e
The AddLife Group 2,482 2,333 6

EBITA and EBITA margin by business area, as well as operating profit for the Group

12 months ending

"31Dec.18 % 31Dec.17 %

Labtech 165 114 151 108
Medtech 94 Q2 93 9.9
Parent company and Group rtems -14 -10

EBITA 245 9.9 234 100
Arnornzation of intangible

assets =77 -68
Operating profit 148 6.8 166 71
Finance income and costs -10 -8

Profit after financialitems 158 158
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Multi-year review

Dateinmulti-year review relare to 12 months

SEKm, unless stated otherwise 2018 2017 2016 2015/2016 2014/2015Y 2013/2014% 2012/2013v
Net sales 2,482 2,333 1,938 1,562 1057 984 Q07
Operating profit 168 166 148 106 107 104 99
Finance income and costs -10 -8 -6 -6 -2 -7 -1
Profit after financial tems 158 158 142 100 105 102 58
Profit for the year 129 120 112 78 80 78 74
Intangible non-current assets 1,465 1,153 870 735 193 202 211
Property, plant and ecquipment 110 /5 48 59 31 26 27
Financial assets 48 13 11 10 8 87 48
Inventaries 408 271 252 213 83 81 70
Current receivables 575 368 361 248 245 140 121
Cashang cash equivalents. D 1 PR S £ B Lo e
Total assets - 2668 1891 1577 1,277 643 613 609
Equity attributable to the sharcholders 931 748 717 347 263 271 292
Non-controlling interests 1 - - - ] 1 1
Interest-bearing iiabilities and provisions 943 400 381 549 101 30 85
Non-interest-beanng habiltties and provisions 794 943 279 81 . @ns e 2
Totalequityand liabilities 2668 1891 1577 1277 643 613 609
EBITA 245 234 189 135 120 116 110
LBITAmargin, % 99 100 9.7 87 113 118 i21
Earnings growth EBIIA, % 47 24 47 13 4 5 16
Capital employed 1,874 1,347 1098 896 364 362 378
Working capital, vearly average 397 369 304 211 127 119 106
Financial net habihties 882 588 366 538 19 13 -27
Qperating margin, % &8 71 7.6 68 10.2 1046 109
Profit margin, % 64 68 73 64 g9 10.4 108
Return on equity, % 16 17 21 25 30 28 25
Return on capital employed, % 11 13 15 14 28 238 27
Return on working capital {(P/AWC) 62 63 &2 64 94 97 103
Eaouity ratio, % 35 10 45 27 41 44 48
Debt/equity rabo, imes 10 08 Q5 16 c4a 03 03
Net debt/equity ratio, times 09 0.8 05 16 c1 00 01
interest coverage ratio, times 23 33 17 16 35 40 33
Financiat net habilibies/FRITDA, multiple 33 23 18 36 G1 01 02
Earrings per share, SEK 536 4 G5 4 87 415 506 4 90 4.64
Earmings per share, SEK 734 855 579 627 758 570 746
Equity per share, SEK 3780 3095 29 40 17 60 1655 16 98 18 3%
Average number of shares, Q00 24,118 24321 22,950 18,749 15,892 15892 15,892
Share price as at 31 December (31 March), SCK 19420 17050 13775 108 00 - - -
Cash flow from operating activities 178 208 133 118 120 G2 119
Cash How from investing activities -381 -338 -198 272 -15 -12 -20
Cash flow from financing acovities 249 125 -55 87 -100 -116 -76
Cash flow for the year 45 -5 -120 -67 5 -36 23
Average number of employees 420 579 459 370 284 274 259
Number of employees at year-end 873 592 545 427 286 280 273

il The comparative years have heen prepared as combined finandial statements For accounting policies relsting to combined finanoal statements, soe Addl ife < Annoat Repot
2015/2016
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Administration Report

1 January 2018 ~ 31 December 2018

The Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer for AddLife
AB (publ}, Company Registration No. 556995-8126, hereby
present the annual report for the 2018 financial year. Corporate
Governance repore 1s part of the administracion report and are
presented on pages 54-59. The company's sustainability report is
available in the annual report and Consolidated Financial State-

ments on pages 26-37.

Operations

AddLife is an independent player in Life Science consisting of 43
operating subsidiaries in the Labtech and Medcech business areas.
The Group has 873 employees in 23 countrics and offers high-
quality products, services and advisory services Its customers are
primarily hospitals and laboratories within health care, research,
colleges and universittes, as well as the food and pharmaceutical
industries AddLifc is the Nordic market leader 1n several niche
areas of diagnostics, biomedical research and laboratory analysis,
as well as medical technology. We are also represented in Eastern
and Central Europe, as well as in the UK and China. The
AddLife share has been listed on NASDAQ Stockholm since
March 2016.

Market trend during the year

The Life Science markert in the Nordic countries continued to
develop favourably in 2018. Undecrlying growth is primarily
driven by the population increase, structural changes and rapid
technological developments. Demographic research indicates
that the proportion of the population that is age 80 or older will
double over the next 20 years. In order for society to meet s
future obligations, health services must work more efficiently,
prevennively and in greater collaborauon with both the business
community and academia. Various initiatives are underway in
the Nordic region to move care and therapy from hospitals to
homes. All of the Nordic countries are also focusing on Life
Science in various ways to strengthen the competiuveness of
their respective countries in Life Science rescarch.

AddLife’s value proposiuon for researchers, health carc and
home care is attractve in the market and makes a difference by
contributing to both patient and social benefit by offering new
treatment options, proactive diagnostics, technical aids and

digital solutions for beth institutional care and care at home

Key events during the year

In 2018 a votal of five acquisitions were completed, which
together contribute about SEK 750 million o annual sales, with
abour 300 new employees. An agreement was also signed with
Wellspect HealthCare for the acquisition of its business in the

product arcas surgery and respiration. The deal will close in
2019 and is expected to add annual sales of about SEK 170
million.

The acquisition of Biomedicza and the agreement with Well-
spect HealchCare, form the basts for the next step for AddLife.
AddLife has taken the step out of the Nordic region, added inter-
esting new markets and expanded the share of own products in
Medtech. AddLife’s market has expanded from the Nordic
tegion to also include Central and Eastern Europe, therehy creat-
ing favourable conditions for long-term profitable organic and
acquisition-driven growth in new markers,

In the fourth quarter of 2018 the Board of Direcrors decided
to raise abour SEK 500 million through a rights issue to
continue our expansion and to acquire more interesting compa-
nies for our Group, with the aim of achieving our long-term goal
of annual earnings growth of 15 percent. The issue was fully
subscribed and completed in February 2019.

Performance by quarter

First quarter

The Nordic markets continued to perform well and Life Science
i1s a prioritised field in all of the Nordic countries. March was
Wcakcr, hOWCVe[. hfc‘luSC QuUr CUStoImers were lCSS ﬂCtiVC due o
the Easter holiday. Growth was rebust in diagnostics within
several producr segments, especially solutions in molecular biol-
ogy and microbiclogy. Flu season started during the quarter with
high reagent sales to diagnostic laboratories. The continued
improvement in the Finnish market for both rescarch and drag-
nostics entailed stronger sales for the quarter. Instrument sales o
diagnostic laboratories were high in Sweden for the quarrer, but
slightly lower in other countries, while consumable sales for
previously delivered instruments were stable in all markets,
Dermnand has been steady for advanced microscopes in particular
for academic research, bur alse for industry. Our sales to the
pharmaceutical industry in Denmark have been stable for the
quarter. Startup of our new operation in the Baltic region is
proceeding according o plan,

T'he sales erend for our own mstruments outside of che
Nordic countries was stable dunng che quarter and the US
market has recovered somewhat. We signed a contract with a
distribucor in the US thar will take over our own sales operation
there.

Business conditions remained unchanged in the Nordic
markets and the trend in sociery, with a growing and aging
population suffering from chronic diseases thar require maore
care, is clear in all countries.

The market in Sweden continued to be favourable for our
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business areas, wich both health services and the laborarorics
continuing their investments. The Swedish Government further
consolidated its aspiration for Sweden to become a leading Life
Science nation in February by opening a permanent office fou
Life Science issues in the Minstry of Enterprise and Innovation.

Acrivity was also high in Denmark, with public investments
in new hospitals. Cutbacks in public funding for Life Science
research in recent ycars have led to increased dependence on
various private funding sources. Our sales to the pharmaceurical
industry in Denmark were stable for the quarter,

The market situation in Norway was favourable, with
continued government initiatives in both health care and
research. A new rescarch laborarory 1n Osla celebrated its grand
opening in March to promote collaboration berween research
and the business community, with the aim of increasing the
share of Life Science companies in Norway, as well as boosting
Norwegian exports in the field. Demand was robust for our
point-of-care products, which are mainly used in primary carc
and home care.

The uncertainty in Finland related to postponement of the
comprehensive healthcare and social services reform until 2020
remained. Nevertheless, the investment climate remained
favourable for research and diagnostics and our Finnish Labtech
companics experienced strong growth in the quarter. However,
the trend for sales to health services in the Medrech business area
was weak.

The wrend for exports of our own healthcare products
outside of the Nordic countries was favourable, especially in the
Benelux countries, where growth has been robust for a long
time. The sales trend for our own instruments outside of the
Nordic countiies was stable during the quarter and the US

markert recovered somewhat.

Second guarter

The trend in the markets where AddLife was active continued 1o
be favourable. The trend in society with a growing and aging
population suffering from chronic diseases that require lengthy
treatment is clear throughourt the Nordic region.

In Sweden, the govcrnmcn['s Life Science office has formu-
lated a roadmap with prioritised areas to further strengthen
Sweden as a Life Science nation. Increased collaboration involv-
ing health care, academia and the business community is essen-
tial to consolidate Sweden as a research narien and to ensure
sustainable welfare with access ro innovations and new
technology.

Denmark’s government has adopted a growth plan for the
Life Science industries, and the pharmaceutical industry in
particular will be further serengthened. The pharmaceutical
industry, which has experienced positive growth, has imple-
mented several staff cuthacks over the past few years, but contin-
ues to invest in both research and production.

The Norwegian Life Science industry is growing from year
to year. Major governmentinitiatives in both health care and
research continued, with a strong tocus on cancer, a research area
in which Norway wants to occupy a leading position. There is

also an explicit pohirical objective for more older individuals to
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remain living at home longer, with a growing need for various
assistive devices for home care.

In Finland, discussions continue regarding the health care
and social services reform. In June dhe government presented the
aim of the reform, which is to offer equal reaument throughour
the country beginning in 2021. Several questions remain regard-
ing what this will entail for the various stakeholders and the
market is therefore perceived as caunous within certain segments,

Our export markets are performing well with high demand
for our proprietary products for use in both health care and
laboratories.

Third quarier

The markec trend was stable with growth 1n both of our business
areas. The Swedish market continued to be favourable for our
operations. Sales were robust, even though about one fourth of
all hospital beds were closed during the summer holidays.
Growth in the Danish market was somewhart weaker during the
quarter for several of our operations and the trend is shifting
towards competing for larger procurement contracts in health
services. The Danish pharmaceutical industry announced addi-
tional staff cuts. Finland continued to work on its extensive
healthcare reform initiatives. Many aspects related to the reform
remain unclear and some projects have been placed on hold, but
the feeling is that demand stabilised during the third quarter. At
the same tme consolidatnon was underway among both private
and public stakeholders in the Finnish laboratory market, which
will probably cntail changes in purchasing patterns in the long
term. The market in Norway demaonstrated favourable growth
and govcrﬂmcﬂt pOllC}' fOCUSCd Oon Ncw hOSPi[a}S and Cnﬂbliﬂg
the elderly to remain at home longer.

Exports of proprietary products to health services outside
the Nordic region also demonstrated continued good growth
with various options to 2dd more products 1o our export offer-
ing. Sales of our own advanced instruments outside of the
Nordic countries were robust especially in China and the effects
of the changed sales model in the US entailed improved financial
performance for the business.

Fourth quarter

Some of our companics fell short of their sales from the previous
year. For the quarter, instrument sales to both academic research
facilities and pharmaceurical companies in Denmartk were weak
because of customers’ savings requirements.

In Norway, demand in home care was high for the full year,
but purchases from our customers were temporarily lower in
December. We see an increased underlying demand in home care
in the Nordic countries for products in welfare technology and
the bathroom segment to various institutions and senior housing
faciliries.

Stable growth continued 1n both Sweden and Norway, with
a favourable market situation 1n both health services and
research Sweden’s ambition to be a leader 1n research in the Life
Sciences will further benefit che research marker moving
forward. The Norwegian government is continuing to invest in

both rescarch and new hospitals. Our Finnish companies



performed well, especially in diagnostics, and despite some
delayed projects due to the comprehensive health care reform,
demand in Medtech stabilised over the last quarter.
Businesses outside the Nordic region that mainly sell our
own products contnued to perform well in the last quarter.

Acquisitions

AddLife is constantly looking for companies to acquire and is
engaged in discussions with several potential companies. Three
acquisitions were completed during the year. The acquisitions
for the year were implemented in the Medtech business area.

The underlying philosophy of our acquisitions has three main
pillars:

# The subsidiaries can make smaller add-on acquisitions te
strengthen operations within their niche.

# The business areas can expand and build market and/or prod-
uce positions in selected markert segments.

# The business areas can add new market segments in areas

where we see opportunicies to gain market leadership.
The following companies were acquired during the year:

@ Ossano Scandinavia AB On 23 February 2018 all shares in
Ossano Scandinavia AB were acquired and the company was
added to the Medtech business area. The company has five
employees and sales of about SEK 22 million. The acquisition
represents an expansion into the field of orthopaedics. After
the takeover, the busmess will be integrated in Mediplast AB.

# Food Diagnostics FDAB AB On 2 March 2018, all shares in
Food Diagnostics FDAB AB were acquired and the company
was added to the Labtech business area. The company has
three employees and sales of abour SEK 8 milhion. The acqui-
siton entails an entry into the field of food diagnostics. After
the takeover, the business will be integrated in diagnostics
company Triolab AB.

# Viind Korpinen Oy On 2 July 2018, afl shares in Viino
Korpinen Oy were acquired and the company was added 1o
the Medtech business arca. The company has around 15
employees and sales of about EUR 8 million. The acquisition

represents continued expansion into the home care indusery.
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& Laboren ApS On 3 December 2018 all shares in Laboren
ApS were acquired for the Labtech business area. The
company has two employees and sales of about DKK 8
million. The acquisition complements AddLife’s existing
product offering in laboratory equipment. The company will
be integrated 1nwo Holm & Halby A/S.

¢ Biomedica Group On 21 December 2018 all shares were
acquired in Biomedica Medzinprodukte GmbH for the
Labtech and Medtech business areas. The company has 280
employees, is active in I3 markets in Central and Eastern
Europe and has sales of aboue EUR 65 million. Biomedica
has a similar business model, structure and marker offering as

AddLife.

The rotal purchase price for this year's five acquisitions was SEK
499 million.

Had the acquusitions been completed on 1 January 2018,
their impact would have been an estimated SEK 750 million
(196) on consolidated net sales, SEK 56 million (38) on EBITA,
about SEK 38 million (22) on operating profit and about SEK
31 million (20) on after-tax profit for the year. AddLife gained a
rotal of 305 (58) employees through acquisitions during the year.

Financial development during the year

MNet sales and profit

The AddLife Group’s net sales rose by 6 percent (20) o SEK
2,482 million (2,333). Organic growth was 0 percent {5),
growth through acquisitions was 3 percent {14) and exchange
rate fluctuations had a favourable impact on net sales of 3
percent (1), corresponding to SEK 72 million {12}, EBITA
increased by 5 percent (24) during the financial year to SEK 245
million (234) and EBITA margin amounted to 9.9 percent
(10.0). EBITA includes acquisition costs of a total of SEK 8
million {2). Exchange rate fluctuations had a favourable impact
on EBITA of 3 percent (1), corresponding to SEK 7 million (1).
Net financial items were SEK -10 million (-8) and profir after
financial items was SEK 158 million (158). Profir after rax for
the financial year increased by 7 percent (8) to SEK 129 million
(120) and the effective tax rate was 18 percent (24). The lower
effective tax is attributable to the revaluation of deferred tax in

EBITA
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Norway and Sweden, which had a positive tax effece of abour
SEK 6 million. Earnings per share for the financial year
amounted to SEK 5.36 (4.95).

Profisaprity, firancal positon and cash How

The balance sheet increased in December through the acquisi-
tion of Biomedica. Return on equity at the end of the financial
year was 16 percent {17}, Return on capital employed toralled 11
percent {13). The equity ratio at the close of the financial year
was 35 percent (40). Equuty per share, excluding non-controfling
interests, totalled SEK 37.80 {30.95).

Return on working capital (P/WC) totalled 62 percent (63).
The long-term P/WC target for the Group and all of its compa-
nies is 45 percent. The profitability benchmark P/AWC ratio
encourages high operating profit and low levels of ted-up capr-
tal. When combined with the growth targer of 15 percenc, this
creates conditions that promote long-term profitable growth for
the companies and the Group. Average working capital, which
when calculating P/ C includes inventorics with the addition of
the net of accounts receivable and accounts payable, amounted to
SEK 397 million {369} at the close of the financial year.

The Group's financial net liabilities increased because of the
acqusitions during the year and at the Jose of the financial year
it was SEK 882 million {588}, including pension liabilities of
SEK 77 million (67). The net debt/equity ratin, calculated on
the basis of financial ner liabilities including pension liabiliies,
totalled 0.9 {0.8).

Cash and cash equivalents, consisung of cash and bank
balances cogether with approved but non-uiilised credit facilities,
totalled SEK 561 miilion (244) on 31 December 2018, The
Group's available eredit facilities stood at SEK 1,397 million
(762) as of 31 December 2018.

Cash flow from operarting activities reached SEK 177
million (208) during the financial year. The lower cash flow
comes from the change in tax paid of SEK 27 million is mainly
attributable to the paymenc of tax for 2017 in Norway, as well as
increased preliminary tax payments in all of the Nordic coun-
tries. Acquisitions of compantes amounted to SEK 334 millien
(296). Investments in non-current assers reached SEK 49 million
(43) during the financial year. Disposals of non-current assets
totatled SEK 4 million {1). Repurchase of treasury shares
amounted to SEK 35 million (37). Issued and exercised call
oprions totalled SEK 24 million (3). Dividend of SEK 53
million {37) was paid.

Business areas
AddLife's operations during the financial year were organised in
two business areas: Labtech and Medrech.

Labtech

Net sales rose by 4 percent (14) ro SEK 1,451 million (1.393)
during the financial year. Organic growth was 1 percent (7),
growth through acquisitions was 0 percent (7) and exchange rate
fluctuations were 3 percent {0). EBITA increased by 10 percent
(14) and amounted to SEK 165 million (151), representing an
EBITA margin of 11.4 percent (10.8).
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In general, the business area reported shghtly lower sales growth
throughout 2018 compared with previous years. Several of the
companies focused on strengthening their margins and profic
increased in the business arca. The first year in the Baltic region

had a strong starc with robust sales and earnings,

Medtech

Net sales reached SEK 1,031 million (940} during the financial
year, an increase of 10 percent (31). Organic growth decreased
by 1 percent (3}, growth through acquisitions was 9 percent {27)
and exchange rate fluctuations were 2 percent (1). EBITA
amounted to SEK 94 million (93), representing an EBITA
margin of 9.2 percent (9.9).

Growth in Medtech increased for the full year, driven by
acquisitions carried out during the year. Activiry in health
services and home care is robust and the business situation is
stable, but growth during che year was nort sufficient to compen-
sate for the weak first quarter. We sec an increased underlying
demand in home care in the Nordic countries for products in
welfare technology and the bathroom segment to various institu-

trons and senior housing facilities.

Risks and uncertainties

AddLife works with risk management on both a strategic and
operational level, Risk management involves identifying and
measuring risks and prevenring them from occurring, as well as
conrinually making improvements to reduce furure risks. Our
risk management focuses on business risks, financial risks and
other potentally significant risks such as legal risks. The AddLife
Group has policies and guidelines that provide responsible
managers with tools to identify deviations thar could develop
into risks. The level of risk in the operations is systematically
followed up in monthly reports, in which negartive deviations or
risks are identified and remedied.

AddLife’s earnings and financial position, as well as its strate-
gic position, are affected by various internal factors within
AddLife’s conrrol and various external factors over which
AddLife has limited influence. The external factors that are most
important for AddLifc are the economic situation, combined
with the market, competition and public procurement and
policy decisions.

In addirion AddLife is affected by financial risks such as
transaction exposure, translation exposure, financing and inrer-
est rate risk, as well as credit and counterparty risk. Sce Note 4
for a more derailed description of how AddLife manages finan-

cial risks.

Risks related to the market and the industy

Feonomy and market trencds

Demand for AddLife's services is greatly influenced by macro-
economic factors beyond the control of the Company, such as
conditions in the global capital marker, the state of the economy
in general and public finances. Demand among the Company's
customers is influenced by factors such as cheir willingness to
invest and access to financing. Factars such as consumption,

husiness investments, public sector investment, the volanhiry and



strength of the capital market and inflavion affect the business
and economic climate. A weakening of these conditions on some
or all of the markets in which AddLife operates could have mate-
rial adverse effects on the Company’s business, financial condi-
tion and results of operations.

A significanc share of the Company's sales are made 10
publicly funded activities in medical care, research and healch
services. Weakened public finances could have a neganive impact
on AddLife’s business and results of operations. The cost of
medical care and services in relation to GIDP is rising and there is
a risk thar this would reduce demand from the public secror and
increase pressure on prices, which could adversely affect
AddLife’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
Pubec procurement and pobiticel decsiors
Political decisions in the Nordic countries have resulted in a
decline in the number of contract custamers because of the
consolidation of regrons and county councils into larger encities.
As a result public tenders are now larger and contract periods
have often been extended. This change has resulted in an
increase 1n both pressure on prices and competition, while
making it difficult for smaller operators in the marker to partici-
pate in public tenders. Furthermore, because the industry is
consolidating on the supply side and larger merged suppliers
have a broader offcring, at the same ume that purchasc contracts
are becoming broader in scope, there s a risk that niche opera-
tors like the Company may be unable to participate in tenders.

Comnpetition

The majority of subsidiaries in the AddLife Group are active in
sectors that are vulnerable to competition and price pressure. In
some cases subsidiaries compete with operators that can offera
more complete range of goods or have better access o financing,
as well as large financial, technical, marketing and personnel
resources. Furthermore, because the industry is consolidating on
the supply side and larger merged supplicrs have a broader offer-
ing, at the same time that purchase contracts are becoming
broader in scope, there is a nsk thac niche operatorss like the
Company may be unable to participate in tenders. Furure
competitive opportunities for the subsidiaries depend on the
abilicy to be on the leading edge of technology, and react quickly
o new market needs. There is a risk that companies will not
successfully develop or deliver new business deals, or chat costly
investments, reseructuring and/or price cuts must be imple-
mented ro adapt the business to a new competitive situation.
Increased competition from current or new operators, or deteri-
oration of the abilicy of a subsidtary 1o meet new market needs,
could have a negative impact on the business, financial condition
and results of operations of both the subsidiary and AddLife.
There 15 a risk thar AddLife fails to retain, adapt to or become
established in niches in which price is not the sole determining
factor, or fails ro be sufficiently innovauve and quick enough to
adapt ro market trends and needs, or large operators may offer a
broader offering, which could have a negative impact on the
Company'’s business, financial condition and results of

operations.

ricks relnied 1o the Company

lecnnclesical neveloprent

AddLife is exposed to the risk that the various subsidharics in the
AddLife Group may not be able ro implement new technology
or adapt the product range and business model in time to be able
to take advantage of the benefits of new or existing technology.
Each such failure could have a material adverse effect on
AddLife's business, financial condition and results of operations.
The costs associated with keeping up with product and techno-
logical advances may be high and influenced by factors that are
fully or partially outside of AddLife’s control. Moreover, the level
and timing of future operating expenses and capital require-
ments could significantly differ from current estimates. Inabilicy
or unwillingness to finance these expenses could have a material
adverse effect on AddLife's business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Custar ers

AddLife has a large number of customers of varying sizes, some
of whom are public and some private operators. Because of the
number of customers and the Group structure, agreements with
customers vary in character with regard to factors such as
contract length, warrantics, liability limitations and scope, which
may cause difficulties in centrally forecasting the operations and
development of the different subsidiaries. In some customer rela-
tionships there are no wrirten customer agreements, which could
result in legal uncertainty regarding the content of the agree-
ment, Moreover, there is a risk that such variation could result in
unforesecen liability exposure for AddLife, especially in cases
where no standard terms and conditions are applicable for the
agreements, or in cases where no specific limitations of liability
have been incorporated into the agreements. Agreements subject
to public procurement are regulated by the customer's agree-
ment, which are frequently customer friendly and often have a
relatively short contractual period. At the end of the term of
public procurement conrracss, they are subject to rencwed public
procurement proceedings. resulung in uncertainty and thus risk
regarding the conrinued customer relationship or revised
contractual terms, including prices. These risks, if they materi-
alise, could have a negative impact on AddLife's business, finan-

cial condition and results of operations.

Supplers

In order to deliver products, AddLife depends on excernal
suppliers who must meet the terms of agreements regarding
matters such as volume, quality and delivery date. Incorrect,
delayed or mussing deliveries could in turn cause AddLife’s deliv-
eries to be delayed or incorrect. This may result in reduced diseri-
bution of the Company’s products, and potentially increased
costs. Moreover, AddLife could be adversely affected if the
Company'’s suppliers develop financial, legal or operational
problems, such as price increases or the inability to deliver prod-
ucts of the agreed guality. These factors could result in reduced
sales of AddLife’s produces or affect AddLife’s potential 1o
purchase the necessary products on time and at the right price in

order to deliver them o customers. 1f AddEade is forced to



purchase products from other supphers because of these facrors,
this could resule in increased expenses, such as for increased
quality controls.

AddLife has agreements with a large number of suppliers,
both in Sweden and abroad, over which the Company cannot
exercise control nor can it have full insight into their operations.
Consequently, AddLife is exposed to the risk that supplicrs could
act in a way that could harm AddLife. In the event of disputes
with a supplier there is a risk chat AddLife cannot obuain
compensation for full liability, regardless of whether AddLife
wins the dispute in court or through arbitration. In some
supplier relationships there are no written supplier agreements,
which could result in legal uncertainty regarding the content of
the agreement. Taken together, these factors could have a nega-
tive impact on AddLife’s business, financial condition and results
of opetations.

The majorisy of the Group’s supplier agreements have been
enrered into in accordance with the supplier’s terms of agree-
ment and are thus often supplier-friendly. Some supplier agree-
ments include undertakings regarding minimum sales volumes
for AddLife and if such volumes are nor achieved, the supplier
has the option to terminate the supplier agreement. Many
supplier agreements arc also governed by foreign law and dispute
forums outside of Sweden and the other Nordic countries, which
could result in a dispute becoming particularly burdensome
financially and includc limitations of Hability for the supplier,
which could mean thar AddLife lacks the ability to hold the
supplier to account if AddLife is liable in relation to a customer
or third party. Furthermore, these agreements include exclusiviry
commitments for AddLife.

In a longer perspective, AddLife does not depend on any
individual supplier to conduct business, but AddLife may
depend on a single supplier in the short term, The Company's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 9 {9) percent of net
sales for 2018. There 15 a risk that incorrect or delayed deliveries,
or the loss of one or several suppliers, could have negative conse-
quences for the business, financial condition and results of oper-
ations of the relevant subsidiary, which in turn could have a
negative impact on AddLife’s business, financial condition and
resules of operations. Moreover, the industry is undergoing
consolidation 1n this market and the number of suppliers is
decreasing. Thus there 1s a risk that AddLife will losc supplicrs
that are important for the Company.

Repuiation

AddLife and its subsidiaries are dependent on their reputation in
the exercise of their business. The reputation of these companies
depends on factors such as quality, communicarion to the
market, customers and suppliers and marketing as well as the
Company'’s general corporate profile. The Company’s reputation
is especially important in relation to current and new customers.
Problems related to qualicy, product liabilicy and safecy, as well as
operational and logistical problems, could have a negarive
impact on the reputations of both AddLife and the subsidiary in
question. Consequently, 1t may become more difficult w retain

existing customers or to gain new customers. Damage to the
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reputation of the subsidiary or AddLife could result in reduced
sales and also have a neganive impact on the potential for the
subsidiary and AddLife to grow, which could have a negative
impact on the business, financial condition and results of opera-

tions of both the subsidiary and AddLife.

Acgussitions aad dreestinents

AddLife has historically complered several acquisitions. Strategic
acquisitions will continue to be an important component of
AddLife’s growth strategy However, there is a nisk thar AddLife
will not be able to identify acquisition targets or 1o carry out
strategic acquisitions because of, for example, competition with
other acquirers or fack of financing. This could result in reduced
or declining growth for AddLife and AddLife might not achicve
its financial targets.

Acquisitions generally entail integration risks. In addition to
company-specific risks, the acquired company’s relationships
with important customers, key personnel and suppliers could be
adversely affected. Integration involves risks relating to the abil-
ity to 1etain skills and co the possibility of creating a common
culture. There is also a nisk that the integration process may take
longer than expected and that unforesecn costs associated with
the consolidation of operauons may arise. Moreover, expected
syncrgics may totally or partially fail 1o arise. 1t any of these risks
materialise in conjuncuon with future acquisitions, it could have
a negarive impact on AddLife's bustness, financial condition and
results of operations

Moreover, acquisitions could expose AddLife o unknown
abligations. Acquisitions usually involve not only the assump-
tion of all of the assets of the acquired company, but alse its obli-
gations Even if the acquired company’s operations are reviewed
prior to the acquisition and efforts are made to obtain the neces-
sary warrancies in the acquisition agreement, there is a risk chat
nar all potential obligations or commitments have been identi-
fied prior to the acquisition, or thaz the seller lacks the financial
ability to compensate AddLife in the event of a breach of
warranty. [n the event that AddLife fails to obtain the required
contractual prowection for such obligations or commirments it
could have a negative impact on AddLife's business, financial
condttion and results of operations.

Past and future divestments of businesses could further
expose AddLife to risks such as those pertaining to the terms and
conditions for the divestment of the relevant business, such as
warranties, indemnities and commitments in favour of the
purchaser with regard to the divested business. If any of these
risks related to past or furure divestments should materialise, it
could have a negative tmpact on AddLife’s business, financial

condition and results of operarions.

Goodwiil

Goodwill arises in business combinations, where the consider-
auon transferred, any non-conerolling interest and the fair value
of previously held interest (in stepwise acquisitions) exceeds the
fair value of acquired asscts and assumed liabilities thar are
recognised scparately, the difference is recognised as goodwill

Goodwill risk arises when a business under-performs m relation



to the assumptions that applied at the time of the goodwill valu-
ation. If Add1Life’s valuation of the acquired business should
prove to be ineorrect the Campany would be required to recog-
nise an impairment lass relating to the value of goodwill, which
could have a negarive impace on AddLife’s financial condition
and results of operations. Goodwill is tested annually, and if
goodwill is not deemed to have been correctly valued in such an
assessment, this may result jn an impairment loss being
recognised.

9]

AddLife applies a decentralised organisational model, which

msational risa

means that subsidiaries in the Group are largely responsible for
and conduct business independently. Group Management
controls, checks and monitors business in the subsidiaries,
mainly through the executive at AddLife AB serving as Chair-
man of the company and by concinually monitering develop-
ments, Corporate governance in a decentralised organisation like
the type at AddLafe places high demands on financial reporting
and monutoring and deficiencies in reporting and monitoring
encail a risk of inadequate operational control.

Currency exposure is handled at the subsidiary level through
forward exchange contracts, currency clauses or similar, and
must comphy with the Group's inrernal guidelines. If a subsidiary
fails 1o have adequate procedures to handle such currency expo-
sure, for exarple by deviating from the Group's guidelines, it
could have a negartive impact on rhe financial condition and
results of operations of the subsidiary and AddLife. The decen-
rralised organisational modet has historically been an advanrage
for the Group. However, there is a risk that the organisational
model will prove to be less suitable for meeting any furure
market challenges that should arise. AddLife’s market position
and competitveness could weaken as a result. Moreover, the lack
of speciahist expertise in the various subsidiaries, such as regard-
ing financial knowledge, could resulr 1n incorrect business deci-
sions and slow decision malung. Taken together, these factors
could have a negative impact on AddLife's business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Abinty o recruit and relanm otuff

AddLife’s continued success depends on experienced employees
with specific skills. There are key personnel both among senior
executives and among the Group’s employees in general. There is
arisk that ane or several senjor executives or other key personnel
could leave the AddLife Group on shorr notice. In the event that
AddLife fails to recruit suitable replacements for them or new
skilled key personnel in the furure, this could have a negative
impact on AddLife’s business, financial condition and resulrs of
operations.

Qwn production

Both business segments, Labtech and Medtech, include a small
operation for their own production of analyrical instruments,
equipment for microbiological analyses, home care products and
medical device consumables, The nsks associared with own

production are lIimited for the Group, but this production is

associated with risks related to product iability {see the subsec-
tion “Product liability” for more details on product liabiliry),
interruptions or disruptions in preduction and environmental
risks {see the subsection “Environmental risks” for details on
environmental risks), which could have a negative impact on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of

operations.

Prodict hakshty

AddLife could be subject to product liability claims or other
claims that the products produced or purchased are, or are
alleged to be, defective, or cause, or are alleged to have caused.
lnjury or properry da_magc. Pcfsoﬂal injury or properry dﬂmagc
caused by defective, poerly designed, or poorly construcred
products that do not meet acceprable quality standards could
have a negarive impact on AddLife’s reputation, financial condi-
tion and results of operations. If a product is defective, AddLife
may be forced to recall it. In such a situation there is a risk that
AddLife cannot make corresponding claims against its own
supphiers to recetve compensation for the costs incurred by
AddLife due to the defective product. Morcover, there is a risk
that product Habilicy claims and other product-related costs are
not fully covered by AddLife’s insurance policy. Product liabilicy
claims, warranty claims and product recalls could have a negauve
impact on Addlafe’s business, francial condinon and resules of

OPBFQUOIIS.

Ervironmenial risk

AddLife's subsidiaries are pnmarily engaged 1in commerce and
businesses that have a limited direct environmental impact. The
Group engages in limited production. In manufacturing, there is
a risk associated with environmental impact and responsibilicy,
which could have a negative impact on AddLife’s business, finan-
cial condition and resules of operarions. The Group does not
engage in any operations that require notification or thar require
a permit under the Environmental Code or equivalent legislation
outside Sweden. If the business should change to include opera-
tions that require a permit, or a business is acquired that is
required to have a permic, or if regulations should change so that
the current business requires a permit, this could have a negarive
impact on AddLife’s business, financial condiuen and results of
operatons. In connection with the acquisition of companies,
AddLife conducts a review to determine whether there is any
historical responsibility under the Environmental Code. Even if
the acquired company’s operations ate reviewed prior o the
acquisition and efforts are made to obtain the necessary warran-
ties in the acquisttion agrecment, there is a risk that not all
potential obligations or commitments have been identified prior
to the acquisiuon. In the event that AddLife fails o obrain the
required contractual protecrion for such obligations or commit-
ments it could have 1 negative impact on AddLife's business,
financial condraion and results of operations. AddLife owns a
few properties and a propercy owner may be hetd liable for envi-
ron mental d}lmdge CauSCd by periOUS Opcrator.‘i. El"lwron[‘ncn [3]
damage may be difficult wo detect, for example, in connrection

with the acquisition of a company. Guarantees provided by a
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seller do not always, in terms of the monetary amount or time,
cover a subsequent breach of an environmental guarantee. If
environmental damage should be discovered or anise in the prop-
erties owned by AddLife and the damage is not covered by the
guarantees provided, it cannot be precluded that AddLife will be
held liable, which would have a negative impact on the compa-
ny's reputation, business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Employees

At the end of the financial year the number of employees was
873, compared with 592 ar the beginning of the financial year.
Complered

acquistrions increased the number of employees by 305 (58).
The average number of employees in 2018 was 620 (579).

2018 2017
Average number of employees 620 579
percentage men 52% 51%
percentage women 48% 49%
Distrnbution by age up 10 29 years 9% 7%
30-49 years 55% 51%
50 years and up 36% 42%
Average ape AS years 46 years

AddLufe’s own business school — AddLife Academy — providesa
growth opportumty for our employees, builds a shared value
system and ensures the supply of leaders in the Group. In 2018
AddLife held courses in entrepreneunal skills, providing an
importanc platform from which to raise the level of professional-
ism among employees. AddLife also held the *Vision and corpo-
rate philosophy” programme to provide basic training for new
employces and employees at acquired companies. AddLife Acad-
emy also arranged courses in public procurement procedures and
leadership, as well as customised courses in marketing and

finance.

Research and development
The Group conducts 1ts own research and developmentto a
limited extent, mainly within Bielin in the LabTech business

aréa.

Environment

None of the Group’s Swedish subsidiaries engage in acrivities
that require a permit or noufication under the Swedish Environ-
mental Code Nonc of the foreign subsidiaries engage in acrivi-
ties subject 1o equivalent requirements for notification or
permits. None of the Group’s companies are engaged in any

environment-related disputes.

Remuneration to senior management

The Board of Directors intends to propose to the Annual
General Meeting in May 2019 that the guidelines for remunera-
tion to senior management remain unchanged compared with

what was decided at the AGM in May 2018:
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The guidelines shall apply for remuneration to the CEQ and

other members of AddLife’s Group Management {“Group
Management”}.

AddLife strives to offer a fair and competitive remuneration
package capable of artracting and retaining qualified employces.
The size of the overall package varies in relation to the perfor-
mance of the employee and the Group and may comprise the
different elements stated below.

A fixed salary forms the foundation of the total remunera-
tion. The salary should be competitive and reflect the responsi-
bilicies of the position. Fixed salaries are reviewed annually. Vari-
able compensation may be based on paramerers such as the
Group’s growth in carnings, profitability and cash flow. Annual
vartable remuneraton can be at most 40 percent of the fixed
salary. Retirement pension, sickness benefits and medical bene-
fits should be structured in accordance with applicable rules and
marker norms. Pensions should be based on defined-coneribu-
tion plans where possible, All or individual members of Group
Management may be offered other benefits thar are designed in
relation to market practice. These benefits shall not constitute a
material portion of woral remuneration.

The Board of Directors will evaluate whether or nota long-
term incentive programme should be proposed to the Annual
General Meeting and, if so, whether or nort the proposed long-
term incentive programme should involve the transfer of shares
in the company.

Members of Group Management shall observe a notice period
of six menths if they resign and are entided to a notice period of
12 months if terminated by the Company. Mcmbers of Group
Management whose contracts are terminated by the Company are
entitled to severance pay of up to 12 months' salary, in addivon to
salary and other employment benefits during the notice period.
No severance pay is payable on resignarion.

The Board of Directors retains the nght to deviare from the
guidelines for remuncration in individual cases where specific
reasons prevail. When such a deviation occurs, information to
this effect and the reasons for the deviation are to be presented ac
the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The Remuneration Committee appointed by the Board of
Diirectors prepares and submics proposals regarding remunera-
tion to the CEQ 1o the Board for decision. The Remuneration
Committee sets the remuneradon of other members of Group
Management based on proposals from the CEQO. The Board is
informed of the Remuneration Committee’s decisions.

Please see note 7 Emplayees and employee benefits expensc.

Parent Company
The operations of the Parent Company AddLife AB comprise
Group Management, business area management, consolidarted
reporting and financial management

Parent Company net sales rotalled SEK 38 mitlion (31) and
the resulr after financial items was SEK -1 mudlion {-14).
Balance-sheet appropriations include a Group contribucion
received of SEK 86 million (72) and Group contribution paid of
SEK -17 mullion (-15). Net investment in non-current assets

totalled SEK 329 million {130} and relate to the acquisition of



subsidiaries as well as debts reccivable on Group companies. The
Parent Company's financial net debt at the close of the financial
year stood ac SEK 831 mullion (891).

On 31 December 2018 the number of shareholders was
3,895 (4,043). The Company's Class B shares are listed on
Nasdaq Stockholm. Two shareholders each control 10 percent or
more of the votes: They are ReosGruppen AB (Hikan Roos
through companies), with an ownership stake of 21.5 percent of
votes, and Tom Hedelius, who owns shares corresponding ro
13.4 percent of votes

Chaprer 6, Section 2a of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act
requires lsted companies to disclose specific circumstances that
may affect the prospects for acquiring the Company via a public
share offer. In the event that the Company 1s delisted from Nasdagq
Stockholm, or that shareholders other than the current principal
shareholders may acquire more than 50 percent of the capital or
voting rights, the granted credit framework for an overdraft facility
at Handelsbanken of SEK 700 million may be terminated.

Share capital, share repurchases, incentive programmes
and dividends

On 31 December 2018, the Parent Company’s share capital
amounted to SEK 51,125,197 divided into the following
number of shares with a nominal value of SEK 2.037 per share

Numberof Number of Percentage Percentage

Share class shares votes of capital of votes
A 1011766 10117660 40 29.6
B 24,086,048 24,086,048 960 704
Total 25,097,814 34,203,708 100.0 100.0

Repurchase of treasury shares and incentive grogrammaos
In May 2018 the AGM authonsed the Beard of Directors during
the period up until the 20192 AGM to buy back a maximum of
ten percent of all shares in the Company.

Repurchased shares are intended to cover the Company's
commitment to outstanding call opuons programmes. During
the financial year 170,000 (215,000} Class B treasury shares
were repurchased. The average number of Class B treasury shares
held during the financial year was 513,129 (295,996). Ac year-
end the number of Class B treasury shares was

468,450 (445,000) with an average purchase price of SEK
179.30 (158.53). The shares account for 1.9 {1.8) percent of
shares issued and 1.4 (1.3) percent of votes.

At year-end AddLife had three outstanding purchase option
programmes. Ouistanding call options during the financial year
resulted in an estimated dilutive effect based on the period's aver-
age share price of approximately 0.1 percent (0.1).

The Board intends to propose to the Annual General Mect-
ing in May 2019 an icentive programme based on the same, or
substantially similar, model as was approved at the 2018 AGM.

Dividend

AddLife’s dividend policy 1s to pay a dividend equivalent co
30-50 percent of average consolidated profit after tax over a busi-
ness cycle. The Board has resolved to propose that the AGM in

May 2018 pay a dividend of SEK 2.20 per share (2 20) for the
2018 financial year.

Outlook and events after the end of the financial year
Cutloak

The Life Science market in the Nordic countrics continued to
develop favourably in 2018. The underlying growth 1n the
Furopean market is primarily driven by a growing and aging
population. Concurrently, health services are focusing on effi-
ciency improvements and alleviating new chronic diseases,
thereby driving the rapid technotogical development in the
market. Health care and research must find new ways to solve
social challenges, solutions that can benefit both the individual
and society at large. The countries in northern Europe are at the
forefront of Life Science and initdatives to promote research and
development continue from both the private and the public
sectors. AddLife therefore sces great potential for further growth
on the markets in which the Group is active, as well as on the
international marker, partly based on the acquisition of Biomedica
bur also with the increased percentage of proprictary products in
the Groups producr offering.

Historically, the combination of organic growth in existing
companies and acquisttions has provided substanual growth
opportunities for the Group. This has resulted in a strong cash
flow and, teamed with a robust financial position, we expect
conrtinued good furure opportunities. The Group is well-
equipped for the opportunities that may arisc relating to both
organic development and acquisitions. The Group's objective is
long-term earnings growth of at least 15 percencannually
combined with profitability.

Events after the close of the financial year

Rights issue

In February 2019 AddLife AB raised about SEK 501 million
before issue expenses through a righcs issue. The issuance was
oversubscribed by about 68 percent. As a result of the rights issue
AddLife’s equity increased by SEK 7,184,142 10 SEK
58,309,340. The total namber of shares will increase by 144,538
Class A shares and 3,382,221 Class B shares, to a total of
28,624,573 shares, including 1,156,304 Class A shares and
27.468.269 Class B shares.

Financing
In January 2019 AddLife increased its overdraft facility with
Handelsbanken to SEK 700 mullion, while simultaneously
extending its term to 28 February 2020. The bridging loan at
Handelsbanken of SEK 550 million that was taken in conjunc-
tion with the acquisition of Biomedica has been repaid in its
entirety during the period between January and March 2019 by
exerasing the overdraft facility
ar Handelsbanken.

No other events of significance to the Group occurred after

the end of the reporting period.

Proposal for profit distribution
For more information, please sce the section enuded note 36

page 94.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Principles

AddLife is a public limited liability company whose class B
shares were listed on Nasdaq Stockholm on 16 March 2016, for
which reason the Company complies with the Swedish Code of
Corporate Governance (the “Code™). The Code applies to all
Swedish companies whose shares are listed on a regulated market
in Sweden. The Code is part of self-regulation by the Swedish
business communiry and 1s based on the principle of “comply or
explain”. This means that companies are not obliged to apply
every rule in the Code, burt are allowed the freedom to choose
alternative solutions provided that the reasons for any deviation
is explained. For the 2018 financial year AddLife had one devia-
tien from the Code to report. The deviation and its justification
can be found in the section on the Nomination Committee.
Thus corporate governance report has been reviewed by the audi-
tor. The corporate governance report is available on the Compa-

ny's website under Investors, www.add life/investerare/
bolagsstyrning.

§ -~ Génaral Meeting/
Annual General Mesting

Compliance with applicable rules for trading

No viclations of any applicable stock exchange rules occurred in
2018 and AddLife’s operations were conducted in accordance
with good practices in the stock marker.

Division of responsibilities

The purpose of corporate governance is to establish a clear divi-
sion of roles and responsibilities between shareholders, the Board
of Directors, the Board’s committees and Senior Management.
Corporate governance within AddLife 15 based on applicable
legislation, primarily the Swedish Companies Act, the listing
agreement with Nasdaqg Stockholm, the Swedish Cede of
Corporate Governance (the “Code”) and internal guidelines and
regulations.
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Share structure and shareholders

On 31 December 2018 share capiral in AddLifc AB amounted
to SEK 51,125,197, There were a toral of 25,097,814 shares in
the Company, including 1,011,766 Class A shares and

24 086,048 Class B shares. The nominal value of each sharc was
SEK 2.037. Each Class A share carrics ten votes and each Class B
share carries one vote. Only the Class B share is listed on Nasdag
Stockholm.

As of 31 December 2018, the Company had 3,855 share-
holders, the 15 largest of whom controlled 65.71 percent of the
share capital and 73.03 percent of the votes. At the end of the
financial year, Swedish investors accounted for 58.28 percent of
shareholders, and foreign investors owned 41.72 percent of the
share capital. The proportion of legal entities was 82.28 percent,
while natural persons accounted for 17.72 percenc of the share
capital. Roosgruppen AB (Hikan Roos through companies) and
Tom Hedelius are the only sharcholders with a direcr or indirect
shareholding in the Company represencing at least one tench of

the voting rights for all shares in the Company.

Articles of Association
According to the Articles of Association, the Company’s name is
AddLife AB and it is a public company. The Company’s most
recent financial year extended from 1 January — 31 December.

The Company’s principal business is “to directly or through
a wholly or partially owned subsidiary engage in crading wich
and produce mainly medical equipment and products, and to
pursue other compatible business”. The Board of Direcrors is
based in Stockholm and shall compnse at least four and no maore
than six members. Notice of the Annual General Meeting shall
be published in Post- och Inrikes Tidningar (official Swedish
gazettc) and on the Company’s website. The issuance of the
Notice of the Annual General Meeung shall be advertised in the
Swedish ncwspaper Svenska Dagbladet,

‘The most recently recorded Articles of Association, adopted
at the Extraordinary General Meeting on 13 January 2016, are
available in their enoirery on the Company’s website under inves-

tors, www.add.life/en/investors/corporate-governance.

General Meetings

The Annual General Meeting is the highest decision-making
body in which shareholders exercise their voting rights. The
AGM rakes decisions on the annual reporr, dividend, elecuon of
the Board (and auditor where applicable), remuneration to
Board members and the auditor and other issues as per the
Swedish Companies Act and the Ardcles of Association. Further
information about the Annual General Meeting and minutes
from the meetings are available on the Company's website. The
Company does not apply any special arrangement in relaton ro
the funcrions of the General Meeting due to any article in the
Articles of Association, or as far as the Company is aware of, any

sharcholders’ agreement.



[nformation abour the 2019 Annual General Meeting is avail-
able in the Annual Report under “Welcome ¢o the Annual
General Meeting” and on the Company’s websire.

Right to attend General Meetings and shareholder
initiatives

Shareholders registered in the share register maintained by Euro-
elear five days before the General Meeting and who, by the date
specified in the Nouce of the General Meeting, have informed
the Company of their intention to attend, are eligible to partici-
pate in the General Meeting and to vote for the number of shares
held. Shareholders may attend the Meeting in person or by
proxy, and may be accompanied by a maximum of two assis-
tants. Sharcholders’ assistants may accompany them at a General
Meeting if the shareholders provide notification thereof in accor-
dance with the procedure for sharchalder regiseration.

In addition to notifying AddLife, sharehalders whosc shares
are nominee ngiS[Cer ata bank or Othcr nominee Must rfqucst
that their shares be temporarily registered under their own
names in the share register mamrtained by Euroclear to be eligible
to participate in the Meeting. Shareholders should inform their
nominees in good time before the record dare. Shareholders
secking to have 4 matrer addressed ar a General Meeting must
submit a written request to the Board. The request must
normally be received by the Board no later than one week before
the carliest point at which the notice of the Meeting may be
issued under the Companies Act. Every shareholder that submits
a request within the required time has the right to have theissue
brought before the General Meeting,

2018 Annual General Meeting

AddLife’s Annual General Meeting was held on Thursday, 31
May 2018 in Stockholm. In all, 77 shareholders were present at
the AGM, in person or by proxy, representing 64.59 percent of
votes and 54.63 percent of capital. Chairman of the Board Johan
Sj6 was elected to serve as chairman of the AGM. The meetng,
was attended by all members of the Board and Group Manage-
ment. Authorised public accountant Hikan Olsson Reising,
audiror for AddLife, was also present ar the meeting as AddLife’s
elected auditor from KPMG.

The 2018 Annual General Meeting resolved:

® To adopt the financial statements for 2017

* To pay sharcholders a dividend of SEK 2.20 per share, regard-
less of share class

# To discharge the Board of Directors and Chief Fxecunive
Officer from liability for the past financial year

@ To re-clect board members Johan §j8, Hikan Roos,
Birgit Stactin Norinder, Eva Nilsagird and Stefan Hedelius
and elect Andreas Gothberg

® '[o re-elect Johan §j6 to serve as chairman of the Board

e Toelect the audir firm KPMG AB to serve as auditor

e Toimplement a long-term incentive scheme under which the
participants will have the opportunity to acquire call options
at market prices for shares repurchased by AddLife AR

* To authorise the Board of Directors ro decide — during the

period untl the next following Annual General Meeting - to
repurchase up to the maximum number of class B shares so
that the Company’s holding of own shares at any given time
does not exceed 10 percent of the total number of shares
outstanding in the Company.

The other resolunions of the AGM can be seen in the complete
agenda from the AGM, which is available along with other infor-
mation abour the 2018 AGM at www.add lifef/investerarer/
bolagsstyrning/bolagsstimma.

2019 Annual General Meeting

AddLife’s 2019 Annual General Mecting will be held Thursday 9
May at the Saga movie theatre in Stockholm. For additional
information about the 2019 AGM please see the section called
“Welcome to the Annual General Meeting” in the annual reporr,
as well as AddLife’s website www.add life

Nomination Committee duties

The Nomination Committee's mandare from the Annual
General Meeting is to evaluate the composition and work of the
Board of Directors as well as to submit proposals to the AGM for
the Chair of the AGM, Directors and Chairman of the Board,
auditors, remuneration o directors who are not employed by the
company, election, where appropriate, of a registered auditing
firrn and auditors’ fees, as well as principles for elecrion of
members to the Nomination Committee.

Nomination Committee members receive no remunerartion
from the Company for their work on the committee. The Nomi-
nation Commirtee held one meering at which minuzes were
recorded prior to the 2018 AGM. The complete proposals of the
Nomination Committee to the AGM are presented 1n the notice

to attend the meeting and on the Company's websire.

Composition of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with the Code, the Company shall have a Nomi-
nation Committee. Cn 1 September 2016 the AGM adopted
principles for appointing the Nominacion Commirtee. Conse-
quently, the Annual General Meeting does not decide on these
principles and the Nomination Committee mandate annually,
unless the principles or the mandate are to be changed. The
Nomination Committee consists of representatives of the five
largest known shareholders by vote as of 30 September each year,
as well as the Chairman of the Board of IDirectors, who s also
tasked with convening the first meeting of the Nominartion
Commuttee. The Nomination Committee will appoint a Chair-
man from among s members. The composition of the Nomina-
rion Committee shall be announced nor later than six months
before the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the above, the Nomination Committee
comprises these appointed members: Johan §6 (Chairman of
the Board), Tom Hedelius, Hikan Roos {appointed by Roos-
Gruppen AB}, Maria Nordgvist (appointed by Lannebo
Fonder), Monica Asmyr (appointed by Swedbank Robur
Fonder} and Johan Strandberg (appointed by SEB Fonder). The

composition of the Nomination Commuttee was disclosed in



conjunction with the presentation of the interim report for che
third quarter on 7 November 2018.

One Nomination Committee member is a Board member
and two members are not independent of the Company's major
shareholders. Hikan Roos 1s Chairman of the Nominarion
Commirttee.

The Nomination Commirtee shall propose the following to
the General Meeting: chairman at the General Meeting, Board
of Directors, chairman of the Board of Direcrors, auditor, remu-
neration to the Board of Directors (divided berween the chair-
man and the other directors), and remuneration to the auditor.
The Nomination Commirtee’s proposals to the AGM will be
presented in the notice to arrend the meeting and on the
Company’s website. Nomination Committee members receive
no compensation from the company for their work on the
Committee. However, the company is responsible for costs asso-
ciated with the execution of the Nomination Committee. The
Company did not pay any expenses associated with the Nomina-
tion Commuttee’s mandate during the year.

Deviations

The Company has one deviation from rule 2.4 of the Code
regarding the composition of the Nomination Committee.
According to the Code, a Board member should not serve as the

chair of the Nomination Committee

Explanation:

Hikan Roos, who is chairman of the Nominauon Commirceee is
also a member of the Board of AddLife, which is natural with
respect 10 his ownership role.

Diiversity Palicy
The Nomination Committee uses 4.1 1n the Code as its diversity
policy. This means that AddLife’s Board of Directors shall consist
of a well-balanced mix of skills, experience and background that
is important for responsibly and successfully managing AddLife’s
strategic work. To achieve this, knowledge of Lifc Science,
corporate governance, compliance with rules and regulanons,
financing and financial analysis and remuneration issues 1s desir-
able. In addition, diversity regarding age, gender, education and
other professional backgrounds is taken into account.

The goal is to have a Board with good diversity and gender
equalicy. No Board member shall be discriminated against based

on religion, ethnic background, age, gender, sexual orientation,
2 &

disability or for other reasons.

Board of Directors

According to AddLife’s Artictes of Associanon, the Board of
Directors must consist of four to six members. Members are
elected annually at the AGM for the period extending undil the
end of the next AGM. There is no limitation on how long a
member may serve on the Board of Directors. AddLife’s Board of
Directors consists of Board members Johan $js, Hikan Roos,
Stefan Hedelius, Andreas Géthberg, Birgir Stattn Norinder and
Eva Nilsagird. Johan §j6 is Chairman of the Board. Informarion
abour the Board members can be found 1n the section “Board

and Management”.

The Board of Divectors responsibibities and work
The duties of the Board of Dircctors are set forth in the Swedish
Companies Act, AddLife’s Articles of Association and the Code.
In addition, the work of the Board of Directors is regulated by
the rules of procedure adopted by the Board of Directors The
Board of Directors has adopted written rules of procedure
governing its work and internal division of labour, including its
commictees, decision-making procedures within the Board, the
Board’s meeting procedure and the Chairman’s duties. The
Board of Directors has also issued insiructions for the CEQ and
instructions for financial reporting to the Board. In addition, the
Board has adopted a number of poticies for the Group’s opera-
tions such as the Financial Policy, Communications Policy and
Code of Conduct. The Board supervises the work of the CEO
through ongoing moniroring of operations over the year and is
responsible for the organisation, management and guidelines of
the management of the Company's affairs being suitably
designed and for the Company maintaining good internal
conrtrol and effective systems for the monitoring and control of
the Company’s operations, as well as compliance with the legisla-
tion and rcgulations applicable to the Company’s operations.
The Board of Directors s also responsible for establishing, devel-
oping and monitoring the Company’s targets and strategies,
decisions on acquisitions and divestments of operations, major
investments and appointments and remuneration o Group
Management. The Board of Directors and the CEQ present the
annual accounts to the Annual General Meeting,

An annual evaluation of the work of the Board of Directors

Independent in

Independentin relationto

Board Remuneration Audit relation to major

Board member Elected meeting Committee Committee  the Company shareholders:
Total number of meetings i3 1 4

Johan Sjo (Chairman of the Board) 2015 13 1 4 Yes Yes

Birgit Stattin Norinder 2015 13 4 Yes Yes

Eva Nilsagdrd 2015 13 4 Yes Yes

Andreas Gothberg 2018 7 2 Yes Yes

Hakan Roas 2015 13 1 4 Yes No

Stefan | edelius 2015 13 4 Yeos No
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shall be performed under the leadership of the Chairman of the
Board and the Nomination Committee shall be informed of the
outcome of the evaluation. The Board of Directors shall contin-
uously evaluate the work of the CEQ. This matter shall be
addressed individually each year with no member of Company
management being in atiendance. Moreover, the Board of Direc-
tors shall evaluate and assess any significant appointments which
the CEO may have outside of the Company. Under the feader-
ship of the Chairman of the Board, the annual evaluarion of the
waork of the Board was carried outin November 2018, and the
Nomination Committee was informed of the outcome of the

evaluation.

The Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors

The Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors shall annually
be evaluated, updated and adopred. If the Board establishes any
internal committees, the Board’s rules of procedure shall specify
the duties and decision-making powers delegated to committees
by the Board and how the committees arc o 1eport to the Board.

The Board of Directors shall hold regular meetings in accor-
dance with a programme established under the rules of proce-
dure, including predetermined decision points and other points
4s necessary. During the financial year, the Board of Directors
held 8 minuted meetings. The Board members artendance is
shown in the following table.

At LES rcguf:lr H]CE[ingS, the BOH[d Of DirCC[OTS dddrCSSCd [hC‘
predetermined points on the table at each Board meeting 1n
accordance with the Board’s rules {such as the Presidenc’s report
on operations, financial reporting, investments and projects).

Remuneration Committee

Provisions for the establishment of a Remunerations Committee
are included in the Code. The Company applies the Code and,
as a result, Addlife’s Board of Direcrors has established a Remu-
nerations Committee.

The Board has appointed a Remunerations Commirtee
consisting of Johan §jo (chairman) and Hikan Roos. The Remu-
nerations Committee has prepared a proposal for principles for
remuneration to senior exccutives. The proposal has been
discussed by the Board of Directors and will be presented to the
Annual General Meeting for resolution. Based on the decision of
the Annual General Meeting, the Board then determines the
remuneration of the CEQ. The CEQ shall not be involved in
discussions of her own remuneration, The Remunerations
Committee sets the remuneration of other members of Group
Management based on proposals from the CEO. The Board of
Directors shall be informed of the Remuneration Committee’s
decision. The Remuneration Commirtee then has the rask of
monitoring and evaluating application of the guidelines for
remuneration to senior management as decided by the Annual
General Meeting. The Committee shall also monitor and evalu-
ate programs of variable remuneration to the senior management

in progress and those completed during the year.

The Remunerations Commurtee held one meecing during the
financial year. All Committee members were present at these

mectings.

Audit Cominitioe

Provisions for the establishment of an Audit Committee are
included in the Companies Act and the Code. The Company
applies the Code and, as a resule, AddLife’s Board of Directors
has established an Audit Committee consisting of all of the
Board members. The Committee’s work shall be conducted as an
integral pare of the Board of Directors” regular meetings. Eva
Nilsagird is the appointed chairman of the Audit Committee.
Johan §jg, Birgic Scattin Norinder, Andreas Gothberg and Eva
Nilsagird are independent in relation to the Company and
Group Management and in relation to the Company’s major
sharcholders, and Johan $j8, Birgit Stattin Norinder and Eva
Nilsagird are skilled in accountng or auditing. Without impact-
ing the Board of Directors’ responsibiliries and tasks in general,
the Audit Committee shall monitor the Company’s financial
reposting, monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management with respect to financial reporting,
keep informed abour the audit of the financial statemenrs,
review and monitor the auditor’s impartiality and independence
and pay special attention to whether the auditors provide the
Company with services other than auditing services, and assist in
the preparation of proposals for the Annuat General Meeting for
the election of auditors. In connection with the meeting at
which the Board of Directors adopts the annual financial state-
ments, the Board shall receive a report from the Company’s
external auditors and be briefed on this. The Board of Drrectors
shall on such occasion also have a briefing with the audirors
without the presence of the CEO or any other member of the
Company Management.

The Audit Committec held four meetings in 2018 in
conjunction with publication of the interim reports. Tn addirtion,
AddLife’s risk macrix was discussed and the company's external
auditors reported on the interim review,

In connection with the adoption of the annual accounts for
2018 at the Board meeting in February 2019, the Board reccived

a review and a report from the Company’s external auditors.

Remuneration 1o the Beard of Direciors

Feces to the Chairman and directors shall be resolved on by the
General Meeting, In accordance with a decision by the Annual
General Meeting on 31 May 2018, the full-year fees to cach of
the clected Board members amounted to SEK 250,000, and
SEK 500,000 to the Chairman. The chairman of the Audit
Committee 1s paid a fee of SEK 50,000 for the full year. In
accordance with the decision, the total fuil-year fees payable
amount to SEK 1,800,000.
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Chief Execut’ve Officor

Kristina Willgird is the CEQ of the Company. A presentation of
Kristina Willgird can be found in the section “Board and senior
management” and on the Company’s website.

The CEO shall manage the operations in accordance with
the Companies Act and within the framework established by the
Board of Directors. The work and role of the CEQ and the divi-
sion of duties between the Board of Directors and the CEO are
detailed in a written set of instructions set out by the Board of
Directors (“Instructions 1o the CEO™). The Board of Direcrors
continuously evaluates the work of the CEQ. In consultation
with the Chairman, the CEO has prepared the informadon
needed ro make decisions at Board meetings and has presented
reports and reasoned propaosals for decisions.

The CEQ shall lead the work of the Group Management
and make decisions in consultation with the other members of
the Group Management. In addinon to Kristina Willgard,
Group Management also includes Martin Almgren (CFO), Peter
Simonsbacka, business area manager, Labtech, and Lars-Erik
Rydell, business area manager, Medrech

Group Management regularly reviews operations in meet-
ings chaired by the CEO. A more detailed presentation of Group
Managemenct 15 given in che section “Board and Management”

and on the Company’s website.

Operational organisation

During the financial year, the Group’s operations were organised
into two business areas — Labtech and Medtech. Operations are
conducted in subsidiaries in Sweden, Denmark, Finland,
Norway, Estonia, Germany, Belgium, Iraly, the UK. the US and
China. Each operating company has a board of directors in
which the company’s CEO and senior management from the
business area are represented. Each company president reports to
a business division manager or business area manager, who, in
turn reports to the CEO for AddLife AB.

Financialreporting

The Board of Directors has established operating procedures
with instructions on internal financial reporting. All interim

reports and press releases are published on AddLife’s website,
www.add.life, immediately ar the ume of the announcement.

Internal control of financial reporiing

Internal control

The Board of Directors” and the CEQ's responsibility for inter-
nal control is regulated by the Companies Act. The Board of
Direcrors” responsibilities are also regulated in the Code and the
Annual Accounts Act. The Board of Direcrors has overall respon-
sibility for ensuring that the Group has an cffective system for
management and internal control. This responsibility includes
annually evaluating the financial reperung the Board receives
and stipulating the content and format of these reports to ensure
their quality. This requirement means that the financial report-
ing must fulfil its purpose and comply with applicable account-
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ing rules and other requirements incumbent on listed compa-
nies. The CFO has presented reports to the Board on the

Group's internal control.

Controlenvironment
AddLife builds and organises its business on the basis of decen-
tralised responsibility for profitability and carnings.

In decentralised opcrations, the basis for internal control
consists of a well-escabhished process aimed at defiming rargets
and strategics for each business. Internal guidelines and
Board-approved policies commumnicate defined decision-making
channels, powers of authority and responsibilities. The Group’s
foremost financial control documents include its financial
policy: financial manual and instructions for each financial clos-
ing. A Group-wide reporting system with related analysis tools is
used for the Group's closing procedures. On a more general
level, all operations within the AddLife Group are conducted in
accordance with the Group’s Code of Conduct.

Risk assessment
AddLife has established procedures for managing risks that the
Board of Dircctors and senior management have deemed essen-
tial for the internal control of the Company’s financial reporting.
The Board holds the opinion that the Group’s exposurc to a
variety of market and customer segments, and the fact thae the
operattons are conducted in abouc 40 operating companies,
entail significant risk diversification. The risk assessment shall be
based on the Group's income statement and balance sheet to
idenrify the risk of significant errors, For the AddLife Group as a
whole, the greatest risks are linked to inventories and the carry-
ing amount of intangible assets related to corporate acquisitions,

inventories, acquisitions and revenue.

Controfacuivities

Control activities include transaction-related controls such as
spending authorisation and investments, as well as clear
disbursement procedures, but can also be analyrical controls
performed by the Group's controllers and central finance and
accounting function. Conrrollers and financial managers ac all
levels of the Group play a key role in creacing the righc environ-
ment for transparent and accurate financial reporting. This role
places great demands on integnity, expertise and the capabilidies
of individuals.

Vo safeguard an effective exchange of knowledge and experi-
ence within the finance functions, regular financial conferences
are ta be held, ar which current issues are discussed. An import-
ant overall control activity is the monthly performance review
pcrﬁ.)rmf:d via tht‘ :n[f:rnal rep()r[ing System Zlﬂd ﬂnﬂlyﬁcd and
commented on in the internal work of the Board. The review
includes an evaluation of results compared 1o targers set, previ-
ous performance, and follow-up of key figures.

Each year a “self-assessment” is performed of all Group
companies with respect to internal control issues. Companies
comment on how important issues have been handled, such as



the terms of business 1o customer contracts, customer credit
raxings, valuation and documentation of inventories, payment
procedures, documentation and analysis of financial statements
and compliance with internal policies and procedures. An
accepred minimum fevel must be established for crirical issues
and processes, which all companies are expected to meet. Each
company’s response should be validated and commented on by
the relevant company’s external auditor in connection with the
regular audit. The responscs should subsequently be compiled
and analysed, after which they are presented to the business area
and Group Management teams. The resule of the self-evaluations
will be taken into account in the planning of the following year’s
self-evaluations and external auditing,

In addition to the “self-assessment” work, an in-depth analy-
sis of internal control in six of the operating companies was
conducted during the year. This work is referred to as an “analy-
sis of internal control” and is performed by the companies’ busi-
ness controllers and colleagues from the Parent Company’s
ﬁndncc ﬁlnctlon.

The companies’ key processes and their control poines have
been identified and tested. The external auditors have read the
records of the analyses of internal control in connection with
their audit of the companies. The process provides a good foun-
dation on which to chart and assess the internal control in the
Group. KPMG provided the Board with a review and accounted

for 1ts assessment of the Group’s internal control process.

Revigw, information and (ommiLsahon

The Board has received monchly comments from the CEO
regarding the business situation and the development of the
operations. The Board has discussed the quarterly financial staee-
ments before these have been published. The Board has received
updartes on the work on internal controls and its cutcome. The
Board has also read the assessment made by KPMG of the
Group’s internal control processes. The outcome of the internal
control has been analysed by the Group’s CFO together with the
business controller. An assessmenc has been made of the
improvement measures to be implemented in the various
companies The boards of the various Group companies have
heen informed of the outcome of the internal control in each
company and the improvement measures that should be imple-
mented. Together with the company boards, the business
controller should then review these efforts on an ongoing basis
over the ensuing years.

Gﬂvcrning guidclincs, policics and instructions are available
on the Group’s intranet. The documents are regularly updated as
needed. Changes are communicated separately via email and at
meetings for controllers and financial managers.

For internal information via the intraner, access to the docu-
ments is controlled through authorisations. The Group’s
employees are divided into various groups whose access w infor-
mation differs. All financial guidelines, policnes and nstructions
are avatlable for each company’s CEO and CFQ, business area

managers, business controllers and the central finance staff.

Access 1o Group financial data is also controlled centrally
through authorisation.

Internal audit

I'n light of the risk assessment described above and structure of
conwrol activities, including the processes of self-assessment and
in-depth analysis of internal control, the Board has chosen nor o

maintain a specific internal audit function.

Auditors

In accordance with the Arncles of Association, a registered audit-
ing firm shall be elected as auditor. KPMG was re-elected as the
Company'’s audiror at the Annual General Meeting on 31 May
2018 for the period undil the 2019 Annual General Meeting.
The auditor in charge is Hikan Olsson Reising, aided by Jonas
Eriksson. KPMG audits AddLife AB and almost all of its
subsidiaries.

The Company’s auditors follow an audit plan that includes
Integrating Comments from the Board, and reporting their find-
ings to Company management teams, Group Management and
to AddLife’s Board of Direcrors, both during the auditand in
connection with the approval of the annual accounts. The
Company’s auditors also attend the Annual General Meeting,
describing and commenung on the audit process.

The independence of the external auditors is regulared by
special inscructions approved by the Board of Directors, which
show the areas for which the external auditors may be engaged
on matters beyond the regular audic process. KPMG continually
assesses its independence in reladion to the Company and every
year delivers a written statemnent to the Board that the aadit firm
is independent of AddLife. During the current financial year,
KPMG has performed advisory assignments concerning corpo-
rate acquisitions. The total fee for KPMG's services in addition
o audiring for the 2018 financial year was SEK 2.5 million
(0.3).

Quarierly review by quaiiais

AddLife’s mne-month report was reviewed by the Company’s
auditors during the 2018 financial year.
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Financial statements

Consolidated Income Statement

SEKm: Note 2018 2017
Net sales 5,6 24816 23333
Cosl of gaods sold _ L o o.iseis -1,4924
Gross profit 889.8 8409
Selling expenses -5571 -5240
Administrative expenses 29 -1570 -113 1
Research and development -195 -17.6
Other operating imcocme 10, 29 160 162
Other operating expenses . _ L 10 -45 _ -6 5
Operating profit 4-11,17,29 167.7 165.9
Financial income 12,29 c4 10
Finance costs ORI £ AN 1 S .
Net financial items o 8T -8.3
Profit/loss before taxes 158.0 157.6
Income tax expense L I ad -287 . -373
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 129.3 120.3
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company 129 3 1203
Non-controlling interests - -
Earmings per share (EPS), SEK 33 536 495
Diluted EPS (SEK) 536 494
Average number of shares (000s) 24,118 24,321
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

SEKm 2018 2017
Profit for the year 1293 120.3
Components that will be reclassified to profit for the year

Foreign currency translation differences for the year 173 -130
Components that will not be reclassified to profit for the year

Revaluations of defined-benefit pensions 23 66
Tax attributable to items not to be reversed in profit or loss _ . [635) I Mlm.fa
Other comprehensive income . . 155 B -18.1
Total comprehensive income for the year 1448 102.2
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company 144 8 1022

Non-controlling intcrests - -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEKm Note 31Dec.2018 31 Dec. 2017
ASSETS

Non-current assets

intangible non-current assets 15 14650 1,152 6
Property, plant and equipment 16 1102 FAL7
Financial assets 18 186 51
Non-current receivables 18 47 56
Defercedtaxassets . oMl 29
Total non-current assets 1,623.6 1,240.9
Current assets

Inventories 20 408 3 2710
Tax assets 76 10
Accounts receivable 5078 3338
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 21 328 167
Other receivables 2/ 1 169
Cashandcashequvalents e e 806310
Total current assets L 1,044.2 6504
TOTAL ASSETS e 2e678 1,891.3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 22

Share capital 51.1 501
Other contributed capital 651.5 55046
Reserves 114 -59
Retamned earmings, including profit for the year 216.7 1532
Neon-controlling interests 10 -
Total equity 931.7 7480
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Nan-current interest-bearing habilities 18,26 27 472
Non-current non-interest-hearng habiies 18 08 03
Provisions for pensions 24 769 4668
Non-current provisions 25 199 -
Deferred tax habiies 14 B 107.9 760
Total non-current liabilities 215.2 147.3
Current liabilities

Current interest-bearing habilities 18,27 835.9 5285
Accounts payable 18,29 3339 224 6
Tax habihties 19.6 364
Other labilitres 1895 865
Accrued expenses and deferred income 28 1388 1169
Short-lerm provisions 25 - - |
Total current liabilities . o e 15209 9960
Total liabilities L o - 17361 1,1433
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,667.8 1,891.3




Consclidated statement of changes in equity

Retained
Cther earnings,
contri- including
Share buted profit for Total
SEKm capital capital Reserves the year equity
EQUITY, OPENING BALANCE 1 Jan. 2017 501 550.6 7.1 109.1 716.9
Profit for the year - - - 1203 1203
Foreign currency translation differences for the penod - - -130 - -13.0
Actuarial effects of the pension obhigation - - - 66 -6.6
Tax attributable to other comprehensive Income - - - 15 15
Other comprehensiveincome_ S 1 R X -18.1
Total comprehensive income for the year - - -13.0 115.2 102.2
Drvidend - - - ~366 -36.6
Call options - - - 29 2.9
Repurchasc of treasury sheres - - - 374 = 374
EQUITY, CLOSING BALANCE 2017 DEC. 31 50.1 550.6 -5.9 153.2 748.0
Retained
Other earnings,
contri- including Non-
Share buted profitfor  controlling Total
SEKm capital capital Reserves the year interests capital
EQUITY, OPENING BALANCE 1 Jan. 2018 5C.1 550.6 -5.9 153.2 - 748.0
Non-cash 1ssue under registration 10 1009 - - - 1019
Profit for the year - - - 1293 - 129 3
Foreign currency translaticn differences for the period - - 17.3 - - 173
Actuanal effects of the pension obligation - - - -23 - -23
Tax attributable to other comprehensive mcome - - - 05 - 05
Other compre_hgﬁsmlye income - _1_7_3 R _;1_8_.__ o _]_’3__5_
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 17.2 127.5 - 144.8
Dnadend - - - -532 - -532
Calt options - - - 243 - 243
Repurchase of treasury shares - - - -351 - -351
Non-controlfing interests - - - - 10 10
EQUITY, CLOSING BALANCE 2018 Dec. 31 511 651.5 114 2167 1.0 931.7
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit after financial stems 1580 1576
Adjusiment for items not included i cash flow 31 94 4 784
I,”,EQT?MEEXB@'Q L -68.7 -41 5

Cash flow from operating activities

before changes in working capital 183.7 1945
Cash tlow from changes in working capital

Changes In inventories 67 140
Changes in operating receivables 15.4 236
Changesinoperatingliabibies . o -14.9 -241
Cash flow from operating activities 177.5 5(3!;6

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acguisition of property, plant and cquipment -30.5 -429
Disposal of property, plant and cquipment 3.9 11
Acguisition of intangible assets -18.5 -
Acguisition of operations 32 -334.4 2960
Dwestment of operations o o . - S
Cash flow from Tnvesting activities -381.1 -337.8

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings 31 483.7 3582
Repayments on loans 31 -171.6 -160 8
Repurchase of treasury shares -35.1 -37 4
Call options 243 29
Other finanung Q.5 10
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Parent Company -53.2 -3646
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests T
Cash flow from financing activities 248.6 1253
Cash flow for the year 450 -4.5
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 11.0 147
Exchange differences on cash and cash eguivalents 4.6 08
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 60.6 110
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Parent Company Income Statement

SEKm Note 2018 2017
Net sales 375 309
Administrative expenses e e s = e S 7484
Operating profit -5.6 -17.5
Profit/loss from shares in group companies 12 - 0.0
Interest income and ssimilar items 12 108 104
Interest expense and simitar items L 12 -64 -6.7
Profit after financial items -1.2 -13.8
Appropmations e A3 0219 0 458
Profit/loss before taxes 50.7 320
income taxexpense 14 -112 76
Profit for the year 395 24.4
Parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEKm 20138 2017
Profitfortheyear e . .- . 395 24.4
Othercomprehensiveincome T
Total comprehensive income for the year 39.5 24.4
Attributable to-

Fguity holders of the Parent Company o e 395 24 4




Parent Company Balance Sheet

SEKm Note 31 Dec.2018 31 Dec.2017
ASSETS
Intangible non-current assets 15 a1 02
Property, plant and equipment 16 0.1 02
Financial assets
Interests in Group companies 19 797 6 3891
Recevables from Group companies 19 1,027.9 1,131 4
Other non-current securities e 1./ ... Lo
Total non-current financial assets 18272 15205
Total non-current assets 1,827.4 1,520.9
Current assets
Accounts recervabie - -
Other current receivables 94 883
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 21 2.3 07
Total current assets R o 98.3 89.0
TOTAL ASSETS R 19257 1,610.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s equity 22
Restricted equity
Share capital 511 501
Unrestricted equity
Share premium reserve 6315 55046
Retained earnings -233 163
Profit for the year o o o 395 244
Total equity 718.8 641.4
Untaxed reserves 23 469 299
Provisions
Prowisions for pensions and simier sbhigatons_ .= ... 03
Total provisions - 0.3
Liabilities
Libilities (o Group companies i 2623573
Total non-current liabilities 76.2 157.3
Current interest-bearnng labilties 27 830.6 5171
Current habiibies to Group companies 2328 2319
Accounts payable 2.1 16
Tax habiities 2.4 116
Other habilities 4.0 23
Accrued expenses and deferred mcome 48 119 166
Total current liabilities _ - 1,083.8 781.1
Total liabilities o - _1,206.9 9683
19257 16100

TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES




Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Restricted equity Unrestricted equity

Retained

Share premium earnings, including
SEKm Share capital reserve profit for the year Total
EQUITY, OPENING BALANCE 1 JAN. 2017 50.1 550.6 874 688 1
Profit for the year - - 24 4 24 4
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 24.4 24.4
Dividend - - -36.6 -36 6
Repurchase of treasury shares - - 29 29
Call options 1ssued - - N -37.4 -37.4
EQUITY, CLOSING BALANCE 2017 DEC. 31 50.1 550.6 40.7 641.4

Restricted equity Unrestricted equity

Retained

Share premium earnings, including
SEKm Share capital reserve profit for the year Total
EQUITY, OPENING BALANCE 1 AN, 2018 50.1 550.6 40.7 641.4
Non-cash 1ssue under registration 10 1009 - 1019
Profit for the year - - 39.5 395
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 395 395
Dmvidend - - .-53,2 -532
Repurchase of treasury shares - - -351 -351
Call options 1ssued - - 243 243
EQUITY, CLOSING BALANCE 2018 DEC. 31 511 651.5 162 7188




Parent Company Cash Flow Statement

SEKim Note 2018 2017
Profit after financial items -12 -138
Adjustment for items not included in cash flow 31 29 35
mcome tax pad 20 82
Cash flow from operating activities
before changes in working capital -18.8 -18.5
Cash flow from changes in working capital
Increase/decrease in other current recervables 38 -89
Increase/decrease accounts payable 79 03
Increase/decrease n other current epersting habbes ... 152 i8¢
Cash flow from operating activities 223 97
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in intangibie non-current assets - -
Investments in property, plant and eguipment, - -
Acguisition of operations -408.5 -
Investments in other fmgnual non-currentassets o o 7M9W£lmy mwm—_l_ggé
Cash flow from investing activities -329.1 -130.1
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Nan-cash issue under registration 1019 -
Call aptions 243 29
Change i overdraft a1 -187.4 1612
Repurchase of trcasury shares -35.1 -371
Borrowmngs 31 6711 1997
Repayments on {oans 31 -170.2 -1500
Dwidend paid to shareholders of the Parent Company -53.2 366
Increase/decrease current financial habilites - -
Cash flow from financing activities 3514 139.8
Cash flow for the year 0.0 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year 00 00
Exchange differences on cash and cash eguivalents (43¢} 00
C.0 00

Cash and cash eqguivalents at yvear-end
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Notes to the financial

statements

NOTEL f GENERAL INFORMATION

AddLife AB (Parent Company) and tts subsidiaries form the AddLife Group.
The Group consists of $4 companies, 43 of which are operational and active
mainly i the Nordic countries and Central and Eastern Europe.

The Group is a leading independent supplier of equipment, instru-
ments and reagents from leading global suppliers to custorers primarily
n medical care, research, colleges and universities, as well as the foed and
pharmaceuncal indusiries

AddLife AB, corporate idennfication number 536995-8126, 1s a
registered limited liability company with its registered office in Stock-

holm, Sweden.

t
NOTE Z | SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT
ACCOUNTING PCLICIES

The Parent Company's and the Group's accounung policies are consis-
rent with each other, except in the case of reporting pensions, untaxed
reserves and appropriations. See also “Accounting policies of the Parent
Company”.

The Board approved the Parent Company’s annual reporr and the
Group’s conselidared financial statements for publicavon on 10 Apnil
2019. The Parent Company’s and Group's respecuve income statements
and balance sheets will be submitied for adoption to the Annual Generat
Meeung on 9 May 2019.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF THE PARENT COMPANY

"V'he Parent Company applies the same accounting policies as the Group,
except where the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish Act on
Safeguarding Pension Obligauons preseribe differenc procedures, or if
the connection ro taxauon gives nse to other reporting.

The Parent Company prepared its annual accounts im accordance
with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act (1995 1554) and 1ecommenda-
tion RFR 2 Accounting for Legal Enticies, from the Swedish Financial
Reporting Board. RFR 2 prescribes thar, in the annual accounts for s
legal enuty, the Parent Company shall apply all EU-approved IFRSs and
standard interpretanons to the greatest extent possible within the scope
of the Annual Accounts Act and taking account of the relationship
berween reporting and taxauon. The recommendation specifies which
excepuons from and addinons to IFRSs must be made.

Interests in Group companies are recognised in the Parent Company
using the cost methed, which means that transaction costs are included
1n the carrying amount for holdings in subsidiaries Any changes in
lLiabilities for contingent consideration are added to or reduce the (acqui-
sition) cost. In the Group, transaction costs are expensed and changes in
liabilities for contingent considerations are entered as income or expense

Dividends received are recogrused as income.

The Parent Company recognises untaxed reserves including deferred tax
labilities, rather than dividing them 1nto deferred rax liabulities and
equuty as is done for the Group.

Group contributions are recogmised in the Parent Company in
accordance with the alternative rule. Group contribuuons received and

paid are recognised as appropriarions. Sharcholder contmbuuions are
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recognised directly 1n the equity of the recipient and are capitalised in the
contributor's shares and interests, isofar as no impairment 15 required.

THE GROURP'S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General accounting policies

The financial statements for the Group were prepared 1n compliance
with International Financial Reperung Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and with interpreta-
uons issued by the Inteinational Financial Reporung Interpretations
Commitree (IFRIC) as approved by the European Union (EU) Recom-
mendanon RFR I Supplemeniary Accountng Rules for Groups, 1ssued
by the Swedish Financial Reporting Board, was also applied,

Presentation of the annual report

The financial statements are 1 millions of Swedish kronor (SEK million)
unless otherwise stated. AddLife AB’s functional currency 1s Swedish
kronor, as s the reporting currency for the Group. Assets and liabilities
are recognised at historical cose, excepr for currency derivanves that are
measured at farr value

Prepanng financial reports according to IFRS requires chat manage-
ment makes judgements and estimates as well as assumprions thar affect
the application of the accounting policies and the reporced amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These esumates and assumpuons
are based on historical experience and numerous other factors deemed
reasonable under the circumstances at the ume. Actual ontcomes may
differ from these judgements and estimartes. Fsomates and assumptions
are reviewed peniodically. Changes to estimates are recognised tn the
period when the change 1s made if the change only affecred thar period.
If the change affects current and farure periods, it is recognised in the
period when the change 1s made and 0 funire periods. Judgments made
by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect
on the financial statements, and esumaces with a significant nisk of marte-
rial adjusement 1n the next year, are further discussed below in Note 2.

The financial statements were prepared in comphance with [AS 1
Presentation of Financial Sratements, such that separate income state-
ments and bakance sheets, as welt as statements of other comprehensive
tncome, financial position, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash
flow, are prepared and notes are provided char derail the accounting
policics and disclosures applicd.

Assets are divided 1nto current assets and non-current assets. An asset
is considered current if it is expected to be realised within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period or within the Company's operaung cycle.
‘Operating cycle’ refers to the rime elapsed from the starc of producnion
until the Company receives payment for goods or services dehivered. The
Group's operating cycle 15 judged 10 be Jess than one year

1f an asset does not fulfil the current asset criterion, i is classified as a
non-current asset.

Receivables and liabilicies, as well as income and expenses, are offser
only if required or if expressly permitted under IFRS.

Liabiliues are divided into current liabilines and non-current Liabilies.
Current liabilitues are habilities to be paid within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period or, 1n the case of operaung liabilities anly, thac are
expected 10 be paid within the operating cyclie As this takes mie account
the operating cycle, no non-interest-bearing liabilities, such as accounts

payable or accrued staff costs, ate recognised as non-current Labihues.



WNeow o rev ocd ITRS et apply o fing &t year 2018

FOS O TE enm e e s B0l

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recogninon and Measurement. Through IFRS 9, the IASB has
completed an entire package of changes regarding reporung of financial
instruments The package indudes revised guidance for classification and
measurement of financial instruments, a forward-looking expected loss
impatrment model and simplified requirements for hedge accounting
1FRS 9 entered 1nto force on 1 January 2018. AddLife anabysed its
customers and customer losses, which over the past three financial years
totalled SEK 0.1 -0 4 mullion per year; sec Note 4 for additional infor-
mation about accounts receivable. The conclusion of the analysis is that
the introducuon of [FRS 9 and a forward-leoking impairment model
will not have any impact on the Group's financial statements.

FRS 15 Reverde o0 Contrmals vkl Costamers

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 1s a new standard
for recogninion of revenue. The purpose of the new revenue recogniuon
standard 1s to have a single principle-based standard for all industnes to
replace existing standards and statemenis about revenue. IFRS 15
entered 1nto foree on 1 January 2018. Employees from Group Manage-
ment, Group Business, and sales, as well as the CEQ and CFO partici-
pated 1n a project 1o classify the Group's revenues into different catego-
ries Significant revenue categories were analysed cthrough incerviews and
a review of contracts. AddLife’s service revenues primanly relate to
service of mstruments 1n the Labrech business area. The service that s
performed 1s carried out during a limited period of time and 15 invoiced
at thar eime. The Group's revenue has been classified into three different
cacegories: products, instruments and services. 'T'he category classifica-
tion reflects a natural delimitanion in the Life Science market. The
conclusion of cthe analysis s that IFRS 15 will noc have any impact on
accruat accounung of the Group’s revenue. [FRS 15 introduces increased
disclosure requirements, see Note %

New orrevised 1FRSs at apply 0 inercial vear 2019
FRE 16 Loanes”

IFRS 16 Leases ts a new standard relaung to repording of leases. Lessees
will no bonger have the oprion of classification under [AS 17 of finance
and operaung leases, which will be replaced with on-balance sheet recog-
ninon of assets and liabilities for all leases. There are two exemptions to
the requirements for recogninian on the balance sheet. leases of low value
icerns or short-term leases of 12 months or less. In the income statemens,
depreciation is reported separately from interest expense attributable to
the lease hiability. No major changes are expected for lessors as the rules
of [AS 17 will essentially be retained, wich the exception of addinonal
disclosure requirements. IFRS 16 entered into force on 1 Janunary 2019
Addlife has chosen to apply the modified retroactive transition method
Asof 1 January 2019, a lease liability i< recognised that represents the
present value of the remaining payments for all leases. The Group has
formulaced a marginal loan rate with which the payments are
discounted. The Group belicves that intreduction of the new standard
entails the following effects on the balance sheer Assets and liabilities are
expected 1o increase by about SEK 230 million, of which short-term
liabilities amounts to SEK 78 million and long-term liabiliues amount to
SEK 152 million. I'he Group expects that EBITA for 2019 will increase,
on account of the fact that parr of the leasing costs will be reported as
interest expense. Cash flow from operaring activities 1s expected to
increase, and cash flow from financing activities 1s expected to decrease
on account of the fact that the amortization portion of lease payments
will be recognized as payments in the financing activities. For informa-
tion abour AddLife’s leases, see Note 17

Consolidated financial statements

The acquisition method ts applied in the financial statements. bn brief
means that idenufiable assets, liabiities and contingent habilities in the
company acquired ;e measured and recogmised in the consolidated
financial statements as tf they had heen acquired directly by purchase and
not indirectly by acquisition of the company's shares The valuauon 1s
based on fair values. If the value of the nec assets 15 less than che acquusi-
tion price, consolidated goodwil] anses. If the opposite occurs, the differ-
ence is recognised directly in profit or loss Goodwill is determined in
local currency and is recognised ar cost, less any impairment losses.
Companies acquired or disposed of arc consolidared or deconsolidated,
respectively, from the date of acquisition or disposal.

Contingent considerations are measured at fair value at the rime of
the rransaction and are subsequently revalued on each reporung occa-
sion. Effects of the revaluanion are recognised as income or expense in
consohdated profit or loss. Fransaction costs in conjuncrion wirh acqui-
sitions are expensed It 1s posable for a holding that is not a conrrolling
interest to be measured at fair value upan acquisicion, which means dhat
goodwill is included in non-conerolling mtereses Alternatively, non-con-
trolling interests constitute part of net assets, The choice is determined
individually for each acquisition.

Intra-Group receivables and liabilities as well as transactions berween
companies included in the financial statements, as well as related unreal-
ised gains, are wholly eliminared Unrealised losses are eliminated in the

same way as unreahised gains, except in the case of iImpairment.

Exchange rate effects

Translauen of the nne-cial staterronis of toroivn Group compan e
Assers and Liabiliries in forcign operations, including goodwill and ather
surpluses and deficits on consolidation, are converted to Swedish kronor
using the exchange rare prevailing at the end of the reporung period.
Income and expenses in foreign businesses are converted o Swedish
kronor using the average rate, which is an approximarion of the rates
prevailing at the ame of each transaction. Translation differences result-
ing from the conversion of foreign operations' accounts are recognised
through other comprehensive income in the foreign currency wanslaton

reserve in equiry.

Transertons dowamnate din farg’an cuirer o s
A transaction denominaced in a Forcign currency is converted to the
funcrional currency ar the rate of exchange on the transactian dare.
Monetary assets and labilities in foreign currency are converred o the
functional currency using the rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities recognised at histoncal cose
are converted using the exchange rate ar the nme of the transacoon.
Exchange differences that arise in conversion are recogmised in profic or
loss. Exchange differences on operaring recervables and operatng liabilities
are included in operating profir or loss, while exchange differences on
finanaial recervables and liabilities are recognised among financial items.
The Group uses forward forcign exchange contracts to a certain
extent to reduce its exposure to exchange rate fluctuacions Forward
foreign exchange contracts are recognised at fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

Financial assets and lia ies, recogpition and derecognition
Financtal instruments recopnised among assets in the balance sheet
include cash and cash equivalents, loan recervables, accounts receivable,
financial investments and derivatives. The liabilities include accounts
payablc, loans payable] contingent considetanions and derivacives A
financial assct or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet
when the Company becomes 2 party to the 1erms and cenditions of the

instrument. Accounts recewvable are recognised in the balance sheer



when an invoice has been sent. A liabiliey 15 recognised when the coun-
terparty has completed its undercaking and a contracrual obliganon te
pay exists, even if no invoice has yet been received. A financial asser {or
part thereof) 1s removed from the balance sheet when the nghts i the
contract are realised or expire o1 the Company loses control over them.
A financial liabiliy {or part thereof) is removed from the balance sheet
when the obligation in the contract 15 fulfilled or 1n some othet way
ceases to exist. A financial asser and a financial liability are only offset
and recognused at the net amounc in the balance sheet when the
Company s legally entitled 1o offser their amounts and the Company
intends to settde the items with a net amount or simultaneously realise
the asser and settle the habilicy.

Financial assets and liabilities, measurement and classification
A financial instrament that is not a denvative 1s initially recognised at
cost, equivalent o che inscrument’s fair value plus rransacnion costs; this
applies to all financial instruments except those in the category of finan-
cial assets measured at fair value through profic or loss. Ac ininal recogni-
von, 2 financial inscrument s classified based on the purpose for which it
was acquired. The classification determines how the financial instrument
is measured after initial recognirion, as described below

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified in a hierar-
chy based on the origin of the inpues used in the evaluacion At level 1
are financial instruments with a price quoted in an active marker. Level 2
comprises financial instrumenes whose value is derermined based on
observable market daia, though not prices quoted in an acnive marker
1.evel 3 includes using 1nputs, such as cash flow analyses, not based on

observable marker dara

Financisd ossars ang lallings seeosares at o walue through prefit
aross

This category consists of rwo subgroups: financial assets and liabilities
held for crading, and other financial assets and liabilities thar the
Company ininally chose to place in this category. The first group
includes derivatives unless they are designated hedging instruments. The
other group contains conungent considerations in conjuncuon with

acquusitions of subsidiaries.

Acean nry recen aube aod loan rece’vables

Loan receivables and accounts recetvable are financial assets that are not
derivatives, with fixed payments or with payments that can be deter-
mined, and thar are not quored on an active market. Assets in this cate-
gory arc measured at amorused cost.

Accounts receivable are recogmised ac the amount expecred to be
recovered, after deduction for doubttul recervables, assessed individually.
The expecied maturiues of accounts receivable are short, so they are
recognised at nominal amounts without discounting. Impairment losses

on accounts receivable are recognised 1n operaung expenses.

Unlist=d eguily ipsiruments cared a1 cost
A holding of unlisted shares in housing companies, whose fair value
cannot be reliably calculated, is measured at cost and tested for impair-

ment when an indication of impairment is observed.

Ciner finanais] Hahr os

Loans and ocher financial habiliues, such as accounts payable, are
included n this caregory. These liabilities are measured at amornsed cost.
Accounts payable are measured at nominal amounts withoue

discounting.

Do wateves and €0 rency bhedging
Foreign currency exposure related to furure contractual and forecasted
flows is hedged with forward exchange contracts, swaps and currency

clauses in customer and supplier contracts. An embedded derivative, for
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example a currency clause, 15 disciosed separasely unless closely related o
its host contract. Derivatives are initially recognised ar fair value, so
transaction costs are charged to piofic or loss for the period Afrer the
1nitial recognition, the denvacive instrument 1s measured ar fair value
Neicher futures, swaps nor embedded derivatives 1n currency clauses are
reported as hedging ar this time. Increases and decreases in value are

recogmscd as income or CXPCI’ISC in operating pl’Oﬁ[.

Financial assets and liabilities, classification

Cash ond cash ecuivalenits

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and funds immediarely avail-
able in banks and equivalent instutunions, as well as short-term liquid
investments thar mature within chree months of the time of acquisition
and are subject o only a neghgible risk of fluctuanon in value.

Fi
If the anuciparted holding period of the assetis longer than one year, the

nercicliec wables and praostmaents

receivable 1s a non-currens receivable; if shorter, 1115 an other currenr
receivable. Financial investments are clasaified aither as non-current
financial assets or current investments. depending on the purpose of the
holding. If the matunty or the anucipated holding period is longer than
one year, such financial investments are considered non-current invest-

ments if shorter than one year, currenc investments.

Liatnie es

Non-current habihiues consist of liabilines that the Group has an uncon-
ditional right 1o pay later than one year from the end of the reporting
period and thar are intended to be paid later than one year Qcher liabidh-

€5 are current.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost, less accumulated
depreaiation and any impairment losses. The cost comprises the purchase
price, including customs and exase duues, as well as costs drectly aurib-
utable 10 the asset to bring it 1o the locanion in such condition that it can
be used as intended by the acquusition. Discounts and the like are
deducted from the purchase price. Examples of directly avributable costs
included in the cost are shipping and handling, installation, legal ratifica-
von and consulting services.

Additonal expenditure for an uem of property, plant and equipment
15 only added to the cost if it increases the future economic benefits. All
other eapenditure, such as expenditure for repair and maintenance, is
expensed on a current basis. A deaisive factor as to when an eremental
expenditure should be added ro the cost is whether the expenditure refers
to the replacement of identified components or parts thereof, in which
case the expenditure 1s capitalised. Also, if a new component has been
created, the expenditure s added 1o the cost Any undepreciated canying
amounts for replaced components, or parts of components, are renred
and expensed 1n conjunction with the replacement.

Any impairment 1s reported as per [AS 36 Impairment of Assets,

Depreciation 1s calculared on a scraighe line basis over the esumarted
useful life and taking account of any residual value ac the end of thar
period,

Property, plant and equipment comprising parts that have different
useful lives are treated as separate components.

The carrying amount of an item of properry, plant and equipment is
removed from the balance sheet upon retirement or disposal of the asset,
or when no future economic benefits are expected to be denved from uts
use. Gans or losses realised upon the disposal or retirement of an asset
consist of the difference between the selimg price and the carrying
amount of the asset, less direct selling expenses, Gains or losses are

recogniscd as other opcrating income or Otht‘l' opt'r:mng L‘XPCHCC



Property, plant, and equipment Useful life

Buiidings 20-100 years
Equipment 3-5 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Land improvements 10 years

Leases

When accounting for leases, a disunction is made between finance and
operating leascs. A finance lease is chazacterised by the lessee assuming,
in all essential respects, the ecconomic benefits and risks associated with
ownership of the asset. If thai is not the case, the lease 15 regarded as an
operating lease.

Significanc finance leases are recognised as non-current assets,
innially valued at the present value of the minimum lease payments
when the agreement was entered into. On the liabihues side, the present
value of remaining future lcase payments is recognised as interest-bearing
non-current and current liabilities. The asset is depreciated over its useful
life, usually corresponding to the lease period, 1aking into account any
residual value at the end of the period. Impairment is tested in accor-
dance with JAS 36 Impairment of Asscts.

Lease paymencs are divided into interese and amorusation of the
liabihiy. Orcher lease obligations are recognised as per rules for operating
leases, such that lease paymenis are charged as an operating cxpensc on a
straight hine basis duning the lease period. Vanable charges ate recogrused

as an expense in the period they are incurred.

Intangible non-current assets

Intangible non-current assets are recognised n accordance with IAS 38
[ncangible Assers at cost, less accumulated amortisation, and are divided
between goodwill and other intangible non-current assets Any impaie-
ment of intangible assets 15 recognised as per 1AS 36 Impairment of
Assers.

An intangible asset is an idennfiable nonmonerary asser, without
physical substance, that is used for marketing, producing or supplying
goods or services, ot for rencal and administranon. To be recognised as
an asset, it must be probable that the future ecanonuc benefits atrshue-
able 1o the asset will benefit the Company and that the (acquisicion) cost
can be caleulated reliably.

Additional expenditure for an intangible assec is only added o the
cost if it increases future economic benefits beyond the onginal assess-
ment and if the expenditure can be calculaced reliably. All other expendi-
ture is expensed as 1t is incurred.

Goodwill represents the difference berween the cost, in connection
with a business combination, and the fair value of acquired assess,
assumed liabilities and contingent liabiliries.

Goodwill and intangible non-current assets with indefinable useful
fives are measured at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses,
Goodwill and intangble non-current assets with indefinable useful lives
are allocated among cash-generating units and are not amorused bur are
tested for impairment on an annual basis.

Intangible assets aside from goodwill are recognised at their original
cost, less accumulared amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged primarily on a straighe line basis and 1s based
on the uscful lives of the assers, which are reviewed on an annual basis
An asset’s useful hife is based on historical experience of use of similar
assets, areas of apphcaton and other specific features of the asser.

Amorusation is included in cost of sales, selling expenses or adminis-
trative expenses, depending on where 1n the business the assets are used

Expenditure for development, 1in which the results of research or
other knowledge are applied 10 achieve new or improved products or
processes, is recogmised as an asset in the balance sheer if the product 1s
rechnically and commercially viabte and the Company has sufficient

resources to complete development and subsequently usc or sell che

intangible asset. Other development expenditure 1s expensed as itas
incurred
Expenditure for internally gencrated goodwll and trademarks s

recognised in pmﬁ[ or loss as an expense as it is incurred.

Intangible assets Useful life
Supplier relatnonships 10 years
Software for IT operations 3-5 years
Technology 13 years
Research and development 5-10 years
Gaoodwll and Trademarks indeterminable

Impairment losses
Bropo iy, plant, and egapmentane ivdaag Ple sasets
The carrying amounts of Group assets are 1ested as soon as there is indi-
cation that the asset in question has decreased in value. If such indicauion
exists, impairment is determuned after calculating the recoverable
amount of the asset, which is the higher of an asset’s value in use and its
fair value. Impairment loss 1s recognised 1f the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount The value in use 1s calculared as the present
value of furure payments that the Company 1s expecred o receive by
using the asset The esrimared residual value ar the end of the useful hfe
is included in che value in use. If che recoverable amount of an individual
asset cannot be determuined, the recoverable amoune is ser at the recover-
able amount for the cash-generating umit to which the asset belongs. A
cash-generating unit is the smallest group of assets thar give rise to
continuous payment surpluses independent of other assets ar groups of
assets Consolidated goodwill is attributable to the cash-generaning unit
to which the goodwill is linked. Impairment losses are reversed when the
impairment, wholly or partly, no langer exists However, an impatrment
loss on goodwill is never reversed

For goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinable useful lives
and for intanggble assets not yet ready for use, the recoverable amounc is

calculated annually and more frequendy of impairment indicators anse,

Favancal assets

When accounts are prepared for reporting, the Company assesses
whether there is objecsive evidence that any financial asset or group of
assets is impaired. The recoverable amount of loan receivables and
accounts recervable recognised ar amortised cost is caleulated as the pres-
ent value of furure cash flows discounted by rhe effective interest rate
prevailing when the asser was first recogmised. Assets with short marur-
ities are not discounted. Impairment losses are chaiged o the income

statement.

Inventories
Inventories, thar 1s, raw macerials and finished goods for resale, are
carried at the tower of cost and net realisable value, thereby taking into
account the risk of obsolescence. The cost is calculared using the firstin,
first out (FIFO) principle or weighted average prices

In the case of finished and semi-finished goods manufactured
in-house, the cost consists of direct manufacturing costs and a reasonable
portion of indirect manufacturing costs. Normal eapacity utlisation s

taken into account in valuadion,

Capital
Nao expressed measure of financial position related to shareholders’
equity is used wneernally.

AddLife’s dividend policy invalves a payour racio exceeding 30 o 50

percent of profit after tax over a business cycle.



Equity
Repurchasing treasury shares occurs, and the Board noimally proposes
obtaiming a mandate 1o repurchase ereasury shares, which involves
acquiring an amount of shares such that AddLife’s own holding ac no
time exceeds ten percent of all shares in the Company. The purpose of
the repurchase is to provide the Board with increased scope for acuon in
its work with the Company’s capital structure, to enable the usc of repur-
chased shares as payment in acquusitions, and 1o secure the Company's
commitments in exisung incentive programmaes.

When treasury shares are repurchased, the entire consideration
reduces retained earnings. Proceeds from the disposal of equuty instru-
ments are rEcogniscd as an increasc in rﬁfﬂiﬂfd Earn]ngs, as arc any trans-

action costs

Employee benefits
Employee benefits are recognised in the consolidated financial state-

ments as per IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

timplyoe bonefits sfun tormirzier af ongloy nert pensior
obbgabirs

AddLife has defined benefic pension plans in Sweden. In these plans, a
pension 15 determined mainly by the salary recerved at the time of retire-
ment. The plans cover a small number of employees, some defined-con-
tribunion plans also apply. Subsidiarses in other countries i the Group
have defined conrribution pension plans.

A dissincuon is made berween defined contribution pension plans
and defined benefit pension plans. In defined-contribution plans, the
Company pays stipulated fees to a separate fegal enury and has no oblt-
gation to pay sddinonal fees. Costs are charged to the Group's profit or
loss at the rate at which che benefits are earned. In defined benefic
pension plans, benefits are paid to current and former employecs based
on their salary upon retirement and the number of years of service. The
Group bears the nsk for payment of promised benefits.

The Group's net obligation to defined benefit plans is calculated
individually for each plan by estimating furure benefits chat employees
have earned through employment in current and previous periods. This
benefit is discounted to a present value. Any unreperted costs related wo
service 1n previous periods are recogmised directly in profit or loss

Defined benefit pension plans are both funded and unfunded. When
aplanis funded, its assets have been separated into plan assets These
plan assets can only be used for payments of benefits as per the pension
agreements The net value of the esumated present value of the obliga-
tions and the fair value of plan assets is recognised in the balance sheet,
erther as a provision or as a non-current financial recervable. When a
surplus in a plan cannot be fully urilised, only the portion of the surplus
that the Company can recover through reduced future fees or repay-
ments s recognised.,

A surplus in one plan relate to anly offsct by a deficic in another plan
if the Company 15 enttled to utilise a surplus in one plan wo serele 2
deficicin another plan, or if the obliganions are intended to be settled on
a net basis.

"T'he pension cost and pension obligation for defined benefit pension
plans are caleulared using the Projected Unit Credic Method. This
method disiributes the cost of pensions at the rate at which employees
perform seevices for the Company thac increase sheir nights to furure
benefits. The aim 1s to expense expected furure pension payouts in a
manner that provides an even cost over the employec's period of employ-
ment. This calenlation rakes into account anticipared furure salary
increases and anciapated inflation. The Company's obligation is catcu-
lated annually by independenc actuaries The discount rate used is
equivalent 1o the interest rate on high-quality corporate bonds or mort-

gage-hbacked bonds with a maturity equivalent to the average marturicy of
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the obligauon and cusrency. For Swedish pension liakulicies, the tnrerest
rate for Swedish housing bonds is used as 4 basis and for Norwegian
pension liabilides, the interest rate for Norwegian corporate bonds s
used.

Revaluauons may arise when cstablishing the obligacion’s present
value and fasr value on plan assets. These may anse cither because the
acrual outcome differs from previously made assumptions (expen-
ence-based adjustments), or because assumpuons were changed. These
revaluations are recognised 1 the balance sheet and the income state-
ment under other comprehensive income. The present vatue of the
defined benefic obligation is determined by discounting the estimared
future cash flows The discount rate used is equivalent o the interest rate
on high-quality carporate bonds or government bonds with a maturity
equivalent to the average matunity of the obliganion and currency

A porton of the Group's defined benefit pension obligarions has
been financed through premiums to Alecta The required informarion
cannot be obtained from Alecta, so these pension obligations are
reported as a defined-contribution plan.

Payroll tax 1s a part of the actuarial assumprion and is therefore
reported as part of the net obhgation/asset. The poruon of payroll rax
calculated based on che Pension Obligations Vestung Act (Tryggande-
fagen) for a legal entity is stated, for reasons of simphairy, as acerued costs
instead of as part of the ner obliganion/asser.

Tax on returns is reported in the income statement for the penod the
ax refers 1o and 1s thus not included (n the calculation of debt. For
schemes run as funds, tax is levied on returns for plan asscts and reported
m other comprehensive income. For schemes not run as funds or run
partly as funds, rax 15 included in proﬁt or loss

When the cost of a pension is determined differendly in a legal entity
than in the Group, a provision or claim for taxes on pension costs is
recognised, such as a special cmplayer's conmbution for Swedish compa-
nies based on chis difference T'he present value for the provision or claim
18 not cakeutaced.

Benetits Lpon werminalion of erploynent

A cost for benefits in conjuncuen with terminacion of employment is
recognised onby if there is a formal, detaded plan 1o termnate employ-
ment priof to the normal date

Shor tetere Teeefits

Short-rerm benefits to employees are calculated without discounting and
are recognised as an expense when the relared services are performed.

A provision for the expected costs of bonus disbursements is
recognised when the Group has a vahid legal or informal obhgadion o
make such payments as a resulit of services recerved from employees and
where the obligation can be calculated rehably

Share-based incentive programmes
The Group's share-based incentive programmes make it possible for
senior managemenc to purchase shares in the Company. The employees
have paid a market premiam for call opuions on Class B shares

The programme includes a subsidy so that the employee receves the
same sum as the option premium paid in the form of cash payment, Le.
salary This subsidy shall be paid ewo years after the issue decision,
providing that the option holder is sull employed in the Group and owns
call options at that time. This subsidy and the associated social securiry
costs are acerued as persannel costs over che vesting period AddLife has
no obligation to repurchase the opnons when an employee terminates
employment ‘T'he holder may excrcise the oprions regardless of contin-

ued employment in the Group. See also Note 7



Provisions and contingent liabilities

A proviston 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a
formal or informal obliganian as a tesult of a transpired event, 1t is proba-
ble that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obliganion
and the amount can be estimated reliably. If the effect 15 material, che
provision is based on a present value calculadon.

Provisions are made for future costs resulting from warranty under-
rakings. The calculauon 1s based on expenditure during the financial year
for similar undereakings or the estimated costs for each undertaking.

Provisions for restructuring costs are recogmsed when a detarled
restruccunng plan has been adopted and the restructuring bas eicher
begun or been announced

Contingent habilities are recogmised when a possible underraking
exists stemming from past events and the existence of the undertaking 15
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoceurrence of one or more
uncertain furure events not entirely within the Company’s conurol.
Orther obligations are also recognised as contingent habiliges if they
result from past events but are not recognised as a liability or provision
because 1t 15 unlikely char an outflow of resources will be required e
setele the undertaking ot because the size of the underraking cannot be

derermined with sufficient accuracy.

Revenue recognition
The fair value of whar has been recerved, or whar witl be received, 1s
recognised as <ales revenue Deducnions are made for value added wax,
returns, discounts and price reductions Revenue from sales of goods s
recognised when ceruain requirements have been met. These require-
ments are that marterial nisks and benefits associated with ownership of’
the goods have been transferred to the purchaser, that the selling
company does not retain any invalvement in ongoing administration nor
does it exert any real control aver the goods sold, that che revenue can be
caleulated eeliably, ehat it is likely that the economic benefits that the
Company will obtain from the transaction will accrue o the Company,
and that the expenses that have artsen or are expected to arise as a result
of the transacrion can be caleulated reliably.

Lease revenue is recogniscd on a straight line basis in profit or loss

based on the terms of the lease.

Finance income and costs

[nterest income on receivables and interest expense on Liabilities are
compurted using the effecuve interest method. The effecuve rate s the
interest rate that makes the present value of all future receipts and
payments during the period of fixed interest equal to the carrying
amount of the receivablc or Labilicy. Interest expenses and income
include accrued amounts of any transacuion costs, rebates, premiums and
other differences between the original value of the irem and the amount
paid/received upon marturity. Interest and dividends are recognised as
income when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the cransacoon will acerue to the Company and thart the income can be

calculated reliably

Tax onincome

Tax is recogmised in profit or loss, except when the underlying transac-
uon 1s recognised in other comprehensive sncome or directly 1n equity, in
which case the associated rax effect 1s also recognised in other compre-
hensive income or equity. Current tax refers to tax that is to be paid or
tefunded for the current year. This also includes adjustments of current
tax artributable to prior periods.

Deeferred rax is caleulared using the Labilicy method based on tempo-
rary differences beoween carrying amounts and tax bases of assers and
liabihities The amounes are calculated depending on how the temporary
differences are expected to be serrled and by applying the tax rates and

tax rules cnacted or announced at the end of the reporung period.

Temporary differences aie not taken 1nto account in consolidated good-
will, nor in differences atcrtburtable to intereses 1o subsidiaries or associ-
ates owned by Group companies outside Sweden thar are not expected to
be raxed in the foreseeable furure. In the consolidared financial state-
ments, untaxed reserves are allocated 10 deferred tax liability and equisy.
Deferred tax assets related to deducrible temporary ditferences and rax
loss carryforwards are only recognised to the extenticis hikely they will
reduce tax payments in the future.

Segment reporting

Assets and liabilidies as well as income and expenses are attributed to the
segment where they are used, earned and consumed, respectively The
operating segment’s earnings are monitored by the Group’s highest exec-
utive deaision-maker, 1.2, the CEO of AddLife.

The division into eperating segments is based on the business area
orgarsation in AddLife, which are Labtech and Medtech. The division
into business areas reflects Addl.ife’s internal organisation and reporung
system The business grouping in AddLife reflects a natural division of
markets within the Life Science martket. Operations thar do not belong
to these areas of aperation are included under the heading Group irems.

Cash flow statement

In preparing the cash flow statement, the indirect method was apphed.
In addition to flows of cash and bank funds, carrent investments macur-
ing within three months of the acquisition date thac can be converted
unto bank deposits at an amount known beforchand are classified as cash

and cash equivalencs.

Events after the reporting period

Events that occurred after the reporting period but whose circamstances
were identifiable at the end of the reporting peniod are included in the
reporung. If significant events occurred after the reporung perind but
did not affect the recognised resulss of operations or financial position,
the event is disclosed in Note 35.

Personnel information

The Swedish Annual Accounes Act requires more information than
IFRS, ncluding informartwon abour the gender of the Board of Directors
and management.

Data on gender dhstribution refer 1o the sitwation ac the end of the
reporting peniod. "Members of the Board of Directors” are dwrectors,
elected by a general meeting of shareholders, in the Parent Company and
in Group compantes "Members of semtor management’ are people in
Group Management and Managing Directors at Gioup companies,

MNOTE 3 E CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilines are based 1in part on
estimates and assumptions. This applies particularly co impairmenc test-
ing of goodwill (Note 15) and o defined bencfit pension obligatons
{Note 24). Assumptions and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and expectations regarding future events
deemed reasonable under prevailing circumstances.

Tests are performed each year 1o derermine if goodwill is impaired
The recoverable amount for cash generating untes has been determined
by calculating values in use. For these ealculavions, certain estimares
must be made.

A portion of the Group's pension obligations for salaned employees
is on a defined benefit basis and is covered by collective policies with
Alecta Currently, it is imposaible to obtain data from Alecta on the

Group's share of obltgations and plan assets, so the pensian plan with
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Atecta must be recognised as a defined-contribudion plan. The consolida-
tion ratio reported by Alecta does not indicate any deficit, but it is not
possible to obtain detatled information from Alecta abour the size of the
pension obligation

The present value of pension obligarions recognised as defined bene-
fit plans depends on muleiple factors determened on an actuarial basts
using a number of assumpuons In establishing these assumptions,
AddLife consults with actuaries. The assumprions used to determine the
present value of the obligauon include the discount race and salary
tncreases Each change mn these assumptions will affect che carrying
amount of pension obligations. See also Note 24.

Changes in tax laws in the countnes where AddLife operates could
change the amount of tax iiabilines and assets recognised. In addition,
the interpretacion of current tax faws can affect reporied tax asset/liabil-
ity. Assessments are made to determine both current and deferred tax
assets/liabilities The acrual results may deviate from these estimates, in

part because of changes in the business climate or the tax rules.

NGTE4 E FINANCIAL R$SKS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Goals and policy for risk management

AddWLafe strives for structured and efficient management of the financial
risks that anse 1 operations, which is manifest in the financial policy
adopted by the Board of Dhrectors The financial aperations are not
conducred as a separate line of the business they are merely intended to
consttute support for the business and reduce risks in the financial oper-
attons The policy suipulates goals and risks in che financial operations,
and how they are to be managed. The financal policy expresses the goal
of mimmising and connolling finanaial 1isks. The pohicy defines and
idenufies the financial risks chat anise at Addlafe and how responsibility
for managing these risks is distributed n the organisaton. The financial
risks defined in the financial policy are currency risk, interest rate risk,
liquidicy, financing and issuer/borrower risk Operational risks, that 1s,
financial risks related to operating activities, are managed by cach subsid-
1ary's management according to penciples in the financial policy and
subordinate process descriptions approved by the Group's Board of
Directors and management. The subsidiaries within AddLife include
financial derivatives with an external counterparty, Rusks such as transla-
tion exposure, refinancing risk and unterest rate nisk are managed by the
Parent Company, Addi.fe AB.

Currency risks

The AddLife Group conducts extensive erade abroad and a marerial
currency exposure cherefore arises 1in the Group, which must be managed
in such a way as to mimrmse the impact on earnings ensuing from
exchange rate fluctuations.

The AddLife Group applics decentralised responsibility for currency
risk management. This involves risk identification and nisk hedging
erther through matching of currency flows, via currency accounts, or via
forward exchange contracrs at the subsidiary level.

The companues are responsible for choosing the most appropriate
hedging measure from a commercial and risk viewpoint.

To minimise currency risks, matching of inflows and outflows tn the
same currency shall be priontised. Curreney clauses may be used 1f the
(Company deems it to be advantageous from a risk and commercial view-
pont The main principle for the currency clause is 80 percent compen-
saton for an exchange rate flucaation of +/- 2%. If the Company
believes that currency nsk could have a significant impact on the
outcome after the exposure 1s reduced through matching and/or
currency clauses, the Company must hedge its commercial net flows

with forward exchange contracts on a monthly basis
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For AddLife, currency risk arises as a result of future payment flows 1n
foreign currency. known as transaction exposure, and also because parts
of the Group's equity comprise net assets in foreign subsidiaries, known

as translation exposure.

T ANRICTNS £X 0SS

Tiansaction exposure comprises all future contracted and forecastingo-
ing and outgoing payments in foreign currency. The Group's currency
flows usually pertain to flows in foreign currency from purchases, sales
and dividends. Transacuon exposure also comprises financial wransac-
tons and balances During financial years 2018 and 2017, che Group's
payment flows in foreign currencies were distributed as follows:

2018 o Currency flows, gross Currency flows
SEKm Inflows Outflows o net
EOR T T T Toare 5671 T ERe Y
DKK 918 177 771
NOK 5346 05 531
UsD 2472 1620 -137 8
Y 03 89 -8.6
GBF /1 171 -100
CHEF o3¢} 6.3 -6 3
2017 Currency flows, grass Currency flows
SEKm Inflows 0utﬂowsﬁ net
R T T T Tagze T sz ama
DKK 959 105 854
NOK 468 04 46 4
UsD 39 1318 -1279
JPY - 185 -18.5
GBP 08 130 -12.2
CHF ac 1i8 -11.8

The effects of exchange rate fluctuations are reduced by buying and sell-
ing 1n the same currency, through currency clauses in customer contracts
and, 1o a certain degree, by forward purchases or sales of foreign
currency, Currency clauses are 2 common method in the industry for
handlieg uncertainty associated with future cash flows. A currency clause
means that compensation will be paid for any changes in the exchange
rate that exceed a certain predefined level during che contrace penod It
these thresholds are not reached, for example when the exchange race
changes by less than two percentage points, no compensation is paid.
The currency clauses adjust the exchange 1ate change berween the time
the order is placed and the invoice date. Currency clauses are symmetri-
cally designed, which means that compensauon 1s charged or credited
when the exchange rate nises or declines beyond the predefined
thresholds.

Of AddLafe’s net sales in 2018, currency clauses cover about 25 (25)
percent and sakes in the purchasing currency make up abour 19 (27)
percent In certain transactions, there is a direct link between the
customer's arder and the associated purchase order, which 15 a good basis
for effective currency risk management. However, in many cases the
dates of the orders do not coinaide, which may reduce the effectiveness
of these measures The companies wirhin AddLife have reduced dheir
currency exposure by using forward foreign exchange contracts. Ac the
end of the 2018 financial year, there were outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts i a gross amount of SEK 39.9 million (61.0), of
which EUR equalled SEK 26.0 miltion (32 8}, USD SEK 33.8 million
(28.5), GBP SEK 0.1 mullion (0.0) and CHF SEK 0.0 nullien (0.3)

Of the total contracts of SEK 59,9 muillion {61.0), SEK 41 9 million
(51.4) mature within six menths. Hedge acconnting does not apply 1o
forward foreign exchange contracts and they are dassified as a financial

asset measured at fair value through profit or loss



Note 4 cont'd

Currency flows in the Parent Company are mainly in Swedish kronor
{SEK}. To the extent that internal and external loans and investments in
the Parent Company are in foreign currency, 100 percent of the caparal
amount is hedged.

Iransiat on exposii e
AddLife’s translation exposure is not hedged at this time. AddLife’s net

assets are distributed among foreign currencies as follows

2018 207
T senstwty | Sensitivity
Net investments SEKm analysis¥ ~ SEKm a"a'yi'ill
NCK o 1164 58 1250 62
EUR 2398 120 1090 54
DKK 873 44 823 a2
E"MSLDW 68 03 83 04

Dimpact of +° 5% exchange rale on Graup cquity

When translating the income statement of units with a funcuonal
currency other than SEK, a translation effecr anses when exchange rates
vacy. Wath the current distribution of Group companies’ differenr func-
vonal currencies, a change of 1 percentage point 1n the exchange rares
would have an effect on ner sales and on EBITA as follows:

SEKm 2018 o 27(21;:1
MNet sales 164 153
EBITA 18 17

The exchange rates used in the financial statements are shown in che
following table:

Average rate Closing day rate

31 Dec. 31 Dec
Exchange rate 2018 2017 2018 2017
oNvl 13135 12631 13068 12642
DKK 1 13762 12949 137460 13229
FUR 1 10 2567 9 6326 102753 ¢ 8497
GBP 1 11 5928 109894 113482 111045
NOK 1 10687 10330 10245 10011
ESWI“)*}M 86921 mﬁ?BSO 89710 ) 6_5"232?

Financing and liquidity

The overall objectve of AddLife's financing and debt management is to
secure financing for the operations in both the long and short term, and
to munimuse borrowing costs. Capital requirements shall be secured
through an active and professional borrowing procedure of overdrafe and
credit faclities. Raising external financing is centralised ac AddLife AB.
Sausfactory payment capacity shall be achieved through contracrual
credit facilities. Surplus hquidity is primarly used to pay down outstand-
ing loans. Temporary surpluses in hquid funds are invested at optimum
recurn. Credur, interest rate and liquidity nisks will be minimised when
invesring liquid funds The fixed interest term and the peniod duning
which capital 1s tied up may not exceed six months Only counterparues
with high credit ratings are permitted. AddLife AB provides an internal
bank which lends to and borrows from the subsidianes. AddIafe’s
current interest-bearing liabilities aie shown in Note 27.

En late 2015 the AddLife Group established a common cash pool for
the countries in which the Group has significane operations. Subsidiaries
in these countries were connected to the cash pool and manage all liquid-
1ty within the framework of the cash pool accounts In cases where there
15 no cash pool in the country where the subsidiary operates its business,

or if an individual foreign currency accounc is not found within the cash

pool, the subsidiary will deposit any excess hqudity with AddLife AB.

Temporary excess iquidity in AddLife AB may be invested in accordance
with the foilowing guidelines:

i) The investment’s interest rate and capital may not be tied up for

more than s months.

The following mvestments are permitred:
1) interest-bearing account ar a bank with the nght to immediate
withdrawal, minimum credit rating of A.
ui} deposit in Swedish banks with a minimum credit raung of A
v} money market instruments {<1 year) such as treasury bills and
commercial paper with credit raungs corresponding to A-1, K-1,
P-1 {very high credirworthiness).

Re"riencing vish
Refinancing risk is the risk of AddLife not having access to sufficient
financing on each occasion. The refinancing risk increases if AddLife’s
credie rating deterioraces or if AddLife becomes woo dependent on one
source of financing. 1f all or a large part of the debt portfolio matures on
a single or a few occasions, this could volve the turnover or refinancing
of a large proportion of the loan volume having to accur on disadvanta-
geous interest and borrowing terms. In order to limit the refinancing
nsk, the procurement of long-term credic facilities commences nine
months at the latest before the credir facilicy marures.

The marurity structure, including incerest paymencs, for the Group's

financial interest-bearing habilities, 1s disttibuted over the coming years

as follows:
R Matures T
after after 1
Future within 3 months year
Carrying  hqud 3 withinl within5 after
Maturity date amount amount months year years 5 years
Interest-bearing
finanoal iabilities 8456 8476 5514 1530 1432

The nghts issue that rased SEK 501 mdlion in cash and cash equivalents
closed in February 2019, The bridging loan from the acquisition of
Biomedica was paid off in the amount of SEK 550 mulion 1n March
2019.

Orther operating liabilities that compnise financial mseruments al) fall
due for payment within 1 year.

Interest rate risk
Incerest race risk define that the risk of actual value on nor Furure cash
flows by a financial instrument varies because of restacemnents of market
rates The interest rate risk is regulated by ensuring thart the average fixed
interest term of the debt partfolio varies between zero and three years
"The debr portfolio consists of bank overdraft facilities with fixed interesc
terms of three months and ourstanding external loans with remaining
fixed incerest terms of six months.

AddLife’s financial net debr as ar 31 December 2018 was SEK 882
million (588). AddLife’s net financial debr as ar 31 Decemnber 2018
affects net financial irems by about SEK +/- 9 miilion (+/~6} if interest

1ates change by one percentage pont.
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Note 4 cont'd

Issuer/borrower risk and credit risk

Issuer/borrower risk and credit risk are defined as the risk of AddLife’s
counterpartees failing co fulfil their contractual obligations. Addlide is
exposed to eredit risk in its finanoal ransacrions, i.e. in invesung s
surplus Liquidity and execuring forward farcign exchange transactions,
and in 1ts commercial operanions in connection with accounts receivable
and advance payments to suppliers. Credit nsk exposure consists of the
carrymg amouns of the financal assers.

To wulise its companies’ detailed knowledge of AddLufe’s customers
and suppliers, each company assesses the credir risk in its commercial
transactions. New customers ale assessed before credut is granted, and
credit limits set are strictly enforced. Short credit periods are pursued and
the absence of excessive concentranian of business wich individual
customers and specific sectors contnibutes to minimising the nsks No
individual customer accounts for mote than 4 percent {5) of otal credic
exposure over a one-year period. The equivalent figure for the ten Largest
customers is aboue 18 percent (22). Exposure per customer segment and
geographic market is presented in Note 6.

Bad debt losses cotalled SEK 0.4 million (0.1} during the year, equal
10 0.0 percent {0 0) of net sales.

Accounts recevable, SEKm 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017

Cost 5147 3346
Impairment losses 69 -08
Carrying amount 507 8 3338

Change in impaired acc_ounts_r_eceivable 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Arnount at start of year -8 -4 72
Corporate acquisitions 61 00
Year’s imparrment losses/reversals of

impairment Q.0 34
Totak -4.9 -08

Time analysis of accounts receivable that

are overdue but not impaired 31Dec. 2018 31Dec 2017

< =30days 525 415
31-60 days 107 24
> 60 days 126 29
Total 75.8 446.8

NOTES ; NET SALES BY REVENUE TYPE AND

BUSINESS AREA
Medtech 2018 2017
Products T 5158 8413
Instruments 1147 98 5
Serwces - 0z
Total ) 10305 9400
Labtech 2018 2017
Producis i 944 2 ——358_;{
Instruments 3813 3794
Services 1254 1055
Total ) 14511 13933

Regarding other revenue types, dividends and interest income are rec-
agnised in financial tems, see Note 10

Parent Company

Of the Parent Company's net sales of SEK 37.5 mithon (30 93, 100

percent (100) relate 1o intra-group sales Of administrauve expenses in
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the Parent Company of SEK 43.1 million (48.4), | percent (0} relates to

purchases from Group companies.

NOTES | SEGMENT REPORTING

The division into business arcas reflects AddLife’s internal organisation
and reporting system. AddLife reports 1s business areas as operating
segments The two business areas are Labtech and Medtech. This markec
grouping reflects 2 natural dwvision of the Life Science marker. AddLife
uses EBITA as a performance measure when monttoring the business
arcas. Intra-Group sales are based on the same prices that an independent

party would pay for the product.

Labtech

The compamies in the Labeech business area operate within diagnostics
and biomedical rescarch, as well as laboratory analysis. The companices
deliver directly to customers various praducts and solutions thac include
analyrical instruments, equipment, microscopes, consumables and
reagents, as well as software support and technical service, primarily o
laboraiones in medicine, research, academia and the food and pharma—
ceunical industnies. The companies wirhin the Labtech business area are
manly acuve in microbielogy, clinical chenustry, coagulation, molecular
biclogy, research, immunology, point-of-care testing, veterinary diagnos-
ucs and in the food industry. Customers are also offered training
programmes in various areas to ¢nsure that customers have the appropn-
ate skalls and to maximise user benefic for the products the Company

provides.

Medtech

‘The companies in the Medtech business area provide medical deviee
products within the medeech market, wath a focus on surgery, thoraac
medicine, neurology, wound care, anaesthesia, intensive care, car, nose
and throar, ostomues, and home healcheare.

[3nus oy operating copment
During the financial years 2018 and 2017, no internal invowing

occurred beoween the business areas

2018 . 2017
Net sales External _Externat
Mediech 10305 3400
Labtech 1.451.1 1,393 3
Total o 24816 23333
EBITA 2018 29}_7" .
T I::ES"FIT.;W T EBITA
EBITA  margin, % EBITA margin, %
Medtech o4 52 930 99
labtech 1654 114 1504 108
— 018
Operating profit/loss, assets and Operating
liabilties profit Assets! Liabilties!
Medtech 396 15450 2410
Labtech 1459 10122 4210
Graup items -178 1106 10741
Toral T 67T 26678 17361
Finance tcome and costs 97 o X
Profit after financial tems T "isan T

1) Daes not include balances i Group accounts of financial transactmns with Groagp
£ OMpanies



Note 6 cont'd

2 LA,
Operating profit/loss, assets and Operating
liabilities profit Assets! Liabilities?
Medtech T T TTas7 12285 1363
Labtech 1326 6327 2745
Group items -124 ____3_0 1 Eg.i_
Yotal 1é59 18913 11433
Finance incame and costs -83
Profit after financial items 157.6 o

1) Does not include batances in Group accounts ar imancial transa ons waith Group
(RMpanies

Investre s i ned -oorrent assets

— e 2018 PN Lo T
¥ Property, plant n Propertijl;ln.;;tnmmm e
Investmentsinnoo-currentassets  __ Intangble andequipment?  Total  lntangble  andequipment’ - Total
Medtech 106 1 111 1172 1920 94 2014
Labtech 1015 194 1209 170 167 337
Groupitems T B0 T -
Total 207.6 305 2381 209.0 2612351
1N The amounts dy not include the effects of corporate acguisitions,
U <o L
Depreciation/amortisation of nen-current Property, plant Property, plant
ass_ets Intangible  and equipment o Total e Iﬂtfr_[gilﬂn_lg = wand equipmentuw” Total
Medtech 548 63 611 472 50 522
Lahtech -19 5 -156 =351 178 -147 325
Group items . -28 -01 -29 2_8 Q0 -28
Total I -771 220 991 T s78 197 875
Significant profit or loss items, other than depreciation or amortisation, not matched by payments
2018 2017
Change in Change in
Capital pension Capital pension
gains liability  Other items Total gains liiabi[i}'! . QE'EE“EES___ . _._JPE_I
Medtech o T os T 81 s  ©o - 144 a4
Labtech Qo 07 03 10 Qo a5 Q2 07
Group items o - 30 30 Qo - 45 o 4b
Total T T T e T T o T AT Ay T T T e T o 97 -9.2
Data by country
2018 __ N 2017 o
Of which Of which
Net sales non-current Net sales non-current
Pﬂtﬁﬂ country e external o Assets? assets external Asgsets? assets
Sweden 7797 1,146 3 2310 7560 1.144 7 8420
Denmark 4385 1503 315 4317 1425 272
Fintand 554 2 2860 1318 4520 2083 935
Norway 496 9 3587 2545 454 6 3654 2622
Other countries 2123 825.1 3259 1970 316 17
E}mip items and unallocsted assets - -386 489 - -12 142
Total T T T T gae 26678 16236 23333 18913 12408

11 Does not include balances in Group accounts and tinancial assets Fxternal net sales are based on the custamers’

assets are [ocated

2018

focation and the carrying amoints of assets are based on where the

Property, plant

Praperty, plant

Investments in non-current assets intangible  and equipment Total Intangible and equipment Total
Sweden I - S U X 4838 437 180 417
Denmark 20 39 59 03 31 24
Finkand 290 17 307 09 34 43
Norway 71 23 94 1640 12 1652
Othercountnes 14300 03 143 3 01 04 05
Total ) 2076 Ta0s T Tzms1 | T Tzos0 0 261 2351

The Group has no single customer whose revenues account for 10 percent of total revenue, for which reason there s no related reporting
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2018 B 2017 o
Average number of employees L Men Women Total _ Men )"i"_Tf‘:r[ o '_I'(Mjfau!
Sweden o
Parent Company 5 5 10 4 A 8
Other companies 106 94 200 108 33 201
Denmark 58 &0 118 55 40 115
Finland &0 70 130 56 65 121
Norway 70 43 113 55 39 Q4
Cther countries 21 . 285 49 . 40
e 620 297 282 T T s79
2018 2017
Senior Senior
manage- of which Other manage- of which Other
Salaries and remuneration ment p[gf[tfielated employees - A __n_\s_n_t_ ___E_o_f_iﬂgl_aie_d“_ s we_l“n_pl_o_\:eE
Sweden 0 - o
Parent Company 132 18 /8 102 32 74
Other companies 109 00 102 & 89 12 108 4
Denmark 55 09 831 54 11 744
Finiand 61 09 698 59 10 595
Norway 51 05 771 49 09 b4 4
Other countries o = 1. S - 191
Total o 4038 a1 3622 353 7.4 8332
e e STOUP ___ParentCompany
Salaries, remuneration and social security costs 2018 2017 2018 2017
Salanes and other remuneration 4029 3677 210 176
Contractually agreed pensions far senior managernert 70 69 24 21
Contractual pensions to athers 473 434 a8 15
Other social secunty costs . 668 &6 6 58 o 69
Total 524.0 484.8 300 281
Percentage women . 31Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 Mg;pfnggggm _31Dec.2017
Boaragméctors o T T % 0% 33% 33%
Other members of senor management 34% 34% 25% 25%

Seror management are defined as Group Management the President and Vice President of the Group's subsidianes

Remuneration to the Board of Directors and senior
management
Praparation and decson-nking g oess for cemmuneration 1o
Baard of Direcrors, CEQ a~¢ Group Maragement
The guidelines apphied n the 2018 financial year for remuneravon to
senior management were decided by the Nonunauon Commirtee and
correspond to those 1n the proposal for the coming year incdluded 1n the
administration report The principle for remunerauon co the Board of
Dhrectors, Chief Fxecurve Officer (CEO) and Group Management is
that remunerarion should be compennve. The Nominanon Commirree
proposes Board fees to the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Board fees
are paid based on a resoluvon of the AGM. For commurtee work, remu-
neration is paid o the Chairman of the andit commirtee according ro
the decision of the AGM, to other members no fee is paid for committee
wark

Far remuneration to the CEQ, members of Group Management and
other members of senior management in the Group, the Board of Direc-
tors has appotnted a remuneranion commtiee consisting of the Char-
man of the Board and one Board member, with the CEQ) as the report-
ing member. A fixed salary, variable remuneration and convenuonal
employment benefits as well as pension benefits are paid 1o the CEO,
Group Management and other members of senior management. [n addi-
von, incenuve programmes apply as described below The remuneraton
commuttee adheres to the guidelines for remuneration te senior manage-

ment approved by AddLife AB's AGM
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Call opations “or somin” &xedutives

The Group's share-hased long-term 1ncentive scheme makes it easier for
senior management to acquire shares in the company. The reason for
implementation of the long-teim imncenuve scheme 1s to give manage-
ment personnel within the AddLife Group the opportunity o learn
about and work towards an increase 1n the value of the Company’s shares
through their own investment, thereby achueving greater ahgnment of
interests berween them and the Company's sharcholders. The purpose of
the incentive scheme 1s also to help senior execuuves to increase their
sharcholding 1in che Company over the long-term. The employees have
paid a marker-based premium for acquired call options on Class B
shares. The option premium in the scheme was calculared by Nordea
Bank by applying the established Black & Scholes measurement method.
The calculations are based on the following parameters: the exercise price
was sct ac 110 percenr of the volume-weighted average price durnng the
measurement penod, volatility is based on staustical data derived from
historical data, the nsk-free imterese rate was based on the interest rate for
government bonds, maturity and exercise peniod under the teims of the
schemnes and dividend according to estimates based on the Group’s divi-
dend policy.

The scheme includes a subsidy so that the employee recerves an
amount equal to the paid opuen premium n the form of cash compen-
sation, Le. <alary, afrer rwo years. This subsidy and che associated socral
security costs are accrued as personnel costs over the vesung period

AddLife has the nght bur nat the obligation 10 buy back the opuons



Note 7 cont'd

when an employee terminates employment. The holder may exercise the
opuons regardless of conunued employment in the Group. Caleulation
of any dilutive effect is based on the number of cutstanding shares ac
subscription of the scheme.

For information on outstanding call option schemes, please refer to The
Administravon Report/Buyback of treasury shares and incentive scheme.

Board of Dhrectors

The Board fees of SEK 1,750 set by the Nominauon Committee are
distributed, as per the AGM's decision, among those Board Directors
who are not employed by the Parent Company.

Barent Company s CEQ
Kristina Willgard, Parent Company CEQ, received a fixed salary of SEK
4,552 chousand (2,421) and SEK 478 chousand {966} in variable pay
Vanable remuneration includes SEK 154 thousand regarding che year’s
cost for a subsidy for participation in the Group's incenuve programme
Taxable benefits for the CEO totalling SEK 139 thousand (153) are
additional. From age 65, the CEO is covered by a defined contnibunion
pension, the size of which depends on the ouicome of pension insurance
agreements. In 2018, a toral of SEK 1,034 thousand {865) in pension
premiums, determined annudlly by the remuneration commurtee, were
paid for the CEQO. Varnable salary 1s not pensionable income.

Variable remuneranon based on Group earnings may be payable in
an amount up to 40 percenc of fixed salary.
The period of nouce 1s of 12 months when the Company terminates the

employment contract and six months when the CEO does so In the case

of termination on the iniuative of the Company, the CEQ is encitled 1o a
severance payment equivalent o one year's salary in additon to salary
during the period of notice. No severance package is payable if the

cmployee terminates [hC cmp]oymcnt contract

Crrhwer members of Groap Mansgenent
Other members of Group Management were paid a 1otal of SEK
6,799 thousand (6,481) in fixed salarses and SEX 1,358 thousand
{2,412) 1n variable remuneration. Variable remuneration includes SEK
516 thousand regarding the year's cost for a subsidy for particrpation in
the Group’s incentive programme. ['hus vanable remuneration was
expensed during the 201 8 financial year and will be paid in 2019
Taxable benefics totalling SEK 352 thousand (408) are addiuonal.
Persons in Group Management are covered from age 65 by pension eno-
tlements based on individual agreements. Existing pension schemes
consist of defined contnibution schemes, in which the pension amoun:
depends on the outcome of pension insurance agreements

During 2018, a total of SEK 1,380 thousand {1,574} in pension
presmums was paid for the group 'Other members of Group
Management’.

Vanable remuneration based on Group carnings may be payable in
an amount up te 40 percent of fixed satary

The period of notice is 12 months when the Cempany terminates
the employment contract and six months when the employce does so.
Severance pay 1s payable upon termination of employment equivalent to
no more than one year's salary No severance package is payable if the

employee termmares the employment cancract

Basic salary/ Variable Other Pension
Remuneration and other benefits dunp_g_.?_@_ﬂlzg__ . __ Boardfees remuneration! benefits costs _Total
Chairman of the Board Oh - - - 05
QOther inembers of the Board 13 - - - 13
CFO 40 05 o1 10 452
Other members of Group Management- 68 14 04 14 1006
Yotal T T 132 19 T s T T2a T Taso
D Ingluding iemuneration tor thase semor execubves participating inncentve programmes
271 Durning the year other membirs of Group Managerment consisted ot three people

Basic salary/ Vanable Other Pension
Remuneration and other benefits during 2017 L Board fees remuneration’’ _ benefits costs  Total
Chairman of the Board 05 - - - 05
Other members of the Board 11 - - - 11
CEO 24 13 02 0% 47
Other members of Group Management? 65 24 04 16 109
Total T T s T 3y Tes 0 T2 T a2
) Including remuneratich 1or thase sComor exeCul wos participebing e ntive programmes
21 During the year other seriar executives conaisted of 4 peaple until August 201 7, after wihich they consisted of 3 people
Board fees for 2018, SEK 000 Position o _ Fee
Johan $jo e e e - Chairman of theﬁ Finn‘;r‘dkw ) T Q5
Birgit Stattin Norinder Board member Q3
Lva Nilsagard Baard member a3
Andreas Gothberg Board member 03
Hakan Roos Board member a3
Stefan Hedelus Board member R MUEJMS
Yo T o T - T i
Board fees for 2017, SEK00O i L o Position o Fee
Johanse ST T T T T T T T Chawman of the Board 05
Rirgit Stattin Normder Board member 02
Eva Nilsagard Board member 0z
Fredrik Berjesson Board membei 07
Hakan Roos Board inember 02
Stefan HEdelUs e e e e+ e+ e EQAEmEmber 02
Total 16

79



NOTES é REMUNERATION TO AUDITORS

e CrOUR . ParentCompany
e e i, Pe 2017 2018 2017
KPMG
Audit assignment 2.5 29 08 08
Tax consultation 00 00 - oo
Other assigrments 75 03 25 01
Total rernuneration to
KPMG 5.0 3.2 3.3 0.9
Other auditors
Audit assignment 01 00 - -
Tax consultation 01 02 - -
Other assignments 03 03 - o
Total remuneration to
other auditors a5 0.5 - -
Total remuneration to
auditors 55 37 3.3 09

Audit assignments refers to the statutory audit of the annual and consoli-
dated financial statements and accounting as well as the administration of
the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer along with auditing
and other examinations carried cut by agreement or contract This includes
other duties incumbent on the company’s auditors as weli as adwice or
other assistance prampted by observations from such audits or the perfor-
mance of ather tasks

NOTES § DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

_ Growp __ParentCompany
" 2018 2017 2018 2017
Depreciation and amor-
tisation,
by function
Cost of goods sald -139 -12.3 - -
Selling expenses -756 -67 5 - -
Administrative expenses ;9 4 ____-_7_8_______ —(._)_J_.____ __-0_1_
Total T e 01 0.1
L. 0182007
l:");epreciatlon and amaor-
tisation,
by type of asset
Intangible assets 771 -67 8 01 01
Bulldings and land -04 03 - -
leasehold improvements -1.0 -11 - -
Machinery 27 29 - -
tqupment o179 clsa 00 00
Total 991 875 -0.1 -0.1
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NOTE 10 | OTHER OPERATING INCOME

AND EXPENSES
Group o 2018 2017
Other operating income o
Rental revenue - 01
Gain on sale of aperations
and non-current assets 11 02
Exchange gains, net a5 [o]4]
Change in loans for contingent considerations 74 121
OCther e 68 37
Jotal 16.0 162
Other aperating expenses
Property costs - 64
{.oss on sale of operations
and non-current assets -Gé 03
Exchange losses, net - -6 4
Other -39 -6 2
o - Y3
NGTE 1L ! OPERATING EXPENSES
Group B o 201}3 2017
fventones row materals and consumables 14131 13248
Employee benefits expe~se 4287 3999
Deprecigtion/amortisation 991 875
Imparrment of inventorics 60 40
imparrment of doubtful accounts recevahle 04 01
Qther operating experses 3_7'8 O_ 3607
Total T 77T 23253 21770



NOTE 12 E FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Group 2018 2017
Interest ncome on barnk balances 04 03
Exchange rate changes, net - ] 7_
Financiatincome o 064 10

Interest expense on financial habilibes mea-
sured at amortised cost -55 65
Interest expense on financial habilihes mea-
sured at faw value - -

Interest expense on pension lability -17 -1 5
Exchange rate changes, net -12 -
Other finance costs 1y -3
Finance costs i -10& 83
Net financial items T -8.3
Parent Company e w“201& M_?;E’}Zw
Dividend mcome ) - 00
E’Eagsgrgm groG;companies o ‘ 00

Interest income, etc
Interest income from group companies 108 104
Other interest income and

thangenvalue ofdervatves_ . = -

Interest income and similar items 16‘3 ) ~10-4

Interest expense ete

Interest expense from Croup companies 00 a0
Exchairge rate changes net (18] a0
Other interest expense and

charge nvalue of derivatrves -64 67
Interest expense ;'E:I-d similar items T h -6.4 T -6.7

MOTELS l YEAR-END APPROPRIATIONS

PARENT COMPANY
o - 2017
Provision made (0 tax sllocation reserve 113
Graup contnibutions pad -150
Growp contrbutions receved 721
Total 458




NOTE 14 | TAXES

Group o 2018 2017
Current tax for the peniod 441 A2
Adjustment from previous years 01 -26
Total current tax expense -44 2 -44.7
Deterred tax B - 155 74
?oai;;ognis;;éx expense T T o Y -373
Group 2018 % L 2017 %
Frofit/loss belore taxes 1580 157 6
Woeghted average tax based on national tax rates -337 -213 -34 7 -220
Tax etfects of non-deductible costs/non-taxable ncome -1 7 -11 07 04
Changed tax rate 19 12 03¢} Q0
Adjustments from previcus years 39 25 24 -16
Other L S _Pf>m ,,M._m.m'_qz_ N -04
Recognised tax expense -287 -181 373 237
Preferoo tax
Deferred taxes, net, at year-end 31 Dec, 2018 n 31 Dec. 2017
Group Receivables Liabilities Net _Recewables Liabilities Net
Non-current assets e 69 -1352 -1283 T TSR T T o e
Untaxed reserves - - - - 03 03
Pension pravisions 69 Q0 &9 57 01 56
lax Inss carryforwards 429 05 424 266 - 266
Other 87 -12.4 -37 25 -89 64
Net recopnised -403 _ ndﬁQS o ‘__MQO‘ L ) ;%7_“6 R n_gzném } Qo
Bze?erred taxe—s:—;et. at year-end 251 T —167.:?- T —82.E‘i T -2 2 -760 T 7'3—1
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deducuible tempaorary differences and tax loss carryforwards for wh.ch deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

31 Dec. 2018 31Dec. 2017
Tax deficits 224 208
Potential tax benefit 5 O____ . ___if)_
The expiu;yw&-awtf;s of these tax loss carryf"own;ards are distributed as follows: T ) i
0> 10years . — e 226 208
Deterred tax assets have not been recognised for these items, since it 1s not prohable that the Group will utilise them against future taxable profits
Parent Company 2018 2017
Current tax for the period T T T T T Ty T T e
Total current tax expense -112 76
_D_e_fgrEd tax _ e - -
Total recognised tax expense -112 -76
Parent Company 2018 % 2017 %
Profit/loss before taxes o 507 320
Tax based ot current tax rate for Parcnt Company -112 221 -7.1 222
Tax effects of non-deductible costs/non-taxable iIncome Co 00 05 146
Recognised tax expense -11.2 WW2W2.1 -7.6 238
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NOTE 15 |

21 Duec. 2018

Intangible assets acquired

INTANGIBLE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Supplier
relationships,
customer
relationships

Research and

Group Goodwill and technology Trademarks development Software Total
Accumulated cost
Opening balance 6556 607 8 09 887 39 2 139272
Corporate acquisitions 1732 1890 a0 - 114 3738
Investments - - - 110 76 186
Reclassifications - - - - - -
Dvestments and disposals of assets - -11 - -10 01 -20
Translation effect for the year 39 &3 - 12 03 117
Closing balance 8327 8020 09 99.9 588 1.7943
Accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses
QOpening halance -100 -i711 -08 -380 -197 23946
Corporate acguisitions - - - - =111 -111
Deprecabon/amartisation - -62 4 00 81 -5 b -/
Reclassifications - - - - - -
Divestments and disposals of assets - - - - - -
Translation effect for the year 01 07 L - -05 02 -15
Closing balance [ T3 2342 - 08 466 376 0 393
(;arrying amount at year-end A22 4 S&47 8 01 53.3 212 1,165.0
Carrying amount at start of year T 5456 4367 01 50.7 195 1,152.6
34 Dec 2017
Supnlier

relationships,
Intangible assets acquired customer

relationships Research and
Group _CEE)odwill and_ :(Ec_h_nologv Trademarks de_\_relopment __Eoﬂware Total
Accumulated cost T B
Qpening batance 534 1 405 2 09 633 348 1038 3
Corporate acquisitions 1201 1919 - 134 01 3257
Investments - 105 - 112 35 252
Reclassifications - - - - 13 13
Divestinents and disposals of assets - =15 - - 06 21
iranslation effect for th_e year o . _‘1 4 o I_ 7__ - ______O:S_ R EJ_IM o ‘m“____g__a__
Closing balance U 655.6 &078 0.9 38.7 392 13922
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Opening balance -100 -1157 -08 =279 133 -1677
Corporate scguistions - 03 - -4 4 Q00 -49
Depreciationzamaortisation 00 -564 00 -52 62 -578
Reclassifications - - - - -0z G2
Divestments and disposals of assets - 15 - - 02 17
Translation effect for the year - 02 - -03 ~ 0z Q7
Cosingbalance . 100 711 08 380 497 2396
Carrying amaunt at year-end £45.6 436.7 i 0.1 50.7 19.3 L ,m}'lé?:ﬁ
Carrying amount at start of year 5241 289.5 0.1 35.5 215 8707
Goadwill distmrAiI:Juted by business area 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Labtech - T o T o 256 1307
Medtech o ) R e 5970 . wwwmé,;f,i
?;Fa—i T U T ) | 8226 &45.4

a3



Note 15 cont'd

Parent Company
Accumulated cost
Opening balance

Investments

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation
QOpening balance
Depreciation/amortisation
Closing balance

garrying amount at year-end
Carrying amount at start of year

Pnasalrmont testing of poodw i

AddLife’s recognised goodwill amounts to SEK 822 6 million {(645.6).
Under 1FRS, goodwill is not amortised; insread, goodwill is rested annu-
ally or more frequently 10 derermine whether impairment indicators are
present,

AddLife has historically completed a large number of acquisiions,
Goodwill is allocated among cash-generaung units, which correspond to
the business aress. Impairment testing takes place at business area level,
because the acquired business is also integrated with another AddLife
business to such an extent that it is not possible to separace assets and
cash fiows artriburable to the acquired company

The recoverable amount was calculated based on value in use.
Assumprions were made concerning ner sales, gross margin, overhead
coss, working capital required and investmenis required based on previ-

ous experiences The paramerers have been set based on the Group’s
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. 31Dec 2018 . 31Dec20a7
... Software (Tl Software Tl
04 04 04 0a
o4 o4 o4 04

-02 02 01 01

01 -0 01 01

03 -03 02 .02

01 01 0.2 0.2

02 02 0.3 0.3

budger for the upcoming financial year 2019, which is based on the
companies’ budger. An annual growth rate of 2 percent (2) was assumed
tor cash flows beyond the budger period. Cash flows were discounted
using a weighted cost of capital corresponding to 8.9 percent (9.5) before
tax. These calculations show thar value in use significantly exceeds the
carrying amount. Consequently, impairment testing indicared no
imparment No reasonable possible changes in key assumptions are
expected o lead o impairment The sensitivity of these calculations
mcans that the value of goodwill will continuc o be justified even if the
discount rate increases by 2 percent, or if the long-term growth rate were

w be lawered by 2 percemage pomnts.

Otharimpa “Mment (231ing

Each year, trademarks are tested for impairment applying the same poli-
cies as with goodwill. No events or changes in circumsrances were ideni-
fied that would motivare umpairment testing for other intangible

ION-CUutrrent assets I.'hat are am()ftlﬁed.



NOTE 16 E TANGIBLE ASSETS

Investments

21 Dec 2012 in property

Buildings belonging to
Group L and land ___ﬂ_glli_n_j Earty _wmhfmlﬂachinery Equipmentﬁ . __IE’EL
Accumulated cost
Opening balance i19 113 401 1721 2355
Caorporate acquisitions - 06 o5 1150 1161
Investments 02 01 37 264 306
Divestments and dispasals of assets - -1.7 02 -30 / -333
Reclassifications - - 31 31 00
Translation etfect for the year S - - - 1T 31 52
Closing balance ) o 126 10.8 T Ta1s T o2892 3541
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Opening balance 55 -84 -24 ¢ -1220 -1608
Corporate acquisitions - 01 - -871 -872
Depreciation/amortisation -04 -10 27 -17 9 -220
Divestments and aispesals of assets - 16 09 274 299
Reclassifications - - 30 -30 ao
Translation effect for the year 02 -0.4 09 23 -38

Gosingbalance ...y 83 a6 -AaF 2439
Carrying amount at year-end e 6.5 25 15.8 84‘3*‘ o Wﬁﬁo.ﬁz
Carrying amount at start of year ” - 64 29 152 501 747
Investments

21 Dec 2017 in property

Buildings belcnging to
mw L o and land third party Machinery WW,EﬂiiPr,’le,nfy,,,ww o ‘Icfil,
Accumulated cost
Qpeming balance 112 105 435 158 6 2239
Corporate acquisitions - 02 Q0 az 34
lnvestments a6 05 30 220 261
Divestments and disposals of assets -02 - 20 -174 -19 4
Reclassifications - - -53 40 -13
Translation effect for‘l_f]ez year 03 01 L 09 R 17 ng_
Closing balance ’ T 1. 113 401 1721 2355

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Opering balance

Caorporate acquisitions
Pepreciation/amortisation
Drvestments and disposals of asscts
Reclassifications

Translation effect for the year
Closing balancew

Carrying amount at year-end

Carrying amount at start of year

. 31 D_ec, _201{1 R R n__i{_l_)_ec 2017

Parent Company '—— —E_qu—ip;ent— T Total . Equipmen_t- D mw'“re;;l

Accumulated cost i T S T e
Opening balance o2 02 Q7?2 o2

Investments - - - -

Closing balance 02 0.2 02 o0z
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance Q0 00 00

Deprecizbion/amortisation 01 01 00

Closing balance 0.1 -0.1 6o
Carrying amount at year-end - T 01 0.1 B 92
Carrying amount at start of year S Q2 02 0.2
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i
NOTE 17 | LEASES
Operanags feases
AddLife as lessee
Lease payments

Lease payments made dunng the financial
year 780 484

Future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable contracts fall due as

follows

Within one year 678 400
Later than one year and within frve years 1380 872
5 yearﬁsﬂ(irmlanggﬂrm 747 2% 64

Total future minimum lease payments

Sranificant operating leases prirmarily constitute rental contracts for prem-
1ses inwhich the Group conducts business

Group
AddLife as lessor o 2018 2017
Lease revenve T
Lease iIncome during the financial year 12 14
Future mimmum lease ncome under
non-cancellable contracts fall due as fol-
lows
Within one yecar 14 13
Later than one year and within five years 13 14
5 years or later - _
f;tjal future mlnimur;mi;;se income - 5—9 T mmnt;.mé

Most operatng leases concern rental of technical equipment to

Customers.

Adoldfe avlessor

Atotal of SEK | 2 milhon (1.4) was recerved in lease 1evenue dunng the
financial year. SEK 1 4 nullion (1.3) remains to be received within one
year, and thereafter a total of SEK 1.3 million (1.6) 1s receivable within
two to five years. Most operating [eases for which AddLife’s companies
are lessors concern the rental of technical equipment to customers,

Frwnroc hoases

At present there are no significant finance leases in the Group.

NOTE 18 E FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUE

Carrying amounts on financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheer aceording to the following tables.

Financial assets and Financial

liahilities measured assets measured Other Total

at fair value through at amortised financial carrying
SEKm, 31 Dec 2018 e profitorloss o eest '_'"a_‘:’iﬁffi__ . amount
Financial assets T - 18.6 - 186
Non-current recevables - 47 - 47
Accounts recevable - 5078 - 5078
Cash and cash equivalents - 60 6 - 606
Otherrecovables” 8T .
Total o o Y 591.7 T 592.5
Non-current interest-beanng labilities 88 - 39 127
Current intorest-beaning habilities Q6 - 8323 8329
Accounts payable - - 3339 333%
Other lighilitios?! 03 - o 1t
Total T T T e T T 1709 1,180.6

13 Part of other recenables m the consohdated balanc 2 sheer
2} Part of other habiities in the consolidated balance sheet
3 Includes denvanves measored at fair value through profit or loss
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Note 18 cont'd

Financial assets and
liabilities measured

Financial assets

at fair value through measured at Qther financiat Total
SEKm, 31 Dec 2017 . profit or loss amortised cost liabilities carrying amount
Financial assets - A - 49
Noin-current recervables - 57 - 57
Accounts receivable - 3338 - 3338
Cash and cash cquivalents - 110 - 110
Other receivables? L e - - -
Total - 355.4 - 3554
Non-current interest-bearing habilities 39 - c3 42
Current interest-beanng liabilities 29 - 5186 5285
Accounts payable - - 224 6 224 6
Other habilities~! N -0 5 - 03 02
'T'gtwarwmu T o mmmim3.3 T T i 74"3:5 ) o 757.1

11 Part of other recenables in the conselidate d balance sheet

2} Part of other liabilities 1n the consehdated balance sheet

3} Includes dervatives measured at fair valug through profit or loss

The fair value of foreign exchange contracts 1s determined based on observed marker dara (level 2).

Current and non-current loans are carried at amorused cost. The difference between carrying amouns and fair value is marginal for these items, The

same applies wo other financial instrument for larger amounts, since maturity 1s short.

Impact of financial instruments on net earnings 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017
Accounts recervable and loan recewables T T T T T T T 9. G
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - -C1
Other habalities X _ o -56 -45
Total ’ o o ’ Y Y
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

~ Carrying amount Level 2 Level 3 Carrying amount Level 2 Level 3
Dervatives measured-;t f-;\;’—value through profit R
or loss 08 08 - - - -
Total financial assets at fair value N T
by level 08 08 - - - -
Derwvatives measured at far value through profit
or loss a3 03 - G5 05 -
Cantingent considerations 94 B 4 o 138 - 138
Total financial liabikities at fair value per level 9.7 0.3 %4 133 05 138

The fair value and carrying amount are recognised in the balanee sheec as shown in the table above. For quoted securities the fair vatue is determined on

the basis of the asset’s quoted price in an active market tevel 1. For currency contracts and embedded derivanives, the fair value 1s determied on the basis

of observable market data level 2. For contingent considerations, a cash flow-based analysts is carried out, which s not based on observable marker daa,

level 3. For the Group’s ather financial assets and liabilinies fasr value is esumated to be the same as the caniying amount.

12 months ending

12 months ending

Contingent considerations 31 Dec. 18 31 Dec 17
Carrying amount, opening balance - 128 133
Acquisitions during the year 31 131
Consideration paid 65 -
Reversed through prafit or loss -7é -128
Interest expenses -02 10
Fxchange differences 08 .08
Carrying amount, closing balance 94 138

87



NOTES 0 Tk FIR ANCe, &7ATERE NTS

NOTE 19 [ NONCURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Parent Company
Receivables frorm Group companies 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017
Opening balance 1131 4 7747
Increase during the year 199 4 5338
Decrease duning the year -302.9 -177 1
Carrying amount at year-end 1.027.9 1,131.4
Specification of interests in Group Carrying amount Carrying amount

companies Country Number ofshares  Quotient value Holding % 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec. 2017
AddLlife Develepment AS Sweden 1,000 100 100% 389.1 3891
Biomedica Holding GmbH Austria 37,500 1 100% 408 5 -
Interests in Group companies
Parent Company
Accumulated cost 2018 2017
Opening balance 3891 389.1
Acquisitions for the year 408 5 -
Closing balance 797.6 389.1
Indirect ownership
Indirect ownership Ownership indirect ownership Qwnership Indirect ownership Ownership
Biomedica Medizinprodukte Mediplast Innova As 100% Triolak {Baltics} Cy 100%
GmbHY 100% Mediplast Sataside Oy 100% LabRobot Products AB 100%
Biomedica Services AG 100% Mediplast Sr! 100% Bergmanl ahora AB 100%
Biornedica Medizintechnik AG 100% Mediplast Benelux BV 100% Bicin Scientific AB 100%
Euromed Swiss AG 80% Mediplast GmbH 100% Biolin Scientific China 100%
Biomedis d ¢ 0 100% Mediplast Holding Aps 100% Biolin Scientific Oy 100%
Biomedica MPd 0.0. 100% Mediplast Kendan A/S 100% Biolin Scentific LTD 100%
Biomedica Drjagnostika dao 100% Hospidana A/S 100% Bioin inc 100%
Biomedica d 0.0 100% fenna Medical Qy 100% Holm & Halby A/S 100%
Biomedica Bulgaria cod 100% Svan Care AR 100% Laboren Aps 160%
CYBER s ro. 100% Hepro AS 100% Immenc Diagnostics Oy 100%
Biomedica Medizinprodukte Ossano Scandinawvia AB 100% Bergman Diagnostika AS 100%
Romania SRL 100% Esthe-Tech AB 100% BioNordika (Denmark) A/S 100%
Biomedica Hungaria Kft 100% V-tech AB 100% BicNordika Bergman AS 100%
Biomedica C5sr.0 100% Vaine Korpinen Oy 100% BioNordika (Sweden} AB 100%
Biomedica Poland S‘;kzzo ‘ 1%: Trolab A/S 100% Biotordika {Finland) Oy 100%
S;zrmn:g;: gztjliz ; ?0 o 180% Jnelab Oy 100% 3 70% by Biomedica Holding GmbH,
Tnolab AB 100% 30% by AddLife AR
Mediplast AB 100%
NOTE 20 | INVENTORIES NOTE21 | PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED
INCOME

Group 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017 Group Parent Company
Raw materials and consumables 350 23.2 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Work in progress a7 2.4 2018 2017 2018 2017
Finished goods 367 & 2452 Rent &4 3.9 00 oo
Tatal 4083 2710 Insurance premiums 2.7 21 G4 04

Pension costs 1.8 17 - -
Cost of sales for the Group includes impairmenc Josses for inventories of Lease payments 4.9 17 01 01
SEK 6 0 million (4.0). No sign:ficant reversals of pnior impairment losses License fees 20 19 02 02
weie made in 2018 or 2017. Other prepaid

expenses 10.8 43 14 00

Other accrued income 4.2 11 - -

Total 32.8 16.7 2.3 0.7

Biohn Scientific Limited (a 100% subsidiary of Biolin Screntific AB) 1s entitled to claim exemption from audit under Companies Act s479A due
to the fact that Addlife AB has provided a guarantee over its liabilities. The company is registered in the UK 01747218 at The Copper Room,
Deva Centre, Trimity Way, Manchester M3 78G.
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NOTE 22 | SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Foreign cirrendy translat’on roserve

The translavon reserve includes all exchange differences that arise in
translating financial statements of foieign operations piepared 1n a
currency ather than the Group's presentation currency for financial
reports. The Group presents its financial statemenis in Swedish kronor

(SEK).

Reserves 3t Dec. 2018 31 Dec 2017
i-orengn currency translation reserve N

Qpening translation reserve 59 71
Translation cffec‘g foﬂrjﬁe vear o 173 . -130
Elggiﬁgviran;;t}oﬁ rese;é“ S 114 -59
Number of shares

outstanding All share
31Dec. 2018 ClssAshares ClassBshares classes
Opciung belance 1,011,766 23,160,327 24172093
Redemption of warrants - 144,550 1446 550
Non-cash 1ssue - 480 721 480721
Repurchase of treasury

sheres - __ 7170000 _ -170000
Closing balance 1,011,766 23617598 24,629,364
Number of shares

outstanding All share
31 Dec. 2017 Class Ashares  Class B shares classes
Opening balance 1 011,746 23,375,327 24,387,093
Repurchase of treasury

shares - -215,000 -215000
Closing balance 1011766 23,160,327  24.172.093

Parent Company

Restricred reserves
Restricted reserves are funds that cannot be paid out as dividends.

Share premiumiecere
A share premium reserve arises in connection with a nighes issue chat is

subscribed at a premium and is included in unrestricred equity.

Retaired eartirgs

Reramed earnings comprises the previous year's unrestricred equuy, less
any provisian to the statutory reserve and less any dividend paid
Together with profit for the year and the share premium reserve, retained
earnings consticute the sum of unrestricted equiry, that is, the amount
available 1o be paid as dividends to shareholders.

Rurnber of shares

The number of shares at 31 December 2018 consisted of 1,011,766
Class A shares, entitling the helders to 10 votes per share, and
24,086,048 Class B shares, encitling the holders to one voze per share.
The guotient value of the share 1s SEK 2.037. The Company has repur-
chased 468,450 Class B shares, in the framework of the Company's
ongoing repurchase programme. After subtracung repurchased shares,
the number of Class B shares 15 24,629,364 net

NOTE 23 I UNTAXED RESERVES

faﬂ){g&t}lﬂm&aﬂr}[w 31 Dec 2018 A31[3|3ﬂci012

Tax allocation reserve, allacation for tax

assessment 2014 52 52
Tax allocation reserve, allocation for Llax
assessment 2017 134 134
Tax allocation reserve, allocation for tax
assessment 2018 113 113
Tax allocation reserve. atlacation for tax
assessment 2019 170 -
Closing balance 459 299

NOTE24 ; PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND
SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

AddLife has defined benefit pension plans in Sweden In these plans, a
pensten is deternmuned mainly by the salary received at the tme of retire-
ment Sweden also has defined-contributon plans. Subsidiaries in other

countries 1n the Group maindy have defined contribusion pension plans.

Defined contributions plans

These plans are mainly retiremem pension plans, disabibity pensions and
famuly pensions. Preimiums are paid on an ongomg basis during che year
by each company to separate legal enuities, such as insurance companies.
The sizc of the premium 1s based on the salary The pension cose for the
period 1s included in profic or lass.

Oblhgarnions for rearement pensions and family pensions for salaried
employces in Sweden are secured by insurance in Alecta According ro
statement UFR 10 of the Swedish Financial Reporung Board, this is a
defined benefic plan covering multiple employers For the 2018 financial
year, the Company did not have access 1o infermation enabling it to
report this plan as a defined benefic plan. Thus the pension plan accord-
ing co I'TP and sceured by insurance in Alecta 1s recognised as a
defined-contmbution plan. The year's fees for pension insurance with
Alecta totalled SEK 10 5 million (8 4). The fees for the next financial
year are assessed to be in Line with chis year's fees. The collecuve consob-
dacion rate for Alecta in Decemnber 2018 was 142 percenc (154}

Defined benefit pension plans

IAS 19, Employee benefits, 1s applied. These pension plans primanly
comprise reurement pensions. Each employer generally has an obligation
10 pay a hfelong pension. Vesung is based on the number of years of
employment. The employee must subscribe to the plan for a certain
number of years to be fully entided o reurement benefits. Each year
increases the employee’s entitlement wo reticement benefirs, which is
recogmsed as pension earned during the period and as an increase in
pension obligations. Some funded and unfunded pension plans apply :n
Sweden. The funded pension obligations are secured by plan assets.

The discount rate used 1s equivalent to the interest rate on high-qual-
ity corporate bonds or mortgage-backed bonds with a maturity equiva-
lent o the average matuncy of the obligation and currency The interest
rate for Swedish housing bonds is used as a basis for Swedish pension
liabilities. Future increases in pensions are based on inflation assump-
tions, Remaining period of employment (life expectancy) is based on
startstical tables prepared by Finansinspektienen (Sweden's Financial
Supervisory Authonity) and the Insurance Seciety, in Sweden DUS 14

The sensitivity analyses arc based on a change in an assumpuon,
while all other assumprions are held constant. The same method 15 used
in the caleulation of the sensitvity of the defined benefic obligation, the
projected unir credit method, as in the calculadion of the pension obliga-

non recogmised 1n the balance sheer.
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Note 24 cont'd

Obligavons ta emaloyee bonatits, dofy 26 henati, pennor plams

Pension liability as per balance sheet 2018-12-31 2017-12-31
Pension hability PRI T T T ee s T Tasa
Other pensicn cbligations ‘6 ____Q_A‘l_
Total defined benefit pension plans ”‘:’—67? T 66.8

Obligations for defined benefits and the
value of plan assets

Funded obligations:

Present value of funded defined benefit
obligations - -

2018-12-31 2017-12-31

Falr value of plan assets - _
Net debt, funded obligations - -
Present value of unfunded defined benefil

cbligabions 769 668
ﬁ;anTount in the balance silmggt T

(obfigation +, asset -} 769 &6.8
Pension obligations and plan assets by

country;

Sweden

Pension gbhgations R 626 668
Net amount in Sweden 69.6 56.8
Austria

Pension obligations o 7 3_' o
Net amount in Austria 73 -
Net amount in the balance sheet

{obligation +, asset -} 749 66.8

Reconciliation of net amount for pensions
in the balance sheet

31 Dec 2018 31Dec. 2017

Opening balance 4668 597
Corporate acquisitions /3 -
Change in accounting for pensions 25 23
Payment of pension benefits -20 -17

Funds contributed by emplover - -
Translation effects - -
Revaluations -

Gains and losses from setdements 23 55
Net amount in the balance sheet
[obligation +, asset -} 769 668

Changes in the obligation for defined bene-

fit plans recognised irmtmthe balance sheet 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Opening balance &68 597
Corporate acquisifions 73 -
Pensions earned during the period 08 08
Interest on obligatians 17 15
Benehts paid =20 -17
Benehits earned during previous perods,

vested - -

Iransferred bencfits - -

90 . .

Revaluations.
Gain (-)}/loss (4} resulting from demographic
assumptions - -

Gain {(-}/oss (+) resulting fram financial
assumptions 25 54

Experienced-based gans (-)/lasses (+) 02 11
Translation effects - -
Gans and losses from settlements - -

Present value of pension obligations 76.9 T ee8
Pension casts 2018 2017
Defined benefit pension plans
Cost for pensions earned duning the year 47 41
Interest an chhgations 17 15
Total cost of defined benefit plans &4 56
Tatal cost of defined contribution plans 49 4 46 4
Social security costs onpensigncosts ___fl_‘?_ o W.Lé,.?;_
Total cost of benefits after termination of
employment 60.9 57.2
Allocation of pension costs in the income
statement o ~ L m2018 o 2017
Cost of poods sold 14 4 135
Selling and administrative expenses 44 8 221
Net financial items ooy 16
Total pension costs T 609 ] 577.2
2018 BT
Actuarial assumptions Sweden Sweden

The followmg material actuarial assumptions were appled in calculating
ablhgations

Discount rate 1 January, % 25 25
Discount rate 31 December, % 23 25
Future salary increases, % 30 30
Future increases in pensions
{change in ncome base amount), % 25 25
Employee wirnover, % 10 10
Mortahty table _busia - DUS14
. o8 ST
Actuarial assumptions L Sweden Sw_e_den
Detfined benefit pension Oglvlg;t;);!sat 3{ E)gcwgnrr;gé:uéoig T
Discount rate increases by 0 5% -6 2 -5y
Discount rate decreases by Q 5% 70 6
Expected Iie expectancy increases by 1
year 32 32
i '
Comprising 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017
Active 22 21
Disabihity pensioners jj 1
Paid-up policyholders 28 101
Pensioners .. S SO ..
The total number of commitments
included in pension liabilities 150 191
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NGTE 25 | PROVISIONS

Group 31 Dec 2018

Non-current provisions

Carrying amount at
start of period - - - -

Persannel Warcanties Other Total

Prowisions through
acquisitions 199 - - 199

Carrying amount at
end of period 19 ¢ - - 19.9

Asat 31 December 2017 the Group had no non-current provisions.

Group 31 Dec. 2018 Personnel Warranties Other  Total
Short-term provisions

Carrying amount at

start of period - 11 20 31
Provisions made

during the penod - o0 - 00
Armounts utitised during the

penod - 0] - a0
Unutiised amounts reversed - 0 - a0
Translation effects - 01 - 01
Cther - - - -
Carrying amountat T
end of period - 1.2 2.0 3.2
Group 31 Dec. 2017 Personnel Warranties Other  Total
gﬁort-term provisions

Carrying amount at

start of period - 00 59 59
Provisions made

during the penod - 11 10 21
Amounts utihsed during the

penod - - -4 5 -45
Unutiised amounts 1oversed - - -04 -04
Translation effects - 00 - 00
Cther - - - -
Carrywng amount at

end of period - 1.4 20 31

Persarrel

The provision refers to casts of personnel, including estimated eemuner-
ation upon terminavon of employment in connection with changes in
operations. A provision is made when there is an approved restructuring

pian and the restructuring has been announced.

Warrant o
Recognised provisions for warranues associated with products and
services test on calculations performed based on historical data or, in

specific cases, on an individual epinton.

MNOTE 26 E NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING

LIABILITIES
S, ..
31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2017

Liabilities to credit institutions.

Maturing withiny 2 years 28 -
Maturing withint 3 years 08 -
Maturing within 4 years 03 -
Maturing within 5 years - -

Total non-current habilities to credit
institutions 3.9 -

QOther interest-bearing liabilities:
Matuning within 2 years 29 42

Maturing within 3 years 29 -
Maturing within 4 years - -
Matunng within 5 years - -
Total other non-current

interest-bearing liabilities c B 82
Total 9.7 4.2

Otherinterest-bearing habrlities largely consist of addiionagl contingent
considerations with estimated iterest of 50 percent

Far more information about the Group's iahilhities to credit mstifutions, see
note 27 Current interest-beanng lizbiities

NOTEZT E CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING

LIABILITIES
Group Parent Company

Bank overdraft
facility 2018-12-31 2017-12-31 2018-12-31 2017-12-31
Approved credit
hrnit 4500 4500 4500 4500
Unutihsed portion -3201 -132 6 -3201 ‘1326
Credit amount
utilised 1299 317 4 129.9 3174
Other habilities to
credit institutions 7024 2012 7007 196 7
Other interest-
bearmg habilibies 38 S A
Total 835.9 528.5 830.6 5171

Other interest-bearing habilties largely conwst of additional contingent
constderations with esumated interest of 5 O percent

The Group's current habilibies to credit institutions are divided amaong
currencles as follows

_ .. S31Dec2018 = 31Dec 2017
Currency Lecal currency SEKm Locakcurrency SEKm
FUR 0o o1 - -
SEK 00/ 00/ 199 7 199 7
NOK 02 G2 15 15
Pl 7 o4 [¢]°) - -
BGN 01 05 - -
:I'notalluw e e 7-0_2":1—_-—__ | 201.2

The Group's financing 1s prmanly managed by the Parent Company
Addhite AB The Parent Company's bank overdraft faciity carried
0 4 percent interest per 31 Dec 2018



NOTEZS i ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED

INCOME
L Group . Parent Company
31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2017 2018 2017
Other deferred
ncome 13 25 - -
Salaries and holiday
pay 96.6 785 101 127
Social security costs
and pensions 188 177 o9 23
Gther accrued
expensesy 222 182 [o°) 16
Total 138.9 116.9 11.9 16.6

17 Other accrued expenses mamnly consist of overhead accruals

NOTE 29 i RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
FOR MORE INFORMATION

No transactions with related parties took place duning the financial year
Orhcf t_han rEmMunerancn eo senior managﬁlnent_ For more iﬂforma[]on
see Note 7.

MNOTE 30 % PLEDGED ASSETS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES
— Grogp Parent Com_gfr_\! s
31 Dec. 31 Dex, 31 Dec. 31 Dec
Group 2018 2017 2018 2017
Pledged assets o 0.0 44 - e
Total - 00 48 . =z
Contingent habilitres
Guarantees 27 25 - -
Guarantees for
subsidiares 1 - - 415 a08
Total h 27 25 415 408

1V Relates to PRI abiltes

Reconcili;inn ot dehts w'sig frour finanong agtivitios

1]

NOTE31 | CASHFLOW STATEMENT

Group Parent Company
Adjustment for items not
includedincashflow 2018 2017 2018 2017
Bepreastion/amortisation 991 875 a1 Q1
Ganeloss on sale of opera-
tions
and non-current assets 05 00 ~ -
Change in pension kabihity Q7 05 - -
Change n other provisions
and zccruedtems - 27 - -
Group contributions/
dividends not paid - - 00 00
Other R .48 -194 28 34
Total 94 5 78.3 2.9 3.5

For the Group, interest received during the year votalled SEK 0 4 millien
(0 3), and interest paid was SFK 5.5 million (6.5).

The following adjustments were made as a result of the value of assers
and liabilities 1n eompanies acquired during the year, together wich
adjustments such as conungent considerations paid for acquisidons

made in previous years:

) - ) ) 2018 2017
Nerecurent sssets Cozsa0 207
Inventarics 1279 325
Recervables 2135 428
Cash and cash equivalents 619 78
Total 6573 2953
Interest-bearmg labiiities and provisians 273 85
Non-interest-bearng habihties and

pravIsIanNs 2561 455
Total 772834 " sao
Con<ideration pasd -3963 -291 5
Cash and cash equivalents m acquired

companies 419 78
Eifect on the Group's cash and cash

equivalents Boasl LA

All businesses acquired during the year were consolidated in the accounts
using the acquisiion method

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow starement consist of cash
and bank balances The same definivon applied 1o determine cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheet was applied 1n the cash flow

sratement.

Changes that do not affect cash flow

Opening balance, Acquisition of Exchangerate  Changesin fai"r Closing balance,
Group 1Jan. 2018 Cash Flow subsidiaries changes value 31 Dec 2018
Bank overdraft faclkty 3174 1875 - - T T T g
Liabihities to credit institutions 2012 4993 52 a6 - 706 2
Other intergst-beanng latiities 141 03 -52 i Q4 02 o 24
Total liabilities arising from financing activities 5327 3121 0.0 1.0 -0.2 845.6
Reconc hation of gebis arsing fiom finanong acthaties

Opening balance, Closing balance,
Parent Company 1Jan 2018 Cash Flow 31 Dec. 2018
Bank overdraft facility T T T 3174 Taeys . 1299
Current labthties to credit mshitutions - 1997 5010 700~7m
Total liabilities arising from financing activities 5171 3135 830.6

92 : .



NOTE 32 i ACQUISITIONS WITHIN BUSINESS AREAS

Acquisitions e M('.Bumntry R
:Emméﬁ:\; W{Amg;j\"(.; AB Sweden

Hepro AS Norway

Krahat AS Norway

QOssano Scandinavia AB Sweden

Food Diagnostics FDAB AB Sweden

Vaino Karpinen Oy Finland

Labaren ApS Denmark
Biomegica Medzinprodukte GmbH Austria

21 Refers to conditions st the tume of acquisthion on g full year basis

eermng 0 the acauis ban anayses, the a0g.aetions oo ned aut
A s 4o th ¢ iy i i d
duving Enanc il yoar 2018 veere as folltws,

Fair value
ntangible non-current assets 1899
QOther non-current asscts 641
Inventorics 1279
Other current assets 2754
Deferred tax hability, tax asset -471
Other habihities -2834
Acguired net assets 32468
Goodwill 172G
Consideration®' 498 8
Less cash and cash equivalents in acquired businesses -619
l ess consideration via nan-cash 1ssue -1019
Contingent consideraticn not yet paid 06
Effect on the Group's cash and cash equivalents 35:4—

1) The consideration s stated excuding acguisition expenses

The combined consideration for the acquisitions was SEK 498.8 million
(310.1), of which SEK 172.0 muthion (114.5) was allocated to goodwill
and SEK 189.9 million {210.5) to other intangible assets. The consider-
ation consists only of cash payment. The transaction costs for acquisi-
tions with a takecover date during the 2018 financial year toralled SEK
8.1 million (1.8) and are recogmised in selling expenses.

The outcome of additional contingent considerations depends on
the results achieved in the companies and has a set maximum level
The fair value of not yet pard conringent consideranion for acquisitions
made during the financial year is caleulated 1o SEK 9 million, which 15
approximately 57 percent of che maximum outcome

The values allocated to intangible assets, such as supplier relation-
ships, were assessed at the discounted value of future cash flows The
amortisation penod 1s determined by estimating the annual decrease in
sales arrriburable to each assee. Supplier relationships are generally amor-

tised over a peried of 10 years.

Net sales, Number of
(Dateofacquisition —  SEKm _employeest! —  Businessarea
January, 2017 30 5 Medtech
March, 2017 165 4 Medtech
July, 2017 30 13 Medtech
February, 2018 20 5 Medtech
March, 2018 10 ] Labtech
July, 2018 80 15 Medtech
December, 2018 10 2 Labtech
DgcembejJ?OlS 435 ??0 Medtech/Labtech

SLO07EAg 1O TE pIel T nary DIGus nen anahyies, Ihe acqu Sirors

Carred o rg Bracrial yeo 20T weere a9 follovs

Fair value
f;ggr:g;gle non-current assets T e 2105
Other non-current assets 17
Invetitories 325
Qther current assets 505
Deterred tax liability/tax assct -457
Other liahilibes -53¢9
Acquired net assets 1955
Goodwill 114 5
Consideration 3101
tess cash and cash equivalents in acquired businesses 78
Less. acquired debt to acquired companies -54
Contingent consideration not yel pard 131
Effect on the Group’s cash and cash equivalents 283.7

1) The consideratan 15 staled excluding arguisition expenses

The goodwill resulting from the acquisitions is attnbutable 1o expecta-
ttons that the Group's position 1n the market in question for each acqui-
sinon will grow sironger and 1o the knowledge accumutated m the
companies acquired.

The combined effect of the acguisitions on consolidated net sales was
SEK 48 million (158), while the combined effect on EBITA was SEK 5
mullion (32), operating profit was SEK 3 muilhon {17) and after-tax profic
for the year was SEK 2 million (16)

Had the acquisitions, excluding Biomedica, been completed on 1
January 2018, their impact would have been an estumated SEK 114
million {196) on consolidared ner sales, SEK 11 mullion (38) on EBITA,
about SEK 7 mullion (22) on operating profit and about SEK 5 million
{20) on after-tax profit for the year. I'he acquistrions were completed at
an average EV/EBIT muluple of about 6 {6)



NGTESS3 t EARNINGS PER SHARE

2018 2011
Farnings per share (EPS), SEK 536 495
E)lluted EPS (SEK) 536 4 ‘?ﬂt

See Note 2 for the method of calculation. The numerators and denomi-
nators used to calculate the above EPS are derived as stated below

Earnings per share

The calculation of earmings per share 1s based on profit for the year for
the 2018 financial year and a weighted average number of shares
outstanding {000s). The calculauion of carnings per share 1s based on
profit for the year for the 2017 financial year and a weighted average

number of shares outstanding (000s). The two components are as

follows:

2018 2017
Protit for the year (SEKm) 1293 1203
Weighted average number of shares
during the year in thousands of shares 2018 2017
Weghted average number of shares
during the year 24,118 24,347

The 468,450 call options 1ssued on shares bought back entail a difucive

cffect of about 0 1 percenc during the financial year.

NOTE 34 ! INFORMATION ABOUT THE
PARENT COMPANY

AddLife AB, corporate ID number 556995-8126, is che Parent
Company of the Group.

The Company's registered office 1s in Stockholm, Stockholm
County, and according to Swedish law AddLife AB is a hmuted liabihiey
company.

Head office address:
AddLife AB (publ )

Box 3145

103 62 Stockholm, Sweden
www.add life
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NOTE 35 | EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Acquisitions

On 19 December 2018 AddLife signed an agreement with Wellspect
HealthCare on the acquisition of its business in the preduct areas surgery
and respiration, The business has sales of ELUR 17 million and the acqui-
sition will be completed in late Aprilfearly May 2019. The business will
primanly be integrated 1nto Mediplast and Biomed.ica.

Rightsissue

In February 2019 AddLife AB raised about SEK 501 mullion before issue
expenses through a rights 1ssue. The issuance was oversubscribed by
about 68 percent. As a result of the rights issue AddLife’s equity increased
by SEK 7,184,142 1o SEK 58,309,340, The tocal number of shares will
increase by 144,538 Class A shares and 3,382,221 Class B shares, roa
total of 28,624,573 shares, including 1,156,304 Class A shares and
27,468,269 Class B shares

Financing

In January 2019 AddLife increased its overdraft faciliy with Handels-
banken to SEK 700 millien, while simuttancously extending 11 1erm o
28 February 2020 The bndging loan at Handelsbanken of SEK 550
million that was taken in conjunction with the acquisidon of Biomedica
has been repaid in 1ts enurety during the period between January and
March 2019 by exercising the overdraft faciliy ac Handelsbanken

No other events of significance to the Group occurred

after the end of the reporting penad,

MOTE 36 E PROPOSAL FOR PROFIT
DISTRIBUTION

The following armounts are available for distnibution by the
Annual General Meeting of AddLife AB

Share premium reserve 651.5
Retained earnings -23.3
Profit for the year 395
Total earnings T T ser7

The Board of Directors and the CEO propose that the funds
availlable for distribution be allocated as follows
Adwvidend paid to sharehalders of SEK 2 20 per
share !
Tobecarredforwerd

1) Calculated hased on the namber of outstanding shares at the time ot the release of
the 2nnual report The number of repurchased class B shares amounts te 405 250 at
the time of the relesse of the annual repart



Assurance of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer deem the consolidated financial statements and annual accounts to he prepared
in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and with generally accepted accounting principles, and that they provide a true and fair
overview of the financial position and results of operations of the Group and the Parent Company. The administration report for the
Group and the Parent Company gives a true and fair overview of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s operating activities, financial
position and results of operations and describes significant risks and uncertainties to which the Parent Company and the companies that
comprise the Group are exposed. The other aspects of the results of operations and financiai position of the Group and the Parent

Company are shown in the income statements, balance sheets, cash flow statements and notes to the financial statements.

Srockholm 10 April 2019

Johan §jo Birgit Stattin Norinder
Chairman of the Board Board member
Eva Nilsagard Andreas Gothberg
Board member Board member
Hikan Roos Stefan Hedelius
Board member Board member

Kristina Willgird
CEOQ

We submitted our audit report on 10 April 2019.

KPMG AB

Hakan Olsson Reising Jonas Eriksson

Anthorised Public Accountant Authorised Public Accountant
Auditor i charge
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Auditor’s report

To the general meetng of the sharebolders of AddLife AB, corp 1D no 556995-8126

Report on the annual accounts and conselidated accounts

Opinions
We have audited the annual accounts and consolidared accounts of AddILife AB (publ) for the year 2018, except for the sustainabality report on pages
26-37 The annual accounts and consalidated accounts of the company are included on pages 45-99 in this document.

In our opimon, the annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act, and present fairly, in all marerial respects, the
financial position of the Parent Company as of 31 December 2018 and its financial performance and cash flow for che year then ended in accordance
with the Annual Accounts Act. The consohidated accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in all mate-
rial respects, rhe financial position of the group as of 31 December 2018 and their financial performance and cash flow for the year then ended in accor-
dance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU, and the Annual Accounts Act. Our opinions do not cover the
sustainability report on pages 26-37.

A corporate governance statement has been prepared. The staturory administration repore and the corporate governance statement are consistent wich
the other parts of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts, and the corporate governance statement is in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act

We therefore recommend thae the general meeting of shaicholders adopes the 1ncome statement and balance sheer for the Parent Company and he
Group

Our opinions in this report on the annual accounts and consolidated accounts are consistent with the content of the additonal report that has been
submitted to the Parent Company’s audit committee in accordance wich the Audit Regulation (537/2014) Article 11

Basis for opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden Our respon-
sihilities under those standards are further described n the Auditor's Responsibilities section. We are independent of the parent company and the group
1n accordance with professional ethics for acceuntants in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these require-

ments. This includes thar, based on the best of our knowledge and belief, na prohibited services referred to in the Audic Regulation (337/2014) Arricle

5.1 have been provided to the audiced company or, where applicable, 115 parent company or its controlled companies within the EUL

We beheve that the audir evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriare to provide a basis for our apinions.

Key audit martters

Key audit matters of the audit are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the annual accounts and

consolidated accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed 1in the context of our audic of, and i forming our opinion thereon, the annual

accounts and consolidated accounts as a whole, but we do not provide a separate optnion on these marters,

Veauuialion of acglared intang o a<sels and parant company § shiares in Grouag covrpanies.

See Notes 135 and 19 and accounung principles on pages 68-73 in the annual accounts and consolidated accounts for detalled information and descrip-

oon of the marter.

Description of key audit matter
The carrying value of goodwill in the Group 1s SEK 823 per 31 Decem-
ber 2018, which represents 31% of toral assers

At least annually, goodwill shall be subject w0 imparrment testing
which 1s both complex and invaolves significant elements of judgement
from Group Management.

According 10 current regulations, the preseribed method for carrying

out impairment tests involves management making forecasts for how

internal as well as external condinons and plans may impact the business.

Examples of such forecasts include furure cash flows, which in turn
require assumpuons to be made about future markee conditions.
Another important assumption is which discount rate to usc in order o
correctly reflect the ume value of money of forecast future cash in-flows,
which carry a certatn level of nisk,

The carrying amount of participanion in Group companies in the
Parent Company is SEK 798 mullion as at 31 December 2018, which
represents 419% of toral assets In the event that che parncipanions’ equity
15 less than the value of the participanion, an impairment test s

performed.
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Thus area, therefore, invelves significant levels of judgement which are1n

. .
turn significant to the Group’s accounung,

Response i the audit

We have inspected the company's imparment testing in order o assess
whether it is 1n line with the prescribed methodology. Furthermore,
through review of management's written plans and decumentation, we
have assessed the 1easonableness of future cash flows and the assumed
discount rate and growth race. We have conducted discussiens with
management and evaluated previous year’s esumates in relation 1o actual
outcomes.

A critical part of our work has also been evaluation of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management that shows how changes in the
assumptions can affect the overall valuauen and performance of our own
sensitvity analysis

We have also considered the disclosures in the annual accounts for
completeness and assessed whether they are in line with the assumpuens
used by the Group 1n its tmpairment tesung and whether the informa-

onnas sumcicnt to pI‘OVI{lc underszandmg Of Inanagcmcn['i judgcmcnts



Acaotasiuon of B omedic

Sce MNotes 15 and 19 and accounting prinaiples on pages 68-73 in the annual accounts and consolidated accounts for detailed informauon and deserip-

tion of the matter.

Doscription of key sudit matier

In December 2018 AddLife acquuired the Austrian Biomedica Medizin-
predukte GmbH (“Biomedica™). Biomedica 1s the parent company of a
group (“Biomedica Group™) with sales of about EUR 65 million which
engages in operatons i 13 countries in Europe and has abour 280
employees.

The total purchase price for the acquisivon of Biomedica was about
EUR 39 million, including 75 percent in cash through existing credic
facilities and 25 percent through newly issues Class B shares in AddLife.
The acquisition is significant for AddLife and entails substansial increase
in the number of entrties within the Group, while also expanding the
geographic distnbution of the Groug’s operations.

Although the acquisinion has had only a linuted impact on earmings
for 2018 since the transaction occurred at the end of the year, because of
the size and geographic complexity of the transacrion we consider the
acquusition to be a key audit matter tn the 2018 audit.

It 15 critical for the entities within the Biomedica Group to be consol-
idated 1n line with AddLite’s principles and that the acquisition analysis

is carefully prepared 1n the annual accounts

Response in the audit
After studying the acquisition analysis for the Biomedica Group, we note
tha 1t follows AddLafe’s acquisition madel and we have not identified
any matenal deviauons. The analysis 1s preliminary in the annual
accounts and could be adJustcd in 2019.

The Biomedica Group is fully consolidated as per the annual
accounts and we have received feedback from significant entities as a
hasis for the Group audit No significane deviations have been noted

regarding the consolidation.

Other information than the annual accounts and consolidated accounts

This document also contains other information than the annual accounts and consolidated accounts, which 1s found on pages 1-43 and 100-108. The

Board of Directors and the Chief Execudive Officer are responsible for this other infosmartion

QOwr opmion on the annual accounts and consolidated accounts does not cover this other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion regarding thus other informauon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts and consohidated accounts, our responsibility 15 to read the informarion 1denufied above and

consider whether the information is materially inconsistent with the annual accounts and consolidated accounts In dhis procedure we also take into

account our knowledge otherwise obtained in the audit and assess whether the mformation otherwise appears 1o be matenially musstaed.

If we, based on the work performed concerning this informarion, conclude thar these is a marerial misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respaonsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer

The Board of Directors and the Chief Exccutive Officer are responsible
for the preparavion of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts
and that they give 2 fair presentation in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Act and, concerning the consolidated accounts, in accordance
with 1FRS as adopred by the EU. The Board of Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts and
consobdated accounts thae are free from matenal nusstatement, whether

due to fraud or crror,

In preparing the annual accounts and consolidated accounts The Board
of Directors and the Chuief Execurive Officer are responsible for the
assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group 1o continue as a
going concern, They disclese, as applicable, marters related 1o gong
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting. However, the
geing concern basis of accounung 15 not apphed if the Board of Direcrors
and dhe Chief Execurive Officer intend to liquidare the company, to
cease operations, or have no realistc alcernative but to do so

T'he Board’s Audit Commirtee shali, wathout prejudice to the Board
of Director’s responsibiliues and tasks in general, among other things
oversee the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibility

QOur objectives are ta obtain resonable assurance about whether the
annual accounts and consolidared accounts as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
audirer’s report that includes our gpinions, Reasonable assurance 15 a
high level of assurance, bur 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs and generally accepted audinng standards in
Sweden will always detecr a marerial misstatement when it exists.
Misseatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal
if, indradually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basts of these

annuaj accounts and consohdated accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise pr()fess‘mnaf

judgment and maintain professional scepucism throughout the audic

We also:

# Identify and assess the risks of material misstacement of che annual
accounts and consolidared accounts, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opimions. The nisk of not detecting a material misstace-
ment resulung from fraud is hugher than for one resulung fiom erron,
as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

MISTEPIESENLATIOns, O the override of internal control.



@ Obuin an understanding of the company’s inrernal control refevant
to our audit in order to design audit procedures that zre appropriare
in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opin-

ion on the effeciiveness of the company’s internal conrrol.

# Evaluare the appropriateness of accountng policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting esumates and related disclosures made

by the Board of Directors and the Chicf Execurive Officer

% Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Dhrectors’ and che
Chief Execunve Officer’s, usc of the going concern basis of account-
ing in preparing the annual accounts and consolidated accounts. We
atso draw a conclusion, based on the audit evidence obtained, as to
whether any matenal uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company
and the Group to continue as a going concern If we conclude thata
matenial uncertainty exasts, we are required to draw attention 1n our
auditor’s report to the refated disclosures in the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequare, to
maodify our opinion about the annual accounts and conselidared
accounts. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obrained
up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or
conditions may cause a company and a group 1o cease to continue as

a going concern

#® FEvaluate che overall piesentation, structure and content of the annual
accounts and consolidated accounts, inctuding the discfosures, and
whether the annual accounts and consolidated accounts represent the
underlying transactions and events 1n a manner that achieves fair

prcsentatlon

%  Obuain sufficient and appropnate audic evidence regarding the finan-
cial information of the entties or business acuvities wathin the group
[0 expiess an opinion on the consolidated accounts, We are responsi-
ble for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit

We remain solely responsible for our apinions.

We must inform the Board of Directors of, amanyg other matters, the
planned scope and uming of the audit, We must also inform of signifi-
canc audit findings during our audir, indluding any sigrificant deficien-
aies in internal control that we identified.

We must also provide the Board of Directors with a statement thac
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding indepen-
dence, and to communicate with them all relanonships and other
mattets that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matrers communicated with the Board of Directors, we
determine those marters that were of most significance in the audir of the
annual accounts and conschdated accounts, including the most import-
ant assessed nisks for material misstatement, and are therefore the key
audit mauters. We describe these matcers in the audiror’s report unless

law or regulation precludes disclosure about the matter

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions

In addinion to our audit of the annual accounts and conselidared
accounts, we have also audited the admimistration of the Board of Direc-
1ors and the Chief Executive Officer of Addlife AB for the year 2018
and the proposed appropriations of the Company’s profic or foss.

We recommend 1o the general meeting of shareholders thar the profit
be appropniared in accordance with the proposal in the statutory admin-
istraron report and thar the member of the Board of Directors and the
Chief Executive Officer be discharged from liability for the financial

year.

Basis far opinions
We conducted the audit in accordance with generally accepted audicing
srandards in Sweden. Our responsibilirics under those standards are
further described 1n the Auditor’s Responsibilities section, We are inde-
¥

pendent of che parent company and che group in accordance with
professional ethics for accountants in Sweden and have otherwise
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
FEQUITEITIENES.

We believe that the auder evidence we have abtained s sufficient and

appropriate o provide a basis for our opinions.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer
The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the proposal for appropriations
of the company’s profit or loss At the proposal of a dividend, this
includes an assessment of whether the dividend 15 justifiable considering
the requirements which the company’s and the group’s type of opera-
tons, sze and risks place on the size of the parent company’s and the
group’s equity, consolidation requirements, ]iquidiry and position in
general.

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the organisanon of the

Company and management of the Company’s affairs. Thus includes
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among other things continuous assessment of the financial situation of
the Company and the Group, as well as ensuring that the company’s
organisation is dcsigncd 50 that the accounting, management of assets
and the Company’s financial affairs otherwise are controlled 1n a reassur-
ing manner

The Chief Executive Officer shall manage the ongoing adminisera-
tion according 1o the Board of Directors’ guidelines and mstrucaions and
among other matters take measures thar are necessary to fulfil the
company’s accounting in accordance with law and handle the manage-

menc Of asserstna [EﬂSSl]I'lflg mannecr.



Auditor’s responsibility

Our objective concerning the audit of the admimistration, and thereby
our opinion about discharge from hability, is to obtun avdit evidence to
assess with a reasonable degree of assurance whether the member of the
Board of Directors or the Chief Execurive Officer in any material

TCSPCC(T

& has undertaken any action or been guilty of any omission which can
give rise to liability to the company, or

# in any other way has acted in contravention of the Companies Acr,
the Annual Accounts Acr or the Arucles of Association.

Our objecuve concerning the audit of the proposed appropniations of
the company’s profit or loss, and thereby our opinion about this, is to
assess with reasonable degree of assurance whether the proposal is 1n
accordance with the Companies Act.

Reasonable assurance 1s 4 hugh level of assurance, but 1s noc a guaran-
tee that an audic conducted in accordance with generally accepred audit-

eng scandards in Sweden will always detecr actions or omissions that can

give rise 1o liabiliry ro the company, or thar the propased appropriations of
the company'’s profit or loss are not in accordance with the Companises Ace.

As part of an audit in accordance with generally accepied auditing
standards in Sweden, we exercise professional judgment and mainuain
professional scepricism theoughour the audit, The examination of the
admunustrauon and the proposed appropriations of the company's profit
or loss is based primarily on the audit of the accounts Additional audit
procedures performed are based on our professional judgment with start-
ing poing in risk and materialicy. This means that we focus the examina-
tion on such actuans, areas and relationships that are macerial fer the
operations and where deviauons and violations would have particular
importance for the company’s sicuation. We examine and test decisions
undertaken, support for decisions, acuons taken and other circumstances
that are relevant to our opimon concerning discharge from liabilicy. Asa
basts for our opimion on the Board of Directors’ proposed appropriations
of the company’s profit or loss we exarmned the Board of Directors’
reasoned statermnent and a selection of supporting ewidence in order to be
able o assess whether the proposal is in accordance with the Companies
Agr.

The auditor’s opinion regarding the statutory
sustainability report
The Board of Dicectors is responsible for the sustainability report on
pages 26-37 and that 1t s prepared in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Act.

QOur examinacion has been conducied in accordance with FARs
anditing standard RevR 12 The auditor’s opinion regarding rhe statutory
sustainability report. This means that our examinarion of the stasutory

sustainability report is different and substanually less in scope than an

audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
and generally accepted audinng standards in Sweden We believe that the
examinacion has provided us with sufficienc basis for our opinion.

A sustainability report has been prepared.

KPMG AB, Box 382, 101 27, Stockholm, was appointed auditor of
AddLife AB by the general meeting of sharchelders on 31 May 2018
KPMG AB or auditors operating at KPMG AB have been the company’s
auditor since 2015/2016.

Stockholm 10 April 2019

KPMG AB

Hikan Olsson Reising
Authorised Public Accountant
Auditor in charge

KPMG AB

Jonas Eriksson
Auzherised Public Accountant



Board of Directors

JOHANSIO

Chairman of the Board since 2013,

Bornm 1967

Educationr: M Sc. Econ

Professional experience: Chief Execurive
Officer of Addrech AB. senior management
ae Bergman & Beving AB and Alfred Berg
ABN AMRO.

Orher appontmenys: Chaitman of the Board
of Bergman & Beving AB and OptiGroup
AB. Direcror for Addtech AB, Camfil AB
and M2 Asset Management AB.
Independent m relation 10 AddLife and it

senier m/tnﬂgcmenf' YCS

Independent in relation to major shareholders:

Yes.
Holdmngs of vhares in AddLife: 3,600 Class A
shaies and 51,428 Class B shares.
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From left: Stefan Hedelius, Burgic Statun Norinder, Hikan Roas, Johanr S4d, Eva Nllsagird and Andreas Gnrhbug.

%

HAKANROOS

Board member since 2015.

Born m- 1953,

Education: M Sc. Econ.

Professional experience: Previously Chief
Executive Officer of Hallbergs Guld AB
and Procurator AB.

Other apporntments: Chairman of the Boad
of RoosGruppen AB and Sanda Sverige AB,
Member of the boaid of OptiGioup AB and
Nordic Kitchen Group AB.

Independent in relarion to AddLife and s
sentor management: Yes

[ndf?fﬂdfﬂ[ (3 Tflll]l!)ﬂ to ?nﬁjar.fha)'E'
bolders: No.

Holdngs of shares in AddLife: 537,054 Class
A shares and 2,917,135 Class B shares.

STEFAN HEDRELIUS
Board member since 2015.
Born i 1969.

Educarson: Umversity studies in finance,

various international execurive education
programmmes.

Professional experience: Chiet Execuuve
Officer of Human Care HC AB, Chuef
Fxecutive Otticer of NOTE AB and senior
positions within Scandinavian Arrlines
(SAS) and Ercsson.

Other appotntments Chairman of the board
of Momentum Group AB.

Independent m relation 10 AddLife and s
semzor management: Yes

Independent m relation to major shareholders.
No.

Holdings of shares 1n AddLife: 1,142 Class B

shares.



ANDREAS GOTHBERG

Board member since 2018.

Born in: 1967.

Education: M.Sc. Econ.

Professional experience: Chief Executive
Officer of Akademikliniken, and previously
Chief Executive Officer for Memira Hold-
ing AB, Menigo Foodservice AB, Onemed
Lab Sweden AB and SATS Group.
Independent 1n relation ro AddLtfe and 1re
senor management: Yes.

Independent in relation ro major share-
holders: Yes.

Holdings of shares in AddLife: —

BIRGIT STATTINNORINDER

Board member since 2015.

Born in. 1948.

Education: MPharm.

Pmﬁ’ﬁwm[ experience: Chief Executive
Officer of Prolifix Led, Semor Vice Presi-
dent Worldwide Product Development ar
Pharmacia & Upjohn AB.

Other apporntments. Member of the board
of Hansa Medical AB and Jettesta AB.
Independent mn relation 10 AddLife and 15
senior management. Yes.

Independent in relation to major share-
holders Yes

Holdings of shares in AddLife: 2,284 Class B

shares {including relaced party holdings).

EVA NILSAGARD

Board member since 2015.

Born in: 1964,

Education: M.Sc. Fcon,

Professional expersence: CFO Plastal and
Vitrolife AB, and senior positions in finance
and bustness development at Volvo, the
AstraZencea Group and SKF

Other appointments: Director for Bufab AB
{publ), Irras AB {publ) and Akticbolager
Svensk Exportkredie.

Independent tn relation to AddLife and its
ienior mﬂﬂligfm{ﬂt: YCS.

Independent in relation to major share-
holders: Yes.

Holdings of shares in AddLafe 1,142 Class B

shares.

Auditor
Audttor in charge:
Hikan Olsson Ressing, since January 2017,

Authorised Public Accountant, Stockholm.

Born 12 1961
Other assignments: Bergman & Beving,
Lagercrancz Group, Momencum Group,

Actic Group, ABB and Preem.

Aunditor:
Jonas Eriksson, since March 2015,

Aushorised Public Accountant, Stockholm.

Bornm 1974.

Other assignmenis- Audit of Addtech AB,
Hufvudstaden AB, Knowit AB and
Swedol AB.
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From left Lars-Erik Rydell, Knsuna Waillgard, Marun Almgren and Peter Simensbacka,

KRISTINA WILLGARD

CEO since 2015.

Born m1 1965

Member of Group Management since 2015.
FEduratron: M.Sc. Econ.

Professional experience: CFQ of Addrech AB
{pubi), finance director ac Ericsson AB,
CFO of Netwise, CFO of Frontec, Busincss
Controller at Spendrup and accouncant at
Arthur Andersen

Other apporntments. Member of the Board
of Nordic Warerproofing Holding A/S.
Holdings of shares in AddLife: 1,152 Class A
shares and 90,779 Class B shares (induding
related party holdings), as well as call
options corresponding to 68,250 Class B
sharcs,
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MARTIN ALMGREN

CFQ since 2015

Born 2 1976

Member of Group Management since 2015
Fducation: M.Sc Econ.

Professional expertence: Group Financial
Controller for Addtech AB (publ),

Group Accounting Manager ar Nefab AB
and accountant FY.

Holdimgs of shares in AddLife: 44,885 Class
B shares and call options corresponding to
47,197 Class B sharea.

PETER SIMONSBACKA

Business Area Manager Labtech since 2015,

Boru in: 1960,

Member of Group Management since 2017
Education: Engineer,

Professional experience: Business division
manager for Addrech Nordic AB, CEO of
BergmanLabora AB and business division
maﬂagl‘! FQI’ MC({:CT“]‘O]CL{D AB

Holdings of shares in Addlife: 18,864 Class
B shares and call options correspending o
47,197 Class B shates

LARS-ERIKRYDELL

Business Area Manager Medrech since
2015.

Born m: 1955

Member of Group Management since 2017,
Education —

Professional experience: CEO of Mediplast
AB, Sales Manager Alchin Medical AB and
Area Manager Gambro AB.

Holdings of shares tn AddLafe: 113,317 Class
B shares and call options corresponding to
47,197 Class B shares.



Definitions

Retwin on equity
Profit/loss after tax attnhutable to shareholders, as a percentage of sharehalders' proportion of average cquity.

Return on equity measures from an ownership perspective the return that 1s given on the owner s invested capital

2018 2017
Prafit/loss for the period according to the income statement 129.3 1203
Equity yearly average 814 1 7278

Returnon equity 12938141 159%  1203/7278 - 16 5%

Return ot working capital (P W,
EBITA in refation to average working capital

PAWC 15 used to analyse profitability and encourage high EBITA earnings and low working capital requirements

2018 2017
Operating profit before amortization of intangible assets EBITA P 2448 2337
Average working capital (WC} 396.8 3685
P/AWC . 2448/396.8=617% 2337/3685=-634%

Return on capital employed
Profit after net financial items plus interest expenses plus/minus exchange rate fluctuations in percent of average capital employed

2018 2017
Profit/loss before taxes according to the income statement 1580 1576
Interest expenses {+} 72 50
Exchange rate changes net 12 07
Profit after net financial items plus interest expenses 1664 1633
Capital employed yearly average 14953 1,309 7

Return on capital employed 1664/14953 =11.1% _1633/1309.7 =12 5%

ESITDA
Cperating profit before depreciation and amartisation of intangible assets and property, plant and cquipment.

EBITDA is used to analyse profitability generated by operational octivities

2018 2017
Profit/loss according to the income statement 1677 1659
Depreciation/amortisation property, plant and equipment according to Note 16 (+) 220 197
Amortisation intangible assets according to Note 15 (+) 77.1 67.8
Operating profit hefore de[Ie__(_l_a_tli)lj_a_r]d_:’a_r_n_o_r_t_ls_a_tl_c}g___[_[:‘,_II_DA 2§_§ i 2534
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EBITA
Operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets

EBITA s used to analyse profitabihty generated by operational actiities

2018 2017
Profit/loss according to the income statement 1677 165.9
Amorbisation intangihle assets according to Note 15 (+) 771 67.8
Operating profit before amortization of mtangible assets N 2448 2337
EBITAmargn
EBITA In percentage of net sales
FBITA maugin s used to analyse asset-creating generated from operational activities

2018 2017
Operating profit before amortization of intangible assets 244 8 233.7
Net sales according to the income statement 24816 23333

CBITA margin

Equiity per share

Sharehalders' proportion of equity dwided by the number af shares cutstanding at the end of the reporting penod

244 8/24816=99% 2337/23333-100%

2018 2017
Shareholders' proportion of equity according to the balance sheet 9307 7480
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period, 000s 24.629 24,172

Equty per share

Cash flow per share
Cash flow from operating activities divided by the average number of shares

Cash flow from operating activties
Average number of shares

Cash flow per share

MNet debt/eguity ratio
Financial net labilities in relation to shareholders' equity

Net debt/equity tatiois used tec analyse financial risk

2018

1775
24,118

o 177.3/24118 =734

L 280.7/24,675 = 3780 7480/24172-3095

2017

2080
24321

2080/24,321 =855

2018 2017
Financial net habilities 8818 5885
Equity according to balance sheet 9317/ 7480

Net debt/equity ratio
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Farnings per share

Shareholders' proportion of profit/loss for the year in relation to the average number of shares outstanding.

Sharehalders' proportion of profit for the vear according to the income statement
Average number of shares

Carnings per share (EPS)

2018

1293
74,118

129 3/24,118 = 5 36

2017

1203
24,321

120.3/24,321 - 495

Earnings growth EBITA
EBITA for the year less the previcus year's EBITA divided by the previous year's EBITA

Farnings growth EBITA 1s used to analyse asset-creating generated from operational activities.

2018

Operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets, EBITA (+)
Previous year's operating profit betore amortizauon of intangible assets, ERBITA(-)
Earnings growth EBITA

Earmings growth EBITA

Financial net iallines

Interest-bearing habilities and interest-bearing provisions, less cash and cash equivalents

244 8
-2337
111

111/2337-47%

2017

2337
-1887
450

450/1887 = 23.8%

Net debt 15 used to monitor debt development and analyse fimancial levei age and any necessary refinancing

According to balance sheet 2018 2017
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 127 42
Prawisions for pensions 769 668
Interest-bearing provisions 199 -
Current mterest-bearing habihties 8329 5285
Interest-beanng hatilities and provisions Q4724 5995
Cash and equivalents (-} -60 6 -11.0
Financial net liabilities 8818 5885

Financial net liabilities/EBITDA
Financial net labihties divided by EBITDA

Financial net liabilities compared with EBITDA provides a key financial indicator for financial net habilities in relation Lo cash-generated aperating
profit, 1 e, anindication of the abihity of the business to pay its debts. This measure is generally used by financial institutions as a measure of

creditworthiness

2018 2017
Financial net llabilities 8818 5885
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation, EBITDA 2668 2534

881.8/266.8=33

LSB80/2034 723
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tnterest coverage ratio
Profit after net financial items plus interest expenses plus/minus exchange rate fluctuations in
in relation to interest expenses

2018 2017
Profit/loss before taxes according to the income statement 1580 157.6
nterest expenses (+) 7.20 50
Exchange rate changes, net 12 07
Profit after net financial items excluding interest expenses
and exchange rate fluctuations 16464 1633
Interest coverageratio | 1664/72-231  1633/50-327

Working capital
Sum of inventories and accounts recevable, less accounts payable Average working capital for Lthe year 1s used to calculate return on
working capital (P/WC)

Working caprtal 1s used to analyse how much working capital 1s tied up n the business

2018 2017
Inventones yearly average (+) 3082 2792
Accounts receivable yearly average (+) 3060 2789
Accounts payable yearly average {-) -217 4 -18% 6
Working copital average(WC) .. 398 3685
Operating margin
Operating profit/loss as a percentage of net sales

2018 2017
Profit/loss according to the incame statement 1677 1659
Net sales according to the income statement 24816 23333

Operating margin _1677/24816-68%  1659/2,333.3=7 1%

Equity ratio
Equity as a percentage of total assets

The equity ratio s used to analyse financial risk and shows how much of the assets are financed with equnty

2018 2017
Equity according to balance sheet 9317 7480
Total assets according to balance sheet 26678 1,891 3
Eguity ratio 9317/26678=349% 7480/18%913 -39 5%
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Debt/ocauityatia

Interest-beaning lahilities and interest-beanng provisions in relation to equity

According to balance sheet

Non-current mterest-bearing habiities
Provisions for pensions

Interest-bearing provisions

Current interest-bearing habilities
Interest-bearing habiibies and provisions

Equity according to balance sheet

Debt/eautty ratio

Capttal employed
Total assets less non-interest-beaning habihities and provisions

According to halance sheet

Deferred tax liabilities

Accounts payable

Tax frabihties

Other habilities

Accrued expenses and deferred income
Provisions

Non-interest-bearing habilities and provisions

Total assets according to balance sheet

Profit margin
Profit hefore Laxes in percentage of net sales.

Profit/loss before taxes according to the incame statement
Net sales according to the income statement

Profit margin

2018 2017
12.7 42
76.9 668
19.9 -

832.9 5285

942.4 5995

9317 7480

B B 942.4/931.7-1.0  5995/7480-08

2018 2017

107.9 760

333.9 224 ¢
19.6 364

190.3 865

1388 1169

32 31

793.7 5435

26678 18913

2,667.8-7937-1.874.1 1891.3-5435= 13478

2018 2017
1580 1576
24816 23333

158.0/2.481.6 = 6.4% 1576/2,3333=6 8%

The above ey figures presented above are central to understand and evaluate AddLfes business and hinancial posttion

I he key figures are presented in the mult-year review with comments provided in the administration report The key Nigures that comprise the financial targets

can be found with commentsn the section "Cur financial targets”
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Notice to participate in the
Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of AddLife AB {publ) will
be held at 4 p.m. on Thursday, 9 May 2019 at the Saga movie
theatre, Kungsgatan 24, Stockholm, Sweden.

Notice of participation
Shareholders who wish to participate in the Annuat General

Meeting must

# be entered in the sharcholders’ register maintained by Euro-
clear Sweden AB as of Friday, 3 May 2019,

# notify the Company’s head office at AddLife AB {publ.),
Box 3145, SE-103 62 Stockholm, Sweden, via the Company's
website, www.add.life/en/investors/, or by ¢-mail 1o info@
add.life, no later than 3 p.m. on Friday, 3 May 2019, Such
notice must contain the shareholder’s name, personal registra-
tion number (corporatc identificacion number), address, tele-
phone number and the number of shares represented as well
as any attending counsel, maximum rwo. Informarion
provided will be processed clectronically, and will be used for
the purposes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

Sharcholders whose shares are registered under a trustee must
temporarily register their shares in their own name in order to
exercise their voting rights ar the Excraordinary General Meet-
ing. Such changes in regiseration must be complered as of Friday,
3 May 2019.
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Where participation will be by proxy, an original copy of the
proxy documentation and any documents verifying authority
must be submitted ro the Company well in advance of the
Annual General Meeting. Proxies for legal entities muse also
submirt a certified copy of a certificate of incorporation or equiv-
alent document verifying authority. showing thac they are enti-
tled to represent the legal entury The Company provides a proxy
form to shareholders, and this form is available at the Company’s
head office or on the Company’s website www.add lifef/investerare
no later than 17 April 2019.

Proposal to the Annual General Meeting on 9 May 2019
The Board proposes that the Company should pay a dividend of
SEK 2.20 per share. The total dividend amounts to SEK 62.1
million.

The Board of Directors has also resolved to propose the
following to the Annual Genera Mecung,

# The Board of Directors resalved o propose to the Annual
General Meeting a long-term incentive scheme aimed at
senior management.

# A mandate for the Board of Directors to decide to raise funds
to pay for acquisitions through a share issuc of up to 10
percent of the number of Class B shares.

# A mandate for the Board to buy back its own shares corre-
sponding to a maximum of 10 percent of all shares in che

Company.



Addlife

Business area Lahtech
Bergman Labora
Biolin Scientific
BioNordika

Biomedica

IHolm & Halby
Immuno Diagnostics
LabRobot

Triolab

Business area Medtech
Biomedica

Hepro

Krabat

Karpinen

Mediplast

Svancare

www.add.life

www bergmanlabora se
www biclinscientific com
SE: www bionordika.se
DK: www.blonordika.dk
NO www.bionordika no
Fl: www.bionordika fi
www.himgrp cu
www.holm-halby dk
www.immunodiagnostic.fi
www.labrobot.com

SE: wwwitriolab.se

DK www iriolab dk

NO: www bergmandiag.no
Fi: www.triolab fi

Estland” www.triolab ee
Lettland: www triolab v
Litauen: www triolab it

www. bmgrp eu

www, hepro.no

www krabat no

www korpinen com
www mediplast.com
www mediplastfenno fi
WWW svancare se

PROUDUC TION ADDLIFE TOGE THER WITH OXENSTILRNA & PARTNE kS
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